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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of ELL Environmental Holdings Limited (“ELL Environmental”
or the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), |
present the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2021 (the “Year” or “FY2021”).

According to the data published by China’s National Bureau
of Statistics, China’s gross domestic product for 2021 was
RMB114.4 ftrillion', representing a 8.1% increase over last year.
Following the implementation of mass vaccination programmes
and effective stringent control measures, the pandemic in China
was swiftly brought under control. Together with various policies
implemented by the government to stimulate the economy,
production and other economic activities had gradually returned
to normal. China’s gross domestic product for the first half of
2021 showed a rebound from the low in 2020, and recorded
a 12.7%' rise over the same period last year. However, while
domestic economic activity was began to intense, the Delta
variant began to surface in the second half of the Year, once
again bringing challenges to China’s economic development. In
addition, production and other economic activities faced severe
challenges with the emergence of Omicron variant at the end
of the Year. The quarterly growth rate dropped from 18.3% in
the first quarter to 4.0%' in the fourth quarter, with all major
economic indicators showing weak trends.

China has been vigorously promoting its domestic environmental
protection industry in recent years, and according to the data
from the National Bureau of Statistics, investment in water
conservation, environment and public facilities management
amounted to RMB8.75 trillion in 20202. During the “14th
Five-Year Plan” period, China will further strengthen the
implementation of policies on energy conservation and emission
reduction, environmental protection as well as energy transition.
The State Council issued relevant preventive and control plans
on air, water and soil pollution, and the above measures have
produced positive and clear results, but there is still room for

Note:
1. http://www.stats.gov.cn/tjsj/zxfb/202201/t20220117_1826404.html

2. https://research.hktdc.com/tc/article/MzA4NzY1NDAz
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further improvement. In December 2021, China’s Ministry of
Ecology and Environment released a report on national surface
water and ambient air quality for January to November 2021,
and among the 3,641 national surface water assessment
sections, the proportion of sections with excellent water quality
(Grade I~1ll) reached 83.6%%, representing an increase of
1.7% over the same period. For the seven major river basins,
Northwestern Rivers, Southwestern Rivers and rivers in Zhejiang
and Fujian Provinces, the proportion of sections with excellent
water quality (Grade I~Ill) reached 85.8%8%, representing an
increase of 1.8% over the same period. The above shows
that the Chinese government has been effectively managing
water conservation and environmental issues according to
plan even after economic resumption, indicating the focus
on environmental protection has not been reduced during
the period of promoting economic growth. Meanwhile, the
“improvement in quality and efficiency” work of wastewater
treatment facilities has achieved substantial results. At the
beginning of 2021, ten departments, including China’s National
Development and Reform Commission, jointly published the
Guidance on Promoting Wastewater Resource Utilisation* ({
RIEESKERICFAHIEEE R)), which stated that China
will systematically develop the resource utilisation of sewage.
“Resource utilisation of sewage” refers to the innocuous
treatment of sewage to specific water quality standards as
reclaimed water to replace conventional water resources for
industrial production, municipal miscellaneous use, residential
use, ecological water recharge, agricultural irrigation and
the recharge of groundwater. The report mentioned a target
that, by 2025, the rate of utilisation of reclaimed water for
prefecture-level or above cities faced with water shortage will
reach 25% or above, and that of the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region
will reach 35% or above. As such, China’s demand for the
water pollution treatment industry will grow continuously in the
long run. The Group will continue to keep a keen pulse on the
changes in national policies and market in the future in order to
timely optimise the business development strategy. It will also
contribute to environmental protection by coordinating with the
national water pollution treatment work in the future.

Although Chinese national policies have led to excellent
development opportunity of the Group, fierce competition within
overseas environmental protection industry has been presenting
ongoing challenges to the Group’s business. The Group has
been looking for feasible opportunities to its environmental

* For identification purpose only
Note:
3. https://www.mee.gov.cn/ywdt/xwfb/202112/t20211221_964784.shtml
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protection business in order to enhance the Group’s competitive
advantage in overseas markets. The Group currently focuses
on two overseas projects, including the development of biofuel
pellet business in Jambi, Indonesia and the development of a
power supply (the “Bangka Plant”) project in Bangka, Indonesia
(the “Bangka Project”). After considering the terms and
quotations provided, the relevant qualifications and experiences
in the relevant industry and their creditability and track records,
the Group shortlisted Powerchina Sepcol Electric Power
Construction Co., Ltd. (the “Contractor”) as the contractor for
the construction work of the Bangka Project, and entered into a
contract with the Contractor for the construction and installation
of the Bangka Plant in December 2021. The Bangka Plant is
expected to be grid-connected and commence operation in
2023. Moreover, the Group has purchased a turbine generator
and a boiler at the end of 2020 and the beginning of 2021, with
the aim to improve the Bangka Plant’s equipment and enhance
its efficiency, thus creating more value to the Group’s power
generation business.

Other than the above two overseas key projects, the Group
has been endeavouring to explore opportunities to cooperate
with other power generation plants and companies. The
Group expects to develop more paths in environmental
protection businesses in the future, continue researching for
the development direction and space of other new energy
businesses in the environmental protection industry, thereby
stabilising the Group’s business foundation and allowing
the Group to achieve diversified business and sustainable
development.

In terms of the Group’s domestic businesses, the Group will
continue to enhance its capital efficiency by strictly controlling
capital expenditure and improving operational process, so as
to achieve a high-quality growth in the profit of the wastewater
treatment business. The management will continue to
coordinate itself with national policies, leading the Group to a
good development pathway. Both Haian Hengfa Wastewater
Treatment Company Limited (“Haian Hengfa”) and Rugao
Hengfa Water Treatment Company Limited (“Rugao Hengfa”)
under the Group successfully entered into agreements with
the local authorities during the Year and raised the water tariff
to a more desirable level, which has consequently resulted in
a continuous positive contribution to the Group’s revenue and
gross profit in 2021,

Chairman’s Statement
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During the Year, ELL Environmental has recorded a revenue of
HK$103.1 million with a year-on-year increase of 74.8%. The
gross profit for the Year was HK$53.6 million, representing a
year-on-year increase of 81.1%. The net profit was HK$11.5
million, attributable to (i) the increase in revenue of the
wastewater treatment facility operated by Rugao Hengfa (the
“Rugao Hengfa Facility”) due to the increase in the water
tariff from RMB2.67 to RMB3.43 per tonne effective from April
2021, (i) the increase in construction revenue arising from the
construction works of the Bangka Project during the Year as
compared to last year and (iii) the one-off retrospective upward
adjustment in water tariff of the wastewater treatment facility
operated by Haian Hengfa (the “Haian Hengfa Facility”).

Although the overall economic condition in 2021 has been
improved compared to 2020, due to uncertainties from
the volatile pandemic situation, we are still confronted with
challenges brought by the global economic environment and
markets. We will continue to safeguard our past operation
concepts, advance despite difficulties and actively respond to
various challenges. We will formulate strategies that are both
beneficial to the Group and in coordination with national policies
in order to maximise cost effectiveness. Looking forward, China
has a continued strong demand for wastewater treatment, and
the Group’s business in mainland China is expected to maintain
a satisfactory growth. The management will stand firm on their
position, formulate appropriate risk management strategies, so
as to respond to any potential challenges in the future.

Here, | would like to express my gratitude to my fellow Directors,
shareholders (the “Shareholders”), staff and stakeholders of
the Company for their constant support. Thanks to the tireless
dedication of the management and all staff, as well as the
support from our customers and partners, ELL Environmental
has been able to surmount various challenges in such a
challenging business environment in recent years. The Group
will continuously maintain its high-quality service level and close
relationship with customers, with the aim to contribute to the
society and environment, as well as create value and generate
long-term stable returns for our investors and the Shareholders.

CHAU On Ta Yuen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022

Note:

4. https://www.mee.gov.cn/xxgk2018/xxgk/xxgk03/202110/
t20211029_958394.html
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

As the COVID-19 pandemic began to be brought under control
at the end of 2020, China’s economic and production activities
also started to recover, with a strong recovery recorded in the
first half of 2021. However, following the confirmed cases of
Delta variant and Omicron variant in China began to surface in
the second half of the Year, China’s economy was once again
met with another crises. China’s gross domestic product for
2021 was RMB114.4 trillion', representing an 8.1% growth over
last year, but the quarter-on-quarter growth rate dropped from
18.3% in the first quarter to 4.0%' in the fourth quarter.

China has been paying more attention to environmental
protection issues in recent years, leading to an increased
demand and support for the environmental protection industry.
China had been having a serious water pollution issue in the
past, which has been effectively improved in recent years due to
the Chinese government’s proactive response. At the beginning
of 2021, ten departments, including China’s National
Development and Reform Commission, jointly published the
Guidance on Promoting Wastewater Resource Utilisation* ([
RIE#EITKEREFAMIEEE R)), which stated that China
will systematically develop the resource utilisation of sewage,
showing the Chinese government’s determination in resolving
the issue of water pollution. 2021 is the first year of the “14th
Five-Year Plan”, and the Chinese government stressed that
ecological conservation will be further advanced and formulated
plans for eliminating black and odorous water bodies in cities.
Compared with the “13th Five-Year Plan”, the “14th Five-Year
Plan” has further raised the goals on sewage treatment
capability, sewage treatment rate, utilisation rate of reclaimed
water and innocuous treatment rate of sludge. The National
Development and Reform Commission and the Ministry of
Housing and Urban-Rural Development jointly issued the Plan
for Urban Sewage Treatment and Resources Utilisation
Development* (k)5 /KB E K BRI F A& E H &)),
setting out a number of major goals. The major goals which
shall be achieved by 2025 include: the sewage treatment rate in
county will reach 95% or above; the rate of utilisation of
reclaimed water for prefecture-level or above cities faced with

* For identification purposes only
Note:

1. http://www.stats.gov.cn/tjsj/zxfb/202201/t20220117_1826404.html
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water shortage will reach 25% or above; direct discharge of
domestic sewage and regions without collection and treatment
facilities in urban areas will be eliminated; and the centralised
collection rate of urban domestic sewage on national level
should strive to reach more than 70%; the major goal by the
year of 2035 is to achieve a basically complete urban domestic
sewage collection pipe network. From January to November
2021, according to the data provided by the China’s Ministry of
Ecology and Environment, among the 3,641 national surface
water assessment sections, the proportion of sections with
excellent water quality (Grade I~Ill) reached 83.6%?2,
representing an increase of 1.7% over the same period last year,
which shows that China has invested a large amount of
resources in driving and leading the development of water
pollution treatment industry, and achieved progressive and
significant results. All of the above showed that China
possesses strong determination and implementation capability
in managing water pollution and it is expected that more
resources will be devoted by China to significantly improve
water quality.

In general, the Group has consistently adopted a prudent
and risk-oriented approach to business development in the
past. The Group owns two wastewater treatment facilities in
Jiangsu Province, China, respectively operated by Haian Hengfa
and Rugao Hengfa. For Haian Hengfa, as announced in our
announcement dated 21 January 2022, our management has
reached an agreement with the relevant authorities to raise
water tariffs from RMB1.14 per tonne to RMB1.45 per tonne
effective retrospectively from January 2020 onwards, resulting
in a positive growth in revenue and profits for the Group. For
Rugao Hengfa, the Group has reached an agreement with the
local administrative committee in July 2021, increasing water
tariffs from RMB2.67 per tonne to RMB3.43 per tonne effective
retrospectively from April 2021, bringing a better and sound
performance for the Group. Due to the upward adjustment in
water tariff, it is expected that the Group’s revenue and gross
profit will further increase, and the Group will dedicate itself to
expand the water facilities’scale and enhance the daily capacity
to improve the financial position of the Group.

Note:

2. https://www.mee.gov.cn/ywdt/xwfb/202112/t20211221_964784.shtml
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group has also been actively preparing for the development
of suitable environmental protection projects in overseas, and
two key projects are currently being developed. In terms of
the Bangka Project, the Group completed the selection of
contractor and entered into a construction work contract in
December 2021 to carry out relevant construction works. The
power plant has a capacity of 10 megawatts, and is expected
to be grid-connected and commence operation in 2023. The
Group also purchased a turbine generator and a boiler at
the end of 2020 and during the Year, and it is believed that
the modified construction plan will result in a reduction of
landscaping cost, thus reducing the total cost of construction,
which would be more cost effective and suitable for the needs
of the Bangka Project. If the Bangka Project turns out to be a
success, we expect that the relevant operation model can be
replicated to other outlying islands in Indonesia. Moreover, we
will also continue our study on the feasibility of developing other
new energy investment projects in other regions of Indonesia,
while actively promoting the “Build-Operate-Transfer” or “BOT”
investment projects in order to generate greater value for the
Group and bring better cash flows and investment return.

As for the biofuel pellet business in Indonesia, the Group has
been actively expanding such business and continuing to
explore opportunities to cooperate with other power plants,
thereby promoting the development of biofuel pellet business.
After multiple stages of preparation and negotiation with various
buyers, the final preparatory stage has been reached, and
operation is expected to officially commence in 2022, and will
start to generate revenue in mid to late 2022. The management
is confident that the biofuel pellet business will provide the
growth momentum to the Group and will enable the Group to
achieve diversified development of its environmental protection
business in the long run.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWED

OUTLOOK

Despite the economic condition during the Year has
improved, the business environment is still under the influence
of COVID-19 pandemic and the ever-changing external
economic environment. The Company will deal with various
challenges rationally and calmly, and will evaluate the risks
and opportunities of different development projects. ELL
Environmental will also actively align itself with national policies,
remain flexible in coping with market changes, and seize
any development opportunities in both China and overseas.
Sustainable development is one of the global trends, and
the Group will strive to make a contribution to environmental
protection. We shall continue to solidify our strong foundation
in China’s wastewater treatment market and provide high-
quality services to customers, creating a pristine water quality
domestically. Meanwhile, leveraging on our extensive experience
and expertise accumulated throughout the years, we will strive
to develop and actively implement potential environmental
protection-related industrial chain projects, and will keep trying
and looking for breakthroughs to capture and create more
business opportunities in order to promote the growth of the
Group’s business. We will stand by our customers and provide
quality service to them, and uphold a sound and prudent
business strategy.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
REVENUE

Our total revenue increased by HK$44.1 million or 74.8% to
HK$103.1 million for the Year as compared to HK$59.0 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020 (“FY2020”). Such
increase was primarily attributable to (i) the increase in revenue
of the Rugao Hengfa Facility due to the increase in the water
tariff from RMB2.67 to RMB3.43 per tonne effective from April
2021, (ii) the recognition and settlement of the underpaid water
tariff for the previous years in Haian Hengfa Facility, and (iii) the
increase in construction revenue arising from the construction
works of the Bangka Project during the Year as compared to
FY2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

COST OF SALES

Our total cost of sales increased by HK$20.1 million or 68.4%
from HK$29.4 million for FY2020 to HK$49.5 million for FY2021,
primarily due to (i) the increase in construction costs arising
from the Bangka Project during the Year as compared to
FY2020, and (i) the increase in operating costs for the Rugao
Hengfa Facility as compared to FY2020 due to the increase in
cost of material and staff, and the effect of foreign exchange
translation difference arising from the appreciation of Renminbi
(“‘RMB”) against Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$").

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

Our gross profit increased by HK$24.0 million or 81.1% from
HK$29.6 million for FY2020 to HK$53.6 million for FY2021,
primarily due to reasons of the aforementioned fluctuation in
revenue and cost of sales. Our gross profit margin increased
from 50.2% for FY2020 to 52.0% for FY2021.

OTHER INCOME AND NET GAINS

Our other income and net gains decreased by HK$0.9 million
or 16.4% from HK$5.3 million for FY2020 to HK$4.5 million for
FY2021, primarily due to the decrease in the refund of value-
added tax as compared to FY2020.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Our administrative expenses decreased slightly by HK$0.3
million or 1.2% from HK$27.9 million for FY2020 to HK$27.5
million for FY2021. Administrative expenses mainly include staff
costs and other operating expenses.

FINANCE COSTS

Our finance costs increased by HK$2.4 million or 122.2%
from HK$2.0 million for FY2020 to HK$4.4 million for FY2021,
primarily due to the increase in loan borrowing for the financing
of the Bangka Project during the Year.
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EEENWED

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Our profit before tax increased by HK$17.8 million or 349.4%
from HK$5.1 million for FY2020 to HK$22.9 million for FY2021,
primarily due to the factors mentioned above.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Our income tax expense increased by HK$4.8 million or 73.1%
from HK$6.6 million for FY2020 to HK$11.4 million for FY2021,
primarily due to the increase in profit before tax for our PRC
subsidiaries.

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the Company increased
by HK$11.1 million or 224.0% from loss of HK$5.0 million for
FY2020 to profit of HK$6.1 million for FY2021, primarily due to
the factors mentioned above.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our principal liquidity and capital requirements primarily relate
to investments in our projects, construction and upgrading of
our wastewater treatment facilities, purchases of equipment
as well as costs and expenses related to the operation and
maintenance of our wastewater treatment and electricity
generating facilities.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s bank balances and cash
was HK$65.1 million, representing an increase of 27.4% as
compared with that of HK$51.1 million as at 31 December 2020.
As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s bank balances and cash
of HK$35.8 million, HK$4.9 million, HK$7.7 million and HK$16.7
million were denominated in RMB, HKS$, Indonesian Rupiah
(“IDR”) and United States Dollars (“US$”), respectively (31
December 2020: HK$35.1 million, HK$6.0 million, HK$0.8 million
and HK$9.2 million were denominated in RMB, HKS$, IDR and
USS$, respectively).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2021, the total amount of our utilised bank
borrowings was HK$20.2 million, which was repayable within
one year. Approximately HK$18.0 million and HK$2.2 million
of the outstanding bank borrowings were denominated in HK$
and US$, respectively (31 December 2020: HK$18.0 million and
HK$4.5 million were denominated in HK$ and US$, respectively).

Out of the HK$20.2 million outstanding bank borrowings,
HK$18.0 million bore a floating interest rate of 1.4% per annum
over the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (31 December 2020:
HK$18.0 million), and HK$2.2 million bore a floating interest
rate of 1.4% per annum over London Interbank Offered Rate
(31 December 2020: HK$4.5 million). We had HK$7.3 million
unutilised banking facilities as at 31 December 2021 and 31
December 2020.

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had an outstanding
borrowing from an independent third party of the Group
amounted to HK$14.9 million (31 December 2020: nil), which
bore a fixed interest rate of 8% per annum. The loan was
repayable within one year.

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had outstanding
amounts due to related parties of the Group amounted to
HK$39.2 million (31 December 2020: HK$13.4 million), of which
HK$15.9 million bore a fixed interest rate of 8% per annum and
HK$23.3 million bore a fixed interest rate of 6% per annum. The
amounts due to related parties were repayable within one year.
We had HK$10.9 million and HK$7 million unutilised facilities
granted by related parties as at 31 December 2021 and 31
December 2020, respectively.

To the best knowledge of the Directors and management of
the Group, all the interest rates of the above borrowings were
determined on arm’s length basis.
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EEENWED

GEARING RATIO

Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total debt by total
equity and then multiplied by 100%, and total debt includes
the interest-bearing bank borrowings, amounts due to related
parties and other borrowings. Our gearing ratio increased from
9.6% as at 31 December 2020 to 19.4% as at 31 December
2021.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any charge on
assets (31 December 2020: nil).

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management
approach towards its treasury policies and thus maintained
a healthy liquidity position throughout the Year. The Board
closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that
the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and other
commitments can meet its funding requirements from time to
time. Surplus cash will be invested appropriately so that the
Group’s cash requirements for its strategy or direction from time
to time can be met.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Our capital expenditures consist primarily of expenditures for
the construction and acquisition of machinery and equipment
for our plants of Rugao Hengfa and Haian Hengfa, our Bangka
Project and the biofuel pellet business in Indonesia. During the
Year, our capital expenditures amounted to HK$24.2 million (31
December 2020: HK$11.3 million), which were funded by funds
generated from our financing activities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

Individual member companies in Mainland China and Indonesia
within our Group have limited foreign currency risk as most
of the transactions are denominated in the same currency as
the functional currency of the operations in which they relate.
However, as these principal subsidiaries mainly carry assets and
liabilities in RMB and IDR, any appreciation or depreciation of
HK$ against RMB and IDR will affect the Group’s consolidated
financial position which is presented in HK$, and will be
reflected in the exchange fluctuation reserve.

The Group does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. The
Group minimises foreign exchange exposure by converting its
cash and cash equivalents in other currencies generated from
the operation of its foreign operating subsidiaries to HK$.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (31 December 2020: nil).

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 122 employees (31
December 2020: 114 employees). Employee costs, including
Directors’ emoluments, amounted to approximately HK$14.7
million for FY2021 (FY2020: HK$13.2 million). The remuneration
policy for our Directors, senior management members and
general staff is based on their experience, level of responsibility
and general market conditions. Any discretionary bonus and
other merit payments are linked to the profit performance of
our Group and the individual performance of our Directors,
senior management members and general staff. The Group
encourages self-development of its employees and provides on-
the-job training where appropriate.

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 5 September
2014 for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible directors and employees of the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save as disclosed in this report and the announcements made
by the Company (i) on 31 December 2020 and 8 January 2021
regarding the purchase of a steam turbine generator; (i) on
21 January 2021 regarding the purchase of a boiler; and (iii)
on 23 December 2021 regarding the biomass power plant
construction of the Bangka Project, the Group did not have any
other significant investments, material acquisitions or disposals
of assets, subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during the
Year.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed above in this report, the Group has no plan
authorised by the Board for other material investments or
additions of capital assets as at the date of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in the announcement made by the Company
on 7 March 2022 regarding the adjustment to the consideration
of the ancillary materials to be purchased for the Bangka
Project, the Group had no material event subsequent to 31
December 2021 and up to the date of this report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

No final dividend has been recommended by the Board for
FY2021 (FY2020: Nil).
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THIS REPORT

ELL Environmental Holdings Limited (“ELL Environmental”
or the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, collectively
referred to as the “Group”, “we”, “us, or “our”) is here to
disclose its sixth Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”)
Report (this “Report”) to its stakeholders, aiming to showcase
its strategy, approach and achievements in sustainable
development during the year.

REPORTING PERIOD AND SCOPE

Unless otherwise stated, the reporting scope of this Report
covers the Group’s major operations from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2021 (the “Reporting Period”) of:

° Operation services of two wastewater treatment facilities,
the Rugao Hengfa Facility and the Haian Hengfa Facility, in
Jiangsu Province, the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”);
and

° Biofuel pelllet production business of PT Rimba Palma
Sejahtera Lestari (“RPSL’) in Jambi, Indonesia.

REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group prepares this Report in accordance with applicable
disclosure requirements of the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting Guide”) in
Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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DATA COLLECTION METHOD

The information cited in this Report originates from the Group’s
official documents and statistical data. This Report has been
approved by the Board of Directors (“the Board”) in March
2022.

FEEDBACK

Every opinion or suggestion of our stakeholders is seen as a
catalyst for the Group’s sustainable development. Should you
have any opinions or suggestions with regards to the Group’s
sustainable development or this Report, please contact us at
ell@anli.com.hk.

OUR BUSINESS

Founded in 2002, ELL Environmental is a one-stop
environmental solutions service provider. Currently, we offer a
one-stop approach to the provision of wastewater treatment
services using the “Build — Operate — Transfer” (or BOT)
model. We have two wastewater treatment facilities in operation
which are all located within Jiangsu Province, China, treating
municipal and industrial wastewater. The Group also investing
in biofuel pellet production business in Jambi, Indonesia
and developing an power supply business in Bunga Island,
Indonesia.

HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

80,000 25,328,000
cubic meter cubic meter
35K 35K
daily wastewater wastewater treated

treatment capacity in 2021
FHEK B —FRE
AREE K57k =
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WASTEWATER TREATMENT JSKEE

The Group’s wastewater treatment business mainly operates 2 @ARNEEFKITKEBEH T E R T %
treatment facilities which treat municipal sewage and industrial & N2 ML ZE LB R &2
sewage in Rugao County and Haian County, Jiangsu Province A& T ¥55/K « M EE %R 7 9 B £ AR
in the PRC. Our facilities can treat as much as 80,000 tonnes &)=t 1 fi§ fk B /K 4 ¥ jE &2 & (MBBR)) &
of wastewater each day using Moving Bed Biofilm Reactor B 7 5% & & 38 5% 14 35 S £ 1f1 (CAST)) ;7
(“MBBR”) treatment approach or Cyclic Activated Sludge S:xEIS5/K: §HMS /KA EIE 2% 2
Technology (“CAST”) respectively. The following diagrams 80,0002 ME c TEIFI "M EHREH T E
outline the major wastewater treatment processes adopted by 357K & IE 2 :

our facilities:
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HAIAN HENGFA FACILITY
B IE R
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Both of our wastewater treatment facilities are in line with local MR T/KEIB R FEH T A B 55 7K G I8
wastewater treatment standards to ensure the quality of treated 12+ BERSKEREZMNLEE o A T
wastewater after going through a series of procedures as F§ il ’5 /KB IE IR F

outlined below:

Filtration Sedimentation Adjustment Acidification Anaerobic Sterilization

Bl TR )0l Bt BRE RE
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The core responsibility and mission of our wastewater treatment
business are to reduce the pollution of wastewater imposed on
the surrounding water bodies. As a result, we are committed
to ensuring that the quality of treated wastewater meet the
requirements of the Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standard
and Class 1-A or Class 1-B of Discharge Standard of Pollutants
for Municipal Wastewater Treatment Plants (GB18918-2002)
by obtaining the Pollutant Emission Permits as required by the
Measures for Pollutant Discharge Permitting Administration
(for Trial Implementation). We would check the water quality
on a daily basis and record the details ranging from chemical
oxygen demand (“COD”), biological oxygen demand (“BOD”),
pH value, suspended solids (“88”), ammonia (NH3) before and
after treatment to water content, organic materials and pH value
of sludge etc. into a monthly report, as well as conduct regular
inspections, so as to guarantee the quality of treated wastewater
before it is discharged.

BIOFUEL PELLET PRODUCTION

ELL Environmental mainly engages in biofuel pellet production
businesses in Jambi, Indonesia through its subsidiary, RPSL.
The core raw material used is wood pellets, usually generated
from the production of wood products. We believe that through
maximizing the use of wood pellets could help minimize the
waste of wood being disposed of, thus reducing the burden
on and at the same time bringing positive impact to the
environment. The production facility to process the major raw
material, wood pellet is under construction. We expect that
we could start the operation and sales of processed wood
pellets to power plants in South-east Asia as our targeted major
customers in mid-2022.

To regulate the quality of our biomass power generation and
biofuel pellet production, we have compiled a “Standard
Operation Procedure” (“SOP”) for our businesses, guiding
employees to run the daily operations in a standardized and
stringent manner.

RIR HEREBRSE
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BOARD STATEMENT AND GOVERNANCE
STRUCTURE

BOARD’S OVERSIGHT OF ESG ISSUES

The Board oversees environmental, social and governance
risk management, while taking into account stakeholders’
concerns to determine issues that are material to the Group.
The Group has established risk management and internal
control mechanisms to identify, manage and monitor risks, in
which ESG-related risks are covered. We review and refine
relevant mechanisms regularly. For more details about the
Group’s measures in corporate governance, please refer to the
Corporate Governance Report in this Annual Report.

ESG MANAGEMENT APPROACH AND STRATEGY

The Group has established a dedicated team to manage
ESG issues within each business division of the Group. The
responsibilities of the dedicated team include overseeing the
implementation of the Group’s sustainability strategy, updating
the Group’s sustainability policies, reviewing the Group’s
sustainability risks, monitoring sustainability performance, goals
and targets as well as reviewing feedback from stakeholders.
The dedicated team regularly reports the above sustainability
matters to the Board for decision-making purposes.

ESG-RELATED GOALS AND TARGETS

We are committed to integrating sustainability practices into
our daily operations of the Group and aligning our sustainability
goals with our strategic direction to create productive and
innovative space and sustainable value for our stakeholders.
We will keep monitoring and overseeing the progress against
corporate goals and targets, addressing climate change,
monitoring the achievement to these goals and continuing to
improve our performance on key ESG matters.
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REPORTING PRINCIPLES

The Group prepared this Report based on the following four

reporting principles:

Principles

R

Materiality

EEMN

Quantitative

E1t

Balance

F

Consistency

— B

Definitions

E&

The threshold at which ESG issues
determined by the board are sufficiently
important to investors and other
stakeholders that they should be reported.
EEESETHBAESGEEEHREEAR
HtHh EELEEEXLERN  BITARE
fEHE R o

KPIs in respect of historical data need to be
measurable. The issuer should set targets
(which may be actual numerical figures or
directional, forward-looking statements)

to reduce a particular impact. In this way
the effectiveness of ESG policies and
management systems can be evaluated
and validated. Quantitative information
should be accompanied by a narrative,
explaining its purpose, impacts, and giving
comparative data where appropriate.
FHAELBBENERERIERARTHE -
HITARE TRAOERNZENBR (AR
ERBEFR ML AT EANZR)  £R
5 HeMERABRREEERRGHMEA
WA REBRE -  BEBENTHA - @
MHEEMNZE  YHEEENBRTRH
Lb R B o

The ESG report should provide an unbiased
picture of the issuer’s performance.

The report should avoid selections,
omissions, or presentation formats that
may inappropriately influence a decision or
judgment by the report reader.

BE HEREABREREN R EH2
BoBMergeMhEyEmsEER
R HEERE  BRIZHBA -

The issuer should use consistent
methodologies to allow for meaningful
comparisons of ESG data over time.

BOARER—BWBRERT L SR
B HekERBEEEANEEEENL
& o

R HERERKRE

=R

SERBATOERERAGEARE -

Responses from the Group

EEHNEE

Through engaging with stakeholders as well
as considering the Group’s business nature
and development, material sustainability
issues are identified.
RAENSEBENEBARZEEEEN
EHMENBER BEEANAFEER

A e

The Group discloses its key environmental
and social performance indicators
quantitatively where appropriate.

SEEEENRRAE/NTT ABKE RS
ROBRBNLSERER -

The Group has identified and disclosed

the environmental, social and governance
issues with significant impact on the
Group’s business, including the results

and challenges faced by the Group, in this
Report.
SEHEAEARETHEURETHERE
BEEATENRE HeakEolE &
BEBENK RGP E -

The reporting scope and reporting method
are substantially consistent with those of
the prior year(s), and this Report has also
disclosed relevant comparative information.
REHEMBEREZE F—FEER—F
ABELRETHBAOLEREM -
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R HEBRERKRE

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group strives to communicate with stakeholders and
listen to and incorporate appropriate opinions and suggestions
into our continuous improvement process. We have identified
contractors, shareholders and investors, government authorities,
non-governmental organizations (“NGO”), environmental
protection department (“EPD”), suppliers, business partners
and the neighboring community as our key stakeholder groups.
We would collect their feedback towards the Group’s operations
and sustainable development performance through a number
of formal and informal two-way communication channels, which

can be referred to in the following:

EMPLOYEES
==

° Staff Mailbox
8 T EAH
° Meeting
Gy
= A%
° Training
=l

° Interview
BEN

o Intranet
)ik

CONTRACTORS
]

Interview
Tk
Meeting
P

= =5
B R

GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES
BNER
° Site Visit
BinE
° Interview
BB
BUSINESS PARTNERS
BB
o Site Visit
BEHER
° Cooperation Meeting
PNy
= = iR

NGO/EPD SUPPLIERS
FRFER BRI RAER

COMMUNITY
HE

FRERESR

EBAUNZEATAR -

SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

RERMIREH

o General Meeting
BRERE

° Telephone Interview
BERN

° Company Website
YNGIEER

o Press Conference
mEEmE

° Announcement
Rtk

. Financial Report
MsmE

AEEBZHEMNZHAEEER BI
BEMNERMNE:R THEEMARMDY
SENERE BZMEBTAEH K
EMEEE BRIFER - EWT AL
(“NGO”) ~ IRIR P (“EPD”) ~ L /ER - 7
EEHNMBALEEAERMOEEF M
MEHE MR E L EXMIELE
AMEMERTE  WEMMYEEE
ENAFBERERBANLOEETR  B&

° Site Visit ° Site Visit
BEMER B ER

° Interview o Interview
HIEN BE

Social Media (e.g., public account

on WeChat/WhatsApp)

iR (PItR{EE 77 BRP, WhatsApp)
Company Website

YNSIEEI

Interview

A

Seminar

e
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

Apart from regular communications with stakeholders outlined
in the above, we have also engaged independent sustainability
consultant to assist the Group in carrying out a materiality
assessment on a yearly basis by collecting stakeholders’
views through an online survey to identify the materiality of
various sustainability issues. We believe that the results of the
materiality assessment could help us identify environmental,
social and governance issues material to the Group, thus we
can improve our sustainability approach and strategies in a
more effective way. The following shows the process of the
materiality assessment:

BRI HERERKRS

EEMFM

BT Lt BA SR E T BB BI
BMEESTBEYNASERRER
B EEEFET - RELGENG B
BRELASRENEHEENER N
HESRUSERRABNELNREE -
HMEE BEEEFENERATAED
BMRETHEEAEAFENRE &
gREARE - i A LA E R B 2 E
BPMAIRFRERR D AMEE - UATE
MEMFEENBRE -

D 4

4
\ 4
)\ 4
N y
A 4

8. Carry out materiality analysis based on the collected data and
combine with the assessment of the management.
BT R BB TE R AT - WEERERNEE 6 o
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The materiality matrix below outlines the results of analysis TE®EZHEEM M TREHBH D

during the Reporting Period: MR o
High
= Materiality Matrix 22 2 {4 %5 &
4
@H( 17 19
2 * ¢
i 16
& ® 15 4
g 26 °
az;x 4 [y
» °
[0} T o1 12 8
o ] 14 ° 1
4 o [0
o ) 2
2 e 25 ,.%18¢® 10
0] 22 o9 o
2 2.7 ) ° e L
n
8 7
S ° 20
£
S
o
E
ey Importance to the Group ¥iASEEHNEZE M High
1 &

Issues located at the top right-hand corner of the matrix indicate I REEH FANBZER IR AE AN
the most significant topics identified and will be focused in this B BIEE @ W ERREFEZENE o
Report. The following table indicates the relevant sections and TR RE#HBIE X ZENIEEE 5 A
pages for the material issues identified. JER/N
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Service Responsibility

R EE

Quality of services
AR#E &

Services safety and health
AR 75 % & A fE BR

Complaint handling

w R IE

Customer data protection and
privacy

REXPHEMLE

Advertising and labelling
management
BEREHERE

Corporate Governance

DREAR

6.

10.

Anti-fraud and corruption
FRAER

Anti-corruption training

&G HE

Supplier environmental and
social performance

HEFRERMERN

Supplier selection process
and tendering management

HEBRERENERERE

Disaster/emergency response
and management

BAKE E2CEMNEE
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Caring for Employees
BEET
11. Diversification and equal
opportunities talents
SR T ERSE
12. Recruiting and maintaining
talents
BEMBEAL
183. Training and development
=l F B
14. Labour practices

BEHER

15. Occupation health and safety

BEXRFEEZE

Giving Back to Community
ER

25. Participation in Volunteer
Activities
2B ERIES
26. Charitable donations
BEBX
27. Fundraising work
ERTIE

R HERERKRE

Safeguarding the Environment
R R H

16. Air emissions management

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

BREREREBRLQF

REBHEHREIRE

Energy consumption

BE R E

Climate change

Rix# 1t

Discharge quality management

FHEEERE

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

hE R BN

Hazardous and non-hazardous
waste management

BENEZTEREYER

Noise management

BE eI

Resource utilization and
mitigation measures

&R FI A4 B 1S BE

Green procurement

RERE

RO
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ESG Topics
ESG=*

Section in this Report

RBEEPNED

12.

13.

15.

16.

17.

19.

21.
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Quality of services

AR e &

Services safety and health
R % 2 MERE

Complaint handling

ey

Recruiting and maintaining talents
BEMERFAT

Training and development

BT ER

Occupation health and safety
BERENZ 2

Air emissions management
ERYME R

Energy consumption

BE IR OH 7%

Discharge quality management
s mEE

Hazardous and non-hazardous waste

R MEEREY

Creating Green Fortune
BlEmes
Creating Green Fortune
Bl
Creating Green Fortune
Bl elE

Caring Our People
BMEETL

Employee Development
BT#R

Employees’ Wellbeing
BIRRR

Creating Green Fortune
BliEmels
Creating Green Fortune
Bt elE
Creating Green Fortune
Bl
Creating Green Fortune
BliEmels
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OUR APPROACH IN SUSTAINABILITY

As a responsible corporate citizen with a leading position in
the environmental solutions industry in the PRC and Indonesia,
ELL Environmental sees pursuing sustainable operations as its
core responsibility. As such, we have formulated Environmental,
Social and Governance Policy together with a number of related
policies and measures, guiding each department and employee
to incorporate sustainable principles, including protecting
employees’ rights, occupational health and safety, product
and service responsibility, anticorruption and environmental
protection at all levels of operations at all times, hoping to
create a better, greener and more equal society for our next
generations. The following 4 sections in this Report outline
our key strategies, policies and achievements in sustainable
development:

Corporate Governance

Assess, prevent and manage
environmental, social and
governance risks and
maintain high-level business
ethics and integrity

TEER

Al ~ FrIERERIRE -
e kERER
I 445 = E R R BB

Caring Our People

Build a harmonious and safe
working environment while
achieving people-orientation
and care for employees

BEET

NS N EEH
TEIRIR - RIREIR
IABR WREEET

> A Environmental
Holdings Limited

RIR HEREBRSE

AFERRESE

1??%*§EQ¢&EHEE’\J%T%7?$¥%
HHEEAHUNTELAR  BFRIRR
ﬁ,\fﬁ—IFﬁ“@ﬁﬁﬁmf&' E it -
HMEHTERE HERERBENAR
MMERERERE BEEXHPARELE
WA FERLY  RRERERERBEREZ -
BxEEkedzr EakBRBET K
ESkBRERESHRAZEEY  HE
AT—RERRT EHZEMEARAFEH
o ARETHHEHMAKMERET
SELRMTERE  BERMEKR:

Creating Green Fortune

Deliver high-quality
environmental protection
solutions to mitigate pollution
and reduce environmental
impact

RIERBME

REEERBERTRE
PURE 5 R EIR B &

Contributing to the
Community

Encourage employees to
participate in voluntary
activities and actively

contribute to community

HESE
SRR B2 EEEEE
&R BB LR

BRABRERERAT —B-—FFH
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CREATING GREEN FORTUNE

Being an environmental solutions provider with a leading
position in the PRC and Indonesia, ELL Environmental sees
bringing positive impact on the environment as its core and
fundamental responsibility, thereupon we are in stringent
compliance with applicable laws and regulations in the
jurisdictions where we operate to regulate our environmental
performance as well as the health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating to our environmental
solutions business, including but not limited to the
Environmental Protection Law of the PRC, the Atmospheric
Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC, the Water
Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC, the Law
of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution by Solid Waste, Law No. 32/2009 on Environmental
Protection and Management, Government Regulation No.
41/1999 on Air Pollution Control, Government Regulation No.
101/2014 on Management of Hazardous Waste and Toxic, Law
No. 7/2004 on Water Resources, the Regulation of the Minister
of Energy and Mineral Resources No. 12/2017 on Utilization of
Renewable Energy Sources for Power Supply of the Republic of
Indonesia, as well as the Advertising Law of the PRC. We have
implemented comprehensive policies and measures to regulate
our daily operations to ensure the quality of our services and
handling of our own emissions and use of resources. During the
Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any material non-
compliance concerning relevant laws and regulations.
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AIR, GHG EMISSIONS AND USE OF ENERGY

The air,

and other equipment,

Managing air
emissions

BIEBERBEN

Minimizing odor

B RIR

Optimizing use of
energy

B REIRH

greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions and energy
consumption of the Group are mainly attributed to purchased
electricity, fuel consumption of company vehicles, machinery
as well as air pollutants and odor
generated during operations. Being an environmental solutions
service provider, we ought to take up our responsibility to
reduce our air and GHG emissions, as well as optimize the use
of energy in order to combat global warming and climate

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIR HEREBRSE

BEE - - RERBEHERMERENER

AEBMER REREBHERNERHE
REIZRENBE NCIRR R
K HA R M) MR ERE - LR EEEM
EENERSEPHRER - ER—RR
rAORERRD  BABXNBEBLER
&/'Zﬁﬁi‘fﬁkﬁﬂlﬂﬁfﬁc I B B RE
TROBRE - DA FE R = KB AR R 2 1L ]

;Eé o

Build an atmospheric environmental protection zone
surrounding our wastewater treatment facilities to minimize
the negative impact of air pollutants imposed on residents
in the neighborhood
ERKRERMASERARRRERER  FERI=
REAMEREERNEAEFE

Conduct regular inspection on air pollutants to ensure
emissions meet the requirements of relevant laws and

regulations
ETEHRA - BRBERERMEHBEERRINE
Sk

Build deodorization facilities in the wastewater treatment
facilities

EEKEERERZMBETHRR

Adopt biological deodorization technology in Rugao Hengfa
Facilities

FEIN 2R B R M R EVAE Y R R Bl

Plant trees surrounding the wastewater treatment facilities
to absorb odor
/KRR A EREEE A - AR RK

Store and transport waste properly to minimize the
generation of odor
ZERGNEHEY URERLERNES

Turn off the engines of vehicles when being idled
MERERMBESIE

Require employees to turn off electrical appliances while
leaving

ERETIMARKBERESS

Turning down the air flowrate of blowers according to

the quality and level of dissolved oxygen of incoming
wastewater in our wastewater treatment facilities to reduce
use of energy

1B A BUS AOKE MR R AR RIES A KA R - I
B
BRERERERAT —B-—FEH

4

33



®

34

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERHRE

WASTE EMISSIONS

In view of our business nature, we generate certain non-
hazardous as well as hazardous waste, including sludge, waste
oil, used battery, general refuse, chemicals, jerry cans and oil
filter etc. We acknowledge that such waste emissions would
impose certain burden on the environment, and hence we
are devoted to managing our emissions in a stringent manner
by promoting the concept of reducing waste at source and
handling waste emissions properly. We have set up a waste
management system to guide our employees to separate
different types of non-recyclable waste, recyclable waste and
hazardous waste. Our wastewater plants have hazardous waste
storage facilities to temporarily store hazardous waste in an
appropriate manner and to store chemicals in a safe manner to
prevent spills. We have engaged sanitation service providers to
collect general refuse and screener residue, and also engaged
third parties with required qualifications to collect and handle
dewatered sewage sludge generated from wastewater facilities.

Besides, we also advocate the concept of “green office” and
minimize the use of office paper to reduce waste at source by
encouraging employees to adopt electronic communication,
double-sided printing and reusing single-sided paper.

WASTEWATER EMISSIONS AND USE OF WATER

We consume a certain amount of municipal water and
underground water to support our daily operations. We did
not encounter any problem during water sourcing. To treasure
scarce water resource, we highly advocate the idea of reusing
wastewater by using treated wastewater to clean equipment.

Furthermore, our daily operations would generate wastewater.
Apart from treating wastewater generated from our Rugao
Hengfa and Haian Hengfa wastewater treatment facilities before
discharge, we have also built a wastewater treatment facility
in RPSL to treat industrial wastewater, as well as septic tanks
to treat municipal wastewater before discharge. It would also
conduct regular inspection on water quality to ensure it meets
the requirement of Government Regulation No. 82/2001 on the
Management of Water Quality. Inspection criteria include TSS,
pH, metals and phosphate etc.
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NOISE EMISSIONS

During daily operations, our plants would generate noise that
may cause negative impact to the surroundings. In order to
minimize such impact to the surroundings, we have deployed
the following measures:

o Prioritize the purchase of low-noise equipment

° Install vibration absorber and damping base to lower noise
generated from equipment

° Install rubber damper on windows and doors to absorb
noise

° Plant trees or bamboos exterior to the plants to absorb
noise

° Conduct regular inspection to ensure equipment are in
good conditions without noise from friction or loose parts

MANAGING IMPACT ON ENVIRONMENT AND
NATURAL RESOURCES

ELL Environmental strives to identify and properly manage the
impact imposed on the environment and natural resources in
relations to our daily operations, hoping to minimize the Group’s
carbon footprint and bring a positive impact to the environment.

For RPSL in Indonesia, since we are building the production
plant for our biofuel pellet production business, we have
conducted an environmental impact assessment to identify
and assess the environmental impact in view of construction to
ensure that we do not impose material negative impact on the
surrounding environment. The environmental assessment report
has listed out the emissions including waste, air emissions,
wastewater etc. and corresponding measures to properly handle
and reduce such emissions in order to lower the burden on the
environment.
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CLIMATE RESILIENCE STRATEGIES

We have incorporated physical, chronic and transitional risks
relating to climate change risks in our risk assessments
and strategies. We reference the Financial Stability Board’s
Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures (TCFD)
framework in the management of climate-related risks and
opportunities. The climate-related risks and opportunities
identified for the Group are:

RAR B SR

B AR B AT G MBS Py AT B R/ R
BrRBREEAOSEER EHEETEM
BEERR BMEEEEIEEEAD
ERFEER 2ETeREBTLEET
®) 1% H8 B8 B1 75 15 B 3 B8 TYE 48 (TCFD)
MIER - AEERBREMNEREHEABENOR
e R o

Risks
= B

Acute physical risk

Extreme weather event such as a super typhoon or other causing flooding, damage

to buildings and facilities, resulting in asset impairment and increased maintenance

costs.
SHEERR
HAEBREM -

Chronic physical risk

Bim R REN - MBREESEMENK  BEMREEE  SHEEREM

Long term change in climate such as a rainfall patterns causing repeated flooding

which affect the effectiveness of normal operation and speed up the replacement

need of equipment.
B EERR
MERE K -

Transitional risks
operation.

B

Opportunities
Hia

Sustainable cities

RIENEHEL  MEFEAERREHKL

TELRETHHER  INERE

Increase in ESG related policies and legal requirements increase our cost of

ESGHBBEINZEZZERLWEMMET HMHOELKE -

Increase in market demand of wastewater treatment and new energy enhance the

number of available projects in the market that allow us to participate in and grow

our business.
AEELE
BN BERBMIAZERS -

To address the opportunities and risks of climate change, we
have formulated a new Environmental, Social and Governance
Management Policy which includes climate change strategy
to strengthen our governance, enhance our climate-risk
management and improve our performance. We have also set
targets to reduce the scope 1 and 2 GHG emissions intensity, in
order to mitigate our impact on climate change.
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ENVIRONMENTAL KPIS

RIR HEREBRSE

REFTHNERERER

Environmental Performance 2021 2020  Unit
BRRA “B--f C—T-TF Bf
Emissions B
Air Emissions BR¥EK
Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) RALPI(NOK) 138.81 17343 kg B fF
Sulphur Oxides (SOx) a1t ¥(S0y 1.50 134 kg Af
Particulate Matters (PM) B2 B R (PM) 2.81 261 kg DT
GHG Emissions Eﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ
Total GHG Emissions (Scope 1 & Scope 2) EREHNEE(EHE— 8,860.76 9,337.65 tonnes of COse
&%BI_) n @ %1&%;;
Direct Emissions (Scope 1) ERER(EE-) 39.37 55.49  tonnes of COze
AM-EIIREE
Indirect Emissions (Scope 2)' REER(EED) 8,827.60 9,286.25  tonnes of COse
AM-EIIREE
GHG Removal (Scope 1) BERERKEHE—) 6.21 4,09 tonnes of COxe
AM-EIIREE
GHG Emissions (Scope 1 & Scope 2) 55'?‘5‘%5? (8 E— Rk 66.35 56.36  tonnes of COse
Intensity (per floor area) D)EE(BEEER) AE- G EE
Hazardous and Non-hazardous Wastes ﬁg& BEREY
Total Hazardous Waste Produced EXMAEREYES 4.55 313  tones I
Hazardous Waste Intensity (per floor area) BXEEYTE(BEEER) 0.03 002 kg/m2 AfT/FHAK
Total Non-hazardous Waste Produced EENBEEREYRE 24,012.45 24,198.87  tones AWM
General Refuse — B EEY) 1517 12.60  tonnes A M
Sludge 5 23,997.28 24,186.27  tonnes AW
Non-hazardous Waste Intensity (per floor area) &=gEEHE (SEEEE) 179.82 146.06  kg/m2 AT/ FAK
Use of Resources BEEH
Energy B R
Total Energy Consumption RREREEE 11,120.86 11,688.81 MWh T TEE
Purchased Electricity INBE N 10,967.29 11,488.36 MWh FETRE
Diesel Oil i 110.71 142,60 MWh T8 FE &
Liquefied Natural Gas BRIEXAR 4.99 430 MwWh TETER
Unleaded Petrol |3 37.87 53.55 MWh T8 T &
Energy Consumption Intensity (per floor area) EERERZE (BEEEE) 83.28 7055 MWh TREE/FHX
Water X
Total Water Consumption BHKE 13,954.00 15,347.79 md M A K
Water Consumption Intensity (per floor area) H%?k” E(EEEEE) 0.10 009 m¥mesLhK,/

Remarks:

U Unless otherwise stated, the calculation methodology referred to
“How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance
on Environmental KPIs” issued by HKEX and “EMEP/EEA Air Pollutant
Emission Inventory Guidebook” issued by European Environment

Agency.
e The emission factor for Scope 2 emissions from RPSL adopted from
the latest sustainability reports of the local power companies.

g Due to business nature, the Group is not involved in the use of

packaging material for finished products.

feE

i KRIESHRB  TEHELESEBRHA
BHAN(IAEESRE HEREARSE
— Mt RBEEEBIEEREER)
MEBUNIRIR B MW fEMEP/EEAf R5%
MERBERE F M-

2 RPSLMEEHREBE KB TEME A
AMEHASEERES -

3 HREBELD  REETSRKREEM
KR -

BEET
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CARING OUR PEOPLE

ELL Environmental sees every employee as the cornerstone in
contributing to the Group’s sustainable development. We are
dedicated to rewarding our employees with a healthy and safe
workplace together with a harmonious and supportive work
atmosphere through stringent compliance with relevant labour
laws and regulations, including but not limited to the “Labour
Law of the PRC” the “Labour Contract Law of the PRC”,
“Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour” and the
Government Regulation No. 50/2012 on the Implementation
of Occupational Safety and Health Management Systems
of the Republic of Indonesia to formulate policies in terms
of compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare so as to protect
the interests of our employees. During the Reporting Period, the
Group was not aware of any material breaches of relevant laws
and regulations.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2021 Annual Report

BRERRGEBUEIREDHAEEAHF
BREMNED - BB HIWE T HwIAR
BZE2OITEREMBAMEZNIER
Ao BFIEBEEFEHERBEIEERN &
FRETRR(FEARAXMBESEE) (F
EARAMBEHERE) (FELLER
BETIREILENRONERAZHMEE i
B R 2 iR B E IR B E 5550/20125% BT
AR LHIEEEMELER  BRER
B TIERE - KERER TEEE -
Z At RO B EL A AR B A BSR - IA
REETINHEZR KRBEHHE AEHE
WAMBEMERNEZRBEERZRAD
HE I ©



4

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE  HERERBRE

EMPLOYEE OVERVIEW EEME

As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed a total of 103 A2021F12831H - £ & X & (& 71034
employees!, 57 employees located in PRC and 46 employees B I' HFS57ZETNRNFE 465 8
located in Indonesia. All employees are full time. The following I fIREIE - FTAELHEZ 2B - AT
shows the distributions of employees by gender, employment =EEZXMR - MEEMNNMFEH N D H
type and age B

By Gender
el

I B . [ | By Employment Type

2021 2020 ¥
EEER|
m Male 75 64
S
mFemale
LM 28 26
By Age
it
il II II I I
2021 2020 | ]
m 20 or below 2021 2020
2083k LA T 0 0 m  Senior
management 6 13
'21'3042 31 16 SREEE
21-3073% .
m  Middle
m31-40 management 13 8
31-405% . 43 HRERE
41-50 m Technical staff
19 15 i 20 18
41-505% BB T
N General staff
o160 11 11 ! 64 51
51-607%% —®ET
61 or above
615%sk A E 4 5
Note: M EE -
1 The number of employee only includes employee of Haian Hengfa, ETASERESLZERE WMEHEZEMD
Rugao Hengfa and PT Rimba Palma Sejahtera Lestari. JERPSLHYE L o
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During the Reporting Period, the employee turnover rate? by
gender, age group and geographical region is as below:

By Age
Firk

2021
m 20 or below
208U T 0%

m21-30
By Gender 21-305% ile
4 Rl m31-40 e,
31-40%% °
1= e %
T 41-50%%

m Male 51-60 o

= 16% 51-60%% 9%
mFemale 61 or above

it 4% s1gEsA L 2%

EQUALITY AND WORK-LIFE BALANCE

Being a responsible employer, ELL Environmental strives to
maintain a harmonious workplace and respecting labour rights
in line with applicable labour laws, regulations and standards.
Throughout the processes of recruitment, determination of
remuneration and promotion, provision of training and other
human resources related processes, we have been upholding
the principles of diversity, equality and anti-discrimination by
treating every employee equally regardless of their gender, age,
race, religion, marital status, nationality, or sexual orientation.

Note:

e Employee turnover rate is calculated by number of employee turnover

in a category divided by total number of employee in that category.
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The Group pays competitive remuneration and benefits to our
employees as a compensation for their hard work contributed
to the Group’s development. They are paid with basic salary,
allowances and bonuses. We would review the remuneration
system to ensure it is in line with the market level. The Group
also contributes to pension, medical, unemployment, maternity,
work-related insurance and housing provident fund for
employees in the PRC, as well as pension, health insurance,
work-related insurance and termination compensation for
employees in Indonesia according to legal requirements. In
addition, we also offer employees with a multitude of benefits to
attract and retain them:

Holidays and Leaves o Public holidays
iz B8 e  NHMEH
o Statutory holidays
e JEEMRHA
° Sick leave
e AR
° Marriage leave
e  BR
Monetary benefits ° Medical allowance
G e EERER

° Overtime allowance
e INIEERL

o Discretionary bonus
e BIBIEA

o Mourning allowance
L4 Gk

Other benefits o Health insurance
H b 18 e EBERR

° Company trip
e RAEIKT

RIR HEREBRSE

AEBERBETITHRUEBREFNNFTIN LR
Mo AREMPAHANEEBEROER
BREEXRGFH mUuLED - ZMEHE
BHMGIE - ERFMERE IS KFE -
AEBENTERBEVRE RTENE
TRHEEERR  BERR  <ERR-
EERBR IERBRMEEAES I
REEMBETRHEEZRE - @FREERR -
THERBRANKIEREES - U - &
MERESBRANARSIABLERT:

o Maternity leave

e EfR

° Compassionate leave
o R

° Annual leave

e  F1

° Religious holiday allowance
e RYEHRRE

o Meal allowance

e RBRRE

o High temperature subsidies
s ERMA

o Festive gift cards
e HHRS

o Health check

s REE®RE

BEBRERERAT B —EEH
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EMPLOYEES’ WELLBEING

Regarding the spread of COVID-19 throughout the world, the
Group understands that it is our core responsibility to safeguard
the wellbeing of every of our employees. We abide by relevant
laws and regulations to protect the health and safety of
employees, including but not limited to the “Work Safety Law
of the PRC” and the “Government Regulation No. 50/2012 on
Implementation of Occupational Safety and Health Management
Systems” of the Republic of Indonesia by formulating and
implementing stringent occupational health and safety
measures, including:

° Providing suitable Personal Protective Equipment (“PPE”)
to employees such as gloves, work clothes, masks, ear
plug, ear muff, safety helmet and welding glasses

° Conducting regular inspection to ensure fire-fighting
equipment, facilities and electrical appliances are in good
conditions

o Conducting fire and emergency drills and training on a
regular basis to ensure employees are equipped with
relevant knowledge and skills

o Arranging designated personnel to be responsible for
overseeing the safety of the work area

° Organizing sport and other activities from time to time,
allowing employees to get relaxed in leisure time

In addition to the above measures, the Group has been doing
its very best to comply with pandemic prevention measures
imposed by the local government and implement control
measures to fight against COVID-19. We would check the
body temperature of employees, provide medical masks to
employees, and requiring third parties to register when entering
our offices and plants, aiming at minimizing the risk of spread of
virus in the workplace.

During the past three years including the Reporting Period,
the Group was not aware of any work-related fatalities. there
was one minor work-related injuries in Indonesia during the
Reporting Period and resulted in 1 man-day lost.
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EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT

We believe that it is important to provide adequate trainings and
promotion opportunities in order to allow our employees to grow
together with the Group.

In terms of promotion, we strive to build and maintain a
comprehensive career development ladder in which employees
can get promoted equally. Promotion will take the results of
performance appraisal into consideration. The appraisal is
conducted on a regular basis to evaluate the work performance,
abilities and skills of employees.

In terms of training, we offer abundant training opportunities
to employees by formulating a series of training programs for
employees to pursue professional knowledge and skills to strive
for excellence. During the Reporting Period, training topics we
have offered include:

o Water quality analysis

Wastewater treatment operation

o Occupational health and safety

Firefighting and disaster response

RIR HEREBRSE
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Throughout the year, the total number of training hours
exceeded 200 hours, the drop of training hours is mainly due to
the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic. The charts below
show the percentage of employees trained® by gender and
employee category, as well as average training hours completed
per employee by gender and employee type:

PR S HIRE - TAPT O 5 )| 4B B BB 38200
MBI EOHOTEREEEEZHRN
COVID-19R 15 EPTE - T HH B X #
RTRMERIMEE B S D EBEI
LeBls - A RIRMERIFEBERE DN E
FEEFHTRNBINERE -

T

Training ratio by gender
IERIE D XN B

= Male £ = Female &

Average training hours
completed per
employee by gender
®RUREI S EUER
SR AT 495 3185

Training ratio by
employment type

REEERNEI D ZIILB

Senior management =4k & 12 E
Middle management H A% & 12 [E
Technical staff 178 T
General staff —f8E T

Average training hours
completed per employee by
employment type
RESEREDNEMIES
SEAREN T 495 3185

- 2021 2021
® Viale 3.93 m Management
2 o 2.14
m Female EEE
o 5.08 m Technical staff
I e 1.88
HiTET
u General staff
_®ET 5.43
Note: Bt 5 -
3 Employee training ratio is calculated by number of employee received 3 BIRILOINFERZEZRE—BEIHR

training during the Reporting Period in a category divided by total

number of employee in that category.
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LABOUR STANDARDS

We strive to become a desirable and responsible employer.
Therefore, we are in stringent compliance with applicable labour
standards in the jurisdictions where we operate, and strictly
prohibit the recruitment of child and forced labour within the
Group. During recruitment, we would verify the personal identity
documents of candidates to ensure they have met legal working
age to prevent the occurrence of child labour. Besides, we
have clearly outlined the arrangements in terms of rest periods,
leave, overtime work, working hours, dismissal etc. in relevant
policies to prevent forced labour. In the case of staff resignation
or dismissal, the Group would provide adequate compensations
to the corresponding employees in line with applicable labour-
related laws and regulations.

Any case of employment of illegal or forced labour will be
investigated and dealt with in accordance with respective laws
and regulations set out by the local government and authorities.
During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
child or forced labour within the Group.

RIR HEREBRSE
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MANAGING SUPPLIERS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has worked with a total
of 594 suppliers who are mainly local suppliers such that we
could help minimize the greenhouse gas emissions generated
due to transportation to reduce carbon footprint. The following
chart shows the distribution of the suppliers by geographical
locations:

EEHER

R2021F12 A31H » A& B X EH504F {#
[EEAtE TEAAMHER - EHM
BEARNBEREHMEKNAEE REHE
W mmR A RES e AT AREESN
bl o 5

il i AR OERE g
Singapore, Mainland Beiing. 6. Fujian, 3 =
1 China, 56 eling, ©— : Guangdong , 1
BRI S ; \
Malaysia,
2 78 Shanghai,
7
LA |
Zhejiang, TEE
2 Jiangsu,
37
EIfE
Indonesia,
535

Being a responsible corporate citizen, we understand that we
ought to take up the responsibility to manage the environmental
and social impacts of suppliers in order to bring positive impact
to the entire supply chain. The Group has established the
Code of Conduct, expecting our suppliers to always uphold
environmental, social and governance principles, including
environmental protection, labour rights, labour standards, anti-
corruption etc. when providing products and services. We
would conduct regular assessments to ensure that they have
complied with this Code of Conduct. If any suppliers are found
not to comply with the Code of Conduct, we may terminate the
partnership or require them to take corrective measures. We
have conducted our review on 51 suppliers located in Mainland
China this year.
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Apart from managing the environmental and social risks of
suppliers, we also carry out stringent management on their
product and service quality, which is believed to have an
important impact on the quality of our businesses. While
selecting new suppliers, we would conduct assessments on
the qualifications, product and service quality, price, reputation
etc. of candidate suppliers in order to select those who can
meet our requirements. Besides, we also conduct assessments
on existing suppliers to ensure they have been meeting our
expectations at all times.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY
PRIVACY PROTECTION

The daily operations of our business would involve a number
of customers’ information and confidential information such as
business information and financial information of the Group.
In order to protect the privacy of such information to ease
the concerns of our customers, the Group pledges to handle
such information in a careful manner. The measures we have
implemented in relations to privacy protection include but not
limited to:

° Require employees to comply with the terms outlined in
our personnel management policy and employee handbook
and not to disclose privacy information to the third parties
without prior consent

o Use passwords for computers which store confidential
information

° Hard copies of sensitive materials are stored in a
designated place with electronic lock and 24-hour
surveillance cameras

ADVERTISING

The Group is in strict compliance with the Advertising Law of the
PRC and other applicable laws and regulations while preparing
promotional materials. We will review the promotion materials
before publishing to ensure there is no misleading information to
protect consumer rights.

Due to our business nature, product labelling is not a material
issue to the Group.
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ANTICORRUPTION
UPHOLDING BUSINESS ETHICS AND INTEGRITY

The Group strictly abides by the “Law of the PRC on Anti-Unfair
Competition”, the “Criminal Law of the PRC”, “Interim Provisions
on Banning Commercial Bribery”, Hong Kong’s “Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance” and other relevant laws and regulations and
prohibits the occurrence of corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering within the Group. We have introduced
the Anti-corruption Policy and Code of Conduct, requiring our
employees to maintain business ethics and integrity at all times.
We have also established the Whistleblowing Policy in which
employees and other third parties can report suspicious cases
or other misconducts to us with their identities kept confidential.
We will conduct prompt investigation and take corresponding
follow-up actions seriously to protect the rights of the Group
and our stakeholders. The Group would also arrange training to
raise employees’ awareness in relevant issues from time to time.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
any material non-compliance relating to corruption, bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering. The Group did not
provide anti-corruption training to directors and staff during the
Reporting Period due to the outbreak of COVID-19 but we will
try to do so in near future when the situation is allowed.

CONTRIBUTING TO COMMUNITY

ELL Environmental pledges to listen to and address community
needs as we are dedicated to striking a balance in business
development and community investment which is believed to be
a core principle of our sustainable strategy. We work delicately
in wastewater treatment and participating in new energy which
benefit the community as a whole, but the Group has no
specific focus on what area should be investing. It allocated
adequate resources and each year in community investment
and advocating our employees to volunteer to showcase our
effort in taking up corporate social responsibility.

During the Reporting Period, the Group encourages its staff to
contribute to community works. However, there is no numerical
record of money or time contributed to the focus area.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE  HERERHRS

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE R - 4t EREBRERERS
REPORTING GUIDE INDEX

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance indicators
(“KPIs”) Section/Declaration

TEER EH -REBERBREMNER B/ B9

A. Environmental

A B5

Aspect A1: Emissions

EEA:ERY

General Disclosure Creating Green Fortune
—BRERE BlERENE

Information on:

FRABRLEERBHR RARLEOHES AEREEBRREVNNEL

e

08

(@  the policies; and
@ HER

(o) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer

b) BTHETAREAZENHEBLIERAN

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

HEF -
KPI A1 1 The types of emissions and respective emission data. Key Environmental Eigures
B EMIERAL R ERERABERAE - BETENARGEHER
KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse
BREVIEEALL gas emissions and intensity.
ER@EEVRERAZEE)REZRABHNERLE -
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity.
BREBERAS MELBEZERNEERTE -
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity.
HREMIERALL MELREEENEEREE
KPI A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to Creating Green Fortune
BREMIEGTALS achieve them. BlERENE
BT UMEREEERAENELERMEARNAER
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
BRERIEEAG are handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them. )
MLBEAEREERER M A - R M A AT KRR
BEERAEINELAGHARMMNTE

BRABRERERAT —B-—FFH
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RIE - HERERHRE

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance indicators
(“KPIs”) Section/Declaration

IEER EH -REBERBRENER

Aspect A2: Use of Resources
EHA2: ERER

General Disclosure Creating Green Fortune
—RKE BlERERE

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw
materials.

BRERER(BEELR KR MR PR -

Note: Resources may be used in production, in storage, transportation, in buildings,
glectronio equipment, etc.
g ARUBREE BE E® BF ETRES

KPI'A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total Key Environmental Figures
B ENIEEA2 and intensity. REFAMNBERERER
RENESMERR /SIBBEGRERERTE o

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity.
BB IR RA2.2 BRKEREE -

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps Creating Green Fortune
MREMIERA23 taken to achieve them. BliEREnE
BTV REAMNSERERAENELARMEKR
WL -
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water
BRENIEEA24 that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps

taken to achieve them.
WSk BUER KR LA BEMERE - DA RFTET M A KR
HERERBEINELERHAMMSE o

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products and with | Not applicable to the Group’s business
B EIEIEA25 reference to per unit produced. TERARAEENER
BRmAaEMHNEE UEE) R(WER) BEE
B g -
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance indicators
(“KPIs”)

IEER EH -REBERBRENER

Aspect A3: Environmental and Natural Resources
EHA: BRRAARER

BRiR - HERERKRS

Section/Declaration

General Disclosure

—RBE

Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and natural
resources.

BEBTAHRERAREREXNEAT EOUE -

Managing Impact on Environment and
Natural Resources
ERURENEREROTE

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the

R RN EAS environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.
HLXBERHRERRARERNEAYEREEMER
BRT BN -

Aspect A4: Climate Change
EBEAL: RIREL

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.
BAREHESRAIREHETAELYENEARBEBEENRE -

Climate Resilience Strategies
IR E M S

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which

MR E MR 2 AL have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and
the actions taken to manage them.

AR R e HETAELR ENERRGEBESEE
REHTTE -

BRABRERERAT —B-—FFH

4
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RIE - HERERHRE

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance indicators
(“KPIs”) Section/Declaration

IREE BH -REBERBRANER

B. Social

B.#&

Employment and Labour Standards
ERRETER

Aspect B1: Employment
EEB1: ER

General Disclosure Caring Our People
—RBE WMEET

Information on:
BFREMEBE REREA IR BE FERS Sl REBUARE
i 15 38 R dg M A -

(@) the policies; and
@ BX Rk

QO

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer

b)) HETHETAREAZENHEBERRAN

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
pe(iods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

SELE
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and | Employee Overview
B S BUR 1R geographical region. EEHE

BUR - EREE(WEBIFRE) FRdninRE S

MESRE -
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and
B9 E MIE1ERT2 geographical region.

BUR - FRANRMEASNERSRELE -
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance indicators
(“KPIs”) Section/Declaration

IEER EH -REBERBRENER

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
EEB2 REEZ2

General Disclosure Employees’ Wellbeing
—HREE EIREK

Information on:

FRARHZ2TEREARERERCBELEEN:

(@)  the policies; and
@ BX Rk

QO

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer

b) EFTHETABEAYENERERZRAN

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

AR -

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each

W A UEEB21 of the past three years including the reporting year.
BE=F(BREERFE)BFRAITHNABRLE -

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury.

BB B MIE1RB2.2 AIBBAIERE -

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures

BB ENIE1ER2.3 adopted, how they are implemented and monitored.
HERANBEREEZ2ER  UREBAHTRER
bz

Aspect B3: Development and Training

EEB3: & R

General Disclosure Employee Development
—RKE BI%R

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work.
Description of training activities.

FRARNEERTIERENNZRRENEEK - HlEIES -

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and

MR 5 B 12 B3 employee category. -
BRUENREEEREPOZIEEBALL

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by

MR A B 1ER3.2 gender and employee category.

BURNRERRRE D  BHREETHRINFHEL -

BREREREBRLQF RO -EER 53
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance indicators
(“KPIs”) Section/Declaration

IEER EH -REBERBRENER

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[BEB4: HTEE

General Disclosure Labour Standards
—BHE LTER

Information on:

BRMIEETHRHSIMN:

(@)  the policies; and
@ BX Rk

QO

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer

b) EFTHETABEAYENERERZRAN

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

MEH -
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to
B R B 5B avoid child and forced labour.
HARBREINRBAIMEL R EMENEE -
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when
BB ENIEEB4.2 discovered. -
HATERERMERERAERE
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance indicators
(“KPIs”)

IEER EH -REBERBRENER

Operating Practices
ZEED

B - HEREBRRS

Section/Declaration

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
EEBS: ftERERE

General Disclosure

—RBE

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.
ERHERNRRERMERABIE o

Managing Suppliers
BEMER

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.

B 5 %8 W15 12 B5.1 BpEBADNEEBEE -

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
R ENIEERS.2 number of suppliers where the practices are being

implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.
MR EBEREERANED  RERTEBENNMHERS
$E ARBBERTRERSE -

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental
MR ENIEER5.3 and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
HEEABNEEEASERONRERLSARNER
UREBRTRERTE -

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally
MR EMIEEB5.4 preferable products and services when selecting suppliers,
and how they are implemented and monitored.
HREREREASEESARRERRRBENOED - I
RABRIRERENE -

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
EEB6: EmEE

General Disclosure

—RBE

Information on:

FRMRHEERNRENREERZ2 B SELMBSEARBRITAN

a)  the policies; and
@ BxR: &

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer

b) BTHETAREAZENHEBLERMAN

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of redress.

HEH -

Creating Green Fortune
BlERENE

BREREREBRLQF

RO

4
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RE HERER

HE

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance indicators

(“KPIs”) Section/Declaration

TERER EEH - REERBRENER

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to Not applicable to the Group’s business

B 2 48 WUIE 12.B6.1 recalls for safety and health reasons. TERRAEENES
EERDERERAYTRR 2 AR ERAMARNKNE
A e

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service-related complaints received | No significant complaints received.

AR A M 1R 1RB6.2 and how they are dealt with. BB E KR
BEEBREmRBRBENORFUBAREE L -

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting | Not applicable to the Group’s business

MR EMIE1EB6.3 intellectual property rights. TEANARENER
HREEERRRABEETHNED -

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall Not applicable to the Group’s business

PR NIERB64 procedures. \ TERRA GBI XS
HlEERTABRERBRKRER -

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, | Privacy Protection

MR R 1EB6.5 and how they are implemented and monitored. \ BirE
BEEEERRERALBHE - UREBRTRERSE -

Aspect B7: Anticorruption

EEB7:RES

General Disclosure Anticorruption

—RRE RERER

Information on:

BRAMLHR BT

(@) the policies; and

@ HBE:R

QO

issuer

b)) BIHETAREX

relating to bribery, extortion

HEH -

REFRARER -

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the

FENRBEERAD

, fraud and money laundering.

KPI BT
A% AR 1R BT

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the issuer or its employees during
the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.
REGPAHETARHEERLIBELANETHAE
HHOBERFRER -

KPI B7.2
B R MIERBT.2

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored.

WA BEERERER  AREERTREENE -

KPI B7.3
W EWMIEIERTS

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors
and staff. o
HomESREIRBNRE RS
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance indicators
(“KPIs”) Section/Declaration

IEER EH -REBERBRENER

Community

&

Aspect B8: Community Investment

EEBS : HERE

General Disclosure Contributing to Community
—BRRE #HERE R

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities where
the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’
interests.

AR E2ERTREEMEHRREENRRAEBEDEZRAHBNENEE -

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental
W E IR 1EBS. concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).
EIEREE(WHE BEEHE SIRK BF -
BE)
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus
MR ENIEERS.2 area.
FEIGRMAPAER(MEERER) -

BREREREBRLQF RO -EER 57
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Details

EENRSREERZBABE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen

Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen, aged 74, was appointed as a Director
of the Company on 18 March 2014 and was re-designated as
the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) and an executive
Director of the Company on 5 September 2014. He has been
the chairman of the nomination committee of the Board (the
“Nomination Committee”) since 5 September 2014. Mr.
Chau also holds directorships in certain subsidiaries of the
Company and is mainly responsible for business development
and formulation of strategies of the Group. He joined the Group
in December 2002 as a director of Everbest Water Treatment
Development Company Limited (“Everbest”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Chau is a director of and
owns 90% of the issued shares in Wealthy Sea Holdings Limited
(“Wealthy Sea”), a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Chau obtained a bachelor’'s degree in Chinese language
and literature from Xiamen University (B P9 X Z) in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) in August 1968. He is currently a
member of the 12th National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference (FE A RBIAHE € %), a
deputy officer of the Social and Legal Affairs Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (& B B 1
e MEHZBE) and the vice chairman and the secretary-
general of the 10th board of directors of the Hong Kong
Federation of Fujian Associations (& /& 1@ & 4L E B &). Mr. Chau
was awarded a Bronze Bauhinia Star and a Silver Bauhinia Star
by the Hong Kong government in 2010 and 2016, respectively.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Details

Mr. Chau has held directorships in various companies listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Mr. Chau was the chairman and an executive
director of China Ocean Industry Group Limited (stock code:
651) from September 2007 and had ceased to be the chairman
from June 2015 and was re-designated as the non-executive
director and appointed as the honorary chairman from June
2015 to November 2019. Mr. Chau has also been appointed
as an independent non-executive director of Redco Properties
Group Limited (stock code: 1622), Come Sure Group (Holdings)
Limited (stock code: 794), Million Hope Industries Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1897) and Beijing Enterprises Water Group
Limited (stock code: 371) since January 2014, February 2009,
June 2020 and April 2021, respectively. Mr. Chau has been
an independent non-executive director of Good Resources
Holdings Limited (stock code: 109) since July 2019 and has
been re-designated as its executive director and chairman
since September 2021. Mr. Chau had also been an executive
director of Rosan Resources Holdings Limited (stock code: 578)
from March 2000 to November 2006, an independent non-
executive director of Hao Wen Holdings Limited (stock code:
8019) from June 2003 to August 2009, GR Properties Limited
(stock code: 108) from December 2008 to September 2010,
Leyou Technologies Holdings Limited (stock code: 1089) from
December 2010 to May 2016 and Hang Pin Living Technology
Company Limited (formerly known as Hua Long Jin Kong
Company Limited) (stock code: 1682) from September 2017 to
April 2021. Mr. Chau is the father of Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny, an
executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Chan Kwan

Mr. Chan Kwan, aged 39, was appointed as a Director of the
Company on 25 February 2014 and was re-designated as
an executive Director and the chief executive officer of the
Company (the “CEO”) on 5 September 2014. He has been a
member of the Nomination Committee since 5 September 2014.
Mr. Chan also holds directorships in certain subsidiaries of the
Company and is mainly responsible for all major affairs of the
Group, including project construction and operation, business
development, marketing and formulation of strategies. Mr. Chan
joined the Group in March 2007 as a director of Everbest. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Chan was a database administrator at
Panda Restaurant Group, Inc. in Los Angeles, the United States
of America (“US”), from February 2005 to December 2006.

EEREREEEZBABE
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YRZE—RAFNAEZE—NF+—A
WRATEENTEEREZAAREE
BeBrEEnE_E—NWF—AH =%
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EENRSREERZBABE

Mr. Chan obtained a bachelor’'s degree in science from the
lowa State University of Science and Technology in the US in
December 2004. He is a member of the 12th Fujian Province
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference (FREIARBUGHEEZRBEEZLZET), a standing
committee member of the 10th board of directors of the Hong
Kong Federation of Fujian Associations (& /& & &2t B <),
the chief supervisor of the 10th Hong Kong Minxi Association
Ltd. (& B E B 2), the vice-president of the 11th Supervision
Committee of Lung Yen Residents Association of Hong Kong
Limited (B8 8E &R €), and the president of the 2nd Hong
Kong Federation of Overseas Chinese Youth Committee (& 7 %
B2 A #2€). Mr. Chan is the elder brother of Mr. Chan Pak Lam
Brian, the non-executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Chan is the sole director of and holds a 20% shareholding
interest in Everbest Environmental Investment Limited
(“Everbest Environmental”), a controlling shareholder of the
Company. Mr. Chan also owns 20% of the issued shares in
Kingdrive Limited (“Kingdrive”). Kingdrive owned all the issued
shares in Carlton Asia Limited which owns approximately 1.42%
of the issued shares of the Company.

Mr. Radius Suhendra

Mr. Radius Suhendra, aged 48, was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company on 21 October 2016. Mr. Suhendra
is mainly responsible for all major affairs of an Indonesia-
incorporated subsidiary of the Company, which was acquired by
the Group in late 2016. He has been overseeing the construction
and operation of the palm kernel oil mill and the ancillary
biomass power plants in that subsidiary.

He obtained a bachelor’'s degree in business administration
from Ohio State University, the US, in 1996. He has 15 years of
experience in managing businesses in heavy industries in Asia,
including 7 years in managing ferrous trading business of a
ferrous alloy trading firm between 1998 and 2005 in Singapore.
From 2006 to 2010, Mr. Suhendra was the president director of
PT. Indoferro which operates blast furnace producing nickel pig
iron in Indonesia.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Details

Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny

Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny, aged 40, was appointed as a Director
of the Company on 18 March 2014, was re-designated as a
non-executive Director of the Company on 5 September 2014
and was further re-designated as an executive Director of the
Company and appointed as the deputy general manager of
the Group both since April 2019. He also holds directorships in
certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chau worked as an international
trade department manager of China Ocean Shipbuilding
Industry Group Limited from February 2011 to August 2013 and
a business adviser at Vodafone Ltd. in the United Kingdom (the
“UK”) from November 2005 to September 2008.

Mr. Chau was a consultant of Convoy Financial Services Limited
from August 2012 to June 2017. He obtained a bachelor’s
degree in arts from Manchester Metropolitan University in the
UK in September 2005. He is also registered as a technical
representative of the Professional Insurance Brokers Association
in Hong Kong. Mr. Chau has also been an independent non-
executive director of Hang Pin Living Technology Company
Limited (stock code: 1682) since April 2021. Mr. Chau is (i)
the son of Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen, an executive Director of the
Company and the Chairman and (i) a director of Wealthy Sea, a
substantial shareholder of the Company.

EEREREEEZBABE
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian

Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian, aged 33, was appointed as a Director
of the Company on 18 March 2014 and was re-designated as a
non-executive Director of the Company on 5 September 2014.
He has been a member of the remuneration committee of the
Board (the “Remuneration Committee”) since 5 September
2014. He is also a director of three subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Chan obtained a bachelor’s degree in communication from
Purdue University in the US in May 2011. Since March 2013,
Mr. Chan has been working as marketing and sales director
at PT. Indoferro. He has been involved in the business of the
Group since September 2012 when he was appointed as a
director of Exuberant Legacy Holdings Ltd. (“Exuberant”), a
company incorporated in Hong Kong, which was intended by
the then shareholders of Everbest Environmental to be used
as the holding company for the purpose of the listing of the
shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange. While serving
as a director of Exuberant, Mr. Chan was involved in exploring
business opportunities in the environmental-related industry
within the larger Asia region and was also responsible for the
setting up and maintenance of the Company’s information
technology system. Mr. Chan continued to be involved in the
Group’s business after he had been appointed as a Director on
18 March 2014. Mr. Chan is the younger brother of Mr. Chan
Kwan, an executive Director and the CEO.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda

Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda, aged 46, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company (the
“INED”) on 5 September 2014. She has been the chairlady of
the audit committee of the Board (the “Audit Committee”) and
a member of each of the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee since 5 September 2014.

Ms. Ng has been a director of Linda C.Y. Ng (CPA) Limited
(previously known as Tseung & Ng (CPA) Limited) since April
2012, prior to which she was the sole proprietor of Linda C..
Ng & Co., an accounting firm, from January 2008 to April
2013. Ms. Ng has also been a director of Futurelink Limited
since February 2004. She has been a part-time lecturer in
the School of Continuing and Professional Education of City
University of Hong Kong since October 2015 and a part-
time lecturer at HKCA Learning Media Limited since August
2010, and was a part-time lecturer at Accountancy Training
Company (International) Limited from September 2007 to April
2010. She has been the author of “Financial Reporting in Hong
Kong: SME Edition 2015/16” published in December 2015 and
“Practical Guide to Financial Reporting Standards in Hong
Kong” published by CCH Hong Kong Limited since September
2013. She was a director of Learning Is Fun Association Limited
from June 2007 to June 2012. Ms. Ng was a staff accountant at
Ernst & Young from September 2000 to September 2001, and
was promoted to senior accountant in October 2001 until she
left that firm in October 2002.

Ms. Ng obtained a master’s degree in professional accounting
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in October 2009
and a bachelor’'s degree in business administration from Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology in November 1997.
She has been a certified professional forensic accountant of
The Institute of Certified Forensic Accountants since September
2011, a certified tax adviser and an associate of the Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong since September 2010, a fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the UK since
October 2005 and a practising member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants since January 2005.
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Mr. Ng Man Kung

Mr. Ng Man Kung, aged 70, was appointed as an INED
on 5 September 2014. He has been the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of each of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee since 5 September
2014,

Mr. Ng was a business consultant of China Orient Asset
Management (International) Holding Limited, a company
principally engaged in investment, from January 2014 to April
2015. He worked at Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd. from July
1969 to December 2012 and was a chief executive from April
1992 to July 2012. Mr. Ng was an honorary president of the 37th
Chinese Bankers Club, Hong Kong, a member of the Council
of Hong Kong Polytechnic University from April 1999 to March
2003 and a member of the 10th Fujian Province Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (F° B A
RBatAeEEEEZEE) Mr. Ng completed an extension
course in banking at the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
September 1982.

Mr. Ng has also been an independent non-executive director
of each of Fujian Holdings Limited (stock code: 181) since June
2014 and Green Future Food Hydrocolloid Marine Science
Company Limited (stock code: 1084) since September 2019.
Mr. Ng was a non-executive director of Roma Group Limited
(stock code: 8072) from August 2017 to December 2017. Mr. Ng
was an independent non-executive director of each of Guoan
International Limited (stock code: 143) from March 2016 to
February 2021, Shanghai Zendai Property Limited (stock code:
755) from May 2017 to January 2021 and Renco Holdings Group
Limited (stock code: 2323) from March 2016 to March 2022.

Mr. Ng has also been the chairman of the supervisory board of
Well Link Bank in Macau since 31 March 2018.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Details

Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy

Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy, aged 49, was appointed as an INED
with effect from 15 October 2019. She has been a member of
each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee since 15 October 2019.

Ms. Leung graduated from the University of Cambridge in
England with a master’s degree in law in July 1996 and from the
University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in law in July
1994. After graduation, from 1996 to 2004, Ms. Leung worked
at Clyde & Co., where her last position was associate.

Ms. Leung is a qualified solicitor in Hong Kong, England and
Wales and a partner of Leung and Lau, Solicitors LLP which
she co-founded in 2005. She co-founded L.I.M Tech Limited
which commenced operations in December 2018 and Xu Shan
Charitable Foundation Company Limited in July 2019, and has
been the major shareholder and chairlady of California Insurance
Company, Limited since 2018.

Ms. Leung is presently a member of the Legal Education
Committee of the Law Society of Hong Kong. She was
previously a member of the Public Education and Publicity
Sub-committee under the Steering Committee on Mediation of
the Department of Justice and the Mediate First Pledge Sub-
Group of the Public Education and Publicity Sub-Group of the
Secretary of Justice’s Working Group on Mediation in Hong
Kong. She was previously also appointed as a Deputy District
Court Judge in Hong Kong in 2012.

Ms. Leung served as the non-executive director of New Trend
Lifestyle Group Plc (LON:NTLG) from June 2016 to January
2018.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Lam Wai Kit Ricky

Mr. Lam Wai Kit Ricky, aged 43, has been serving as the
financial controller of the Company since July 2021. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Lam served as a finance manager
in Chevalier International Holdings Limited (stock code: 0025)
from July 2019 to December 2020 where he was responsible for
overseeing financial reporting and financial management. From
August 2017 to June 2019, he served as a finance manager in
K. Wah International Holdings Limited (stock code: 0173) where
he was responsible for managing overseas property investment
teams.

Mr. Lam holds a bachelor’s degree of arts in accountancy from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a master’s degree in
business administration from Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Wang Zili

Mr. Wang Zili, aged 59, was appointed as the deputy general
manager of the Haian Hengfa Facility on 18 March 2014.
Mr. Wang joined the Group in February 2005 and is mainly
responsible for overseeing operational matters related to the
Haian Hengfa Facility. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang was
vice chairman and general manager of Beijing Solar Power
Nutritious Engineering Development Co., Ltd. (It RigtELET
22 R AR A R]), a deputy general manager of National Youth
Services Centre (FEBF L F LRGP L) and a researcher
of Zhuzhou Electric Locomotive Research Institute (28 B #k
INE H#E A ISP ), and had worked at Shenzhen Recruitment
Services Company (I A A R A F]). Mr. Wang obtained
a bachelor’s degree in engineering from Dalian Railway Institute
(KB # EEPT) (now known as Dalian Jiaotong University (X &
2238 K 2)) in the PRC in July 1983.
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The Company is committed to fulfilling its responsibilities to the
Company’s shareholders (the “Shareholders”) and protecting
and enhancing Shareholder value through good corporate
governance.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) recognise
the importance of incorporating elements of good corporate
governance in the management structures and internal control
procedures of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
so as to achieve effective accountability, and to enable our
Shareholders to evaluate how the principles of the CG Code
(defined below) have been applied.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles and complied with
all applicable code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
(the “CG Code”) throughout FY2021.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own
code of conduct governing the securities transactions by the
Directors. Following a specific enquiry made by the Company
on each of the Directors, all of them confirmed that they had
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
during the Year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
RESPONSIBILITIES

The board of Directors (the “Board”) is primarily responsible for
overseeing and supervising the management of the business
affairs and the overall performance of the Group. The Board
sets the Group’s values and standards and ensures that the
requisite financial and human resources support are in place for
the Group to achieve its objectives. The functions performed by
the Board include but are not limited to formulating the Group’s
business plans and strategies, reviewing the Company’s
financial results and performance and approving its interim
and annual results upon the review and recommendation of
the audit committee of the Board (the “Audit Committee”);
approving the appointment or re-appointment of the Board
members upon the recommendation of the nomination
committee of the Board (the “Nomination Committee”);
approving the remuneration package of the Directors and senior
management of the Company (the “Senior Management”)
upon the recommendation of the remuneration committee of
the Board (the “Remuneration Committee”), deciding all
significant financial (including major capital expenditure) and
operational issues, developing, monitoring and reviewing the
Group’s corporate governance, and all other functions reserved
to the Board under the Company’s articles of association (the
“Articles of Association”). The Board may from time to time
delegate certain functions to the Senior Management if and
when considered appropriate. The Senior Management is mainly
responsible for the execution of the business plans, strategies
and policies adopted by the Board and assigned to it from time
to time.

COMPOSITION

The Company is committed to the view that the Board should
include a balanced composition of executive and independent
non-executive Directors so that there is a strong independent
element on the Board which can effectively exercise
independent judgement.
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Currently, the Board comprises the following eight Directors:

Executive Directors (the “EDs”)

Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen (Chairman)

Mr. Chan Kwan (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Radius Suhendra

Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny

Non-executive Director (the “NED”)
Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian

Independent Non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”)
Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda

Mr. Ng Man Kung

Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy

The biographical details of each of the Directors are set out
in the section headed “Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Biographical Details” of this annual report.

Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen, the chairman of the Board (the
“Chairman”), is the father of Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny, an ED.
He is also a substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing
Rules) of the Company. Mr. Chan Kwan, the chief executive
officer of the Company (the “Chief Executive Officer”), is
the elder brother of Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian, the NED. Mr.
Chan Kwan owns 20% of the issued shares of a controlling
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company.
Save as aforesaid, there was no financial, business, family or
other material relationship among the Directors.

The EDs are responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and overseeing the Group’s businesses development,
formulation of strategies and are collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs.
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The INEDs participate in the Board meetings to bring in an
independent judgement to bear on the issues of strategy, policy,
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments
and standards of conducts and scrutinise the Company’s
performance in achieving agreed corporate goals and
objectives. They are also responsible for ensuring a high
standard of financial and other mandatory reporting of the
Board as well as providing a balance in the Board in order to
effectively exercise an independent judgement on the corporate
actions of the Company so as to protect Shareholders’ interest
and the overall interest of the Group.

Throughout the Year, the Company had three INEDs, which
complied with the requirement of the Listing Rules that (i) the
number of INEDs must represent at least one-third of the Board
members; and (i) at least one of the INEDs has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

Each of the INEDs has made an annual confirmation of
independence in writing pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and the Board is satisfied that all the INEDs have been
independent and met the independent guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules during the Year and up to the date of
this annual report.

Proper insurance coverage in respect of legal actions against
the Directors’ liability has been arranged by the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUING
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Any Director will receive formal, comprehensive and tailored-
made induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to
ensure a proper understanding of the Company’s operations
and business and full awareness of the Director’s responsibilities
under the statutes and common law, the Listing Rules, legal and
other regulatory requirements and the Company’s business and
governance policies.
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The Company from time to time provides briefings to all
Directors to develop and refresh the Directors’ duties and
responsibilities. All Directors are also encouraged to attend
relevant training courses at the Company’s expense and they
have been requested to provide the Company with their training
records. According to the training records maintained by the
Company, each of Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen, Mr. Chan Kwan, Mr.
Radius Suhendra, Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny, Mr. Chan Pak
Lam Brian, Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda, Mr. Ng Man Kung and
Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy has attended seminars/conference/
forums and/or read newspapers, journals and materials relating
to the economy, general business, corporate governance and
directors’ duties and responsibilities.

MEETINGS OF BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEES
AND DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORDS

The Board is scheduled to meet four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals with notice given to all Directors
at least 14 days in advance. For additional Board meetings
which require discussion and resolution of significant issues
arising from the operations of the Company, notice is given in a
reasonable time in advance. Before each Board meeting, a draft
agenda is sent to all Directors at least three days or such other
period as agreed in advance in order to allow the Directors to
include any other matters in the agenda that is required for
discussion and resolution in the meeting. To enable the Directors
to be properly briefed on issues arising at the Board meetings
and to make informed decisions, Board papers together with all
appropriate and relevant information in relation to the matters
of the meeting are sent to all Directors three days or such other
period as agreed before each Board meeting. All Directors
should have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) with a
view to ensuring that the Board procedures and all applicable
rules and regulations are followed. The Company Secretary
is responsible for keeping all Board meetings minutes. Draft
minutes are normally circulated to the Directors for comments
within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final version
is open for the Directors’ inspection. According to the Listing
Rules, any Directors and their close associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) with a material interest in the transactions to be
discussed at the Board meetings will abstain from deliberating
and voting on resolutions approving such transactions and are
not to be counted in the quorum of the meetings.
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During the Year, one annual general meeting of the Company
(the “AGM”) and four Board meetings were held. The table
below sets out the attendance by the Directors of these

RAFE  B8BIT-RARRBRRBFAKR
E(RRAFAENEOREETEEE -
TRENEFHEZFEH BN

meetings:
Meetings attended/
Eligible to attend
HEEBE X
FERLEESRBARHEY
Board
Name Meetings AGM
£ EEeEed RRAFKE
EDs BITES
Chau On Ta Yuen A%z E R 4/4 1/1
Chan Kwan P 4/4 1/1
Radius Suhendra BREX A 0/4 0/1
Chau Chi Yan Benny BB A 4/4 1/1
NED FHITES
Chan Pak Lam Brian BR A8 AR 4/4 1/1
INEDs BYKHTES
Ng Chung Yan Linda H1E R 4/4 1/1
Ng Man Kung Rt 4/4 1/1
Leung Bo Yee Nancy RER 4/4 1/1

Apart from the Board meetings, the Chairman met with the
INEDs without the presence of the other Directors during the

Year.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted a Board diversity policy on 5 September
2014 and discussed all measurable objectives set for
implementing the policy.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diversity of Board members. It endeavours to ensure that
the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business. All Board appointments will continue to be made
on a merit basis with due regard for the benefits of diversity
of the Board members. Selection of candidates will be based
on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, race, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service. The ultimate decision will be made upon the merits
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board. The Board considered that the aforementioned
measurable goals have been achieved satisfactorily during the
Year and the Board will continue to review the relevant goals
from time to time to ensure its progress for achieving such
goals.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
separated and assumed by different individuals to ensure a
balance of power and authority so that power is not vested in
any member of the Board. Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen, the Chairman,
is responsible for business development and formulation
of strategies of the Group while Mr. Chan Kwan, the Chief
Executive Officer, is responsible for all major affairs of the
Group, including project construction and operation, business
development, marketing and formulation of strategies.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, namely
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee, to oversee particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs. The Board committees are provided with
sufficient resources to discharge their duties.

The written terms of reference for each of the Board committees
named above are in line with the Listing Rules and are posted
on the respective websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and the Company.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. It consists of
three INEDs, namely Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda, serving as the
chairlady, Mr. Ng Man Kung and Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee include:

° making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external
auditor, approving the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and considering any
questions of resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

° reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the
audit process in accordance with applicable standards;

° developing and implementing a policy on the engagement
of an external auditor to supply non-audit services and
reporting the same to the Board, and identifying and
making recommendations on any matters in respect
of which it considers that an action or improvement is
needed;

o discussing with the external auditor before the audit
commences, the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations, and ensuring proper co-ordination
where more than one audit firm is involved;

° discussing problems and reservations arising from the
interim and final audits, and any matters the external
auditor may wish to discuss (in the absence of the Senior
Management where necessary);

° monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements, annual report and financial statements, half-
year report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly
reports, and reviewing significant financial reporting
judgements contained in them;
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reviewing the Company’s financial controls, risk
management and internal control systems;

discussing the risk management and internal control
systems with the Senior Management to ensure that
the Senior Management has performed its duties in
establishing and maintaining effective systems, including
matters on adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function;

considering findings of major investigations on risk
management and internal control matters as delegated
by the Board or on its own initiative and the Senior
Management’s response to these findings;

where an internal audit function exists, ensuring co-
ordination between the internal and external auditors,
ensuring that the internal audit function is adequately
resourced and has appropriate standing within the
Company, and reviewing and monitoring its effectiveness;

reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

reviewing the external auditor’s management letter,
any material queries raised by such auditor to the
Senior Management about the accounting records,
financial accounts or systems of control and the Senior
Management’s response;

ensuring that the Board will provide a timely response to
the issues raised in the external auditor’'s management
letter;

reporting to the Board on the matters set out in the Audit
Committee’s terms of reference;

reviewing the arrangements that employees of the
Company can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control
or other matters and ensuring that proper arrangements
are in place for fair and independent investigation of these
matters and for appropriate follow-up action;

acting as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor;
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° establishing a whistle-blowing policy and system for
employees of the Company and those who deal with the
Company (e.g. customers and suppliers) to raise concerns,
in confidence, with the Audit Committee about possible
improprieties in any matter related to the Company;

° developing and reviewing the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and making
recommendations to the Board;

o reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and the Senior
Management;

° reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

° developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and the Directors;

o reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and the disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report in
the Company’s annual report;

° reviewing on-going connected transactions of the
Company and ensuring compliance with the terms of
approval by the Shareholders;

° reviewing the findings of internal investigations and
the Senior Management’s responses in relation to any
suspected fraud or irregularities or failures of internal
controls or infringement of laws, rules and regulations; and

o considering any other topics as determined by the Board.

During the Year, two Audit Committee meetings were held
whereat the Audit Committee reviewed, among others, (i) the
audited consolidated financial results of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2020; (ii) the unaudited consolidated
financial results of the Company for the six months ended
30 June 2021; (iii) the internal control and risk management
systems of the Group; and (iv) the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal audit function. The attendance of individual members
was set out in the following table.
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Meetings attended/
Eligible to attend

Name HEEBERE
£ FEREESRRY
Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda BB Xt 2/2
Mr. Ng Man Kung R EA 2/2
Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy 2EEX LT 2/2

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The

Remuneration Committee was established with written

terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
Remuneration Committee consists of three INEDs, namely
Mr. Ng Man Kung, serving as the chairman, Ms. Ng Chung
Yan Linda and Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy, and Mr. Chan Pak

Lam

Brian, the NED. The principal responsibilities of the

Remuneration Committee include:

making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors
and the Senior Management and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing a
remuneration policy;

reviewing and approving the Senior Management’s
remuneration proposals by reference to the Board’s
corporate goals and objectives;

making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual EDs and the Senior
Management and such packages include benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office
or appointment;

making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of the NEDs;

considering salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment, responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;
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reviewing and approving compensation payable to the EDs
and the Senior Management for any loss or termination of
office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

o reviewing and approving compensation arrangements
relating to the dismissal or removal of Directors for
misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and

appropriate;

° ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his/her

own remuneration; and

o reviewing the Group’s policy on expense reimbursements

for the Directors and the Senior Management.

During the Year, three Remuneration Committee meetings
were held whereat the Remuneration Committee reviewed and
recommended to the Board for consideration, among others,
the remuneration packages of the Directors and the Senior
Management. The attendance of individual members was set

out in the following table.
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Meetings attended/
Eligible to attend

Name HEEERE
H"E FEREESZE LY
Mr. Ng Man Kung RXH LA 3/3
Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda hEExt 3/3
Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian BRAB MRS A 3/3
Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy REHEL T 3/3
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established with written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code. It consists of
three INEDs, namely Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda, Mr. Ng Man
Kung and Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy, and two EDs, namely Mr.
Chau On Ta Yuen and Mr. Chan Kwan with Mr. Chau On Ta
Yuen serving as the chairman. The principal responsibilities of
the Nomination Committee include:

° reviewing the structure, size and diversity (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and making recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

° identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and selecting or making recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships, with due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board;

° assessing the independence of the INEDs;

° reviewing the Board diversity policy of the Company and
Directors’ nomination policy, as appropriate; and reviewing
the measurable objectives that the Board has set for
implementing such Board diversity policy, and the progress
in achieving the objectives; and

° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and the succession planning
for the Directors, in particular, the Chairman and the chief
executives.
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During the Year, one Nomination Committee meeting was held
whereat the Nomination Committee, among others, (i) assessed
the independence of the INEDs; (i) recommended to the Board
for consideration the re-appointment of all the retiring Directors
as Directors at the 2021 AGM; (iii) reviewed the structure, size
and diversity of the Board; and (iv) reviewed the Board diversity
policy. The attendance of individual members was set out in the
following table.
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Meetings attended/
Eligible to attend
HEEERE
FERHESERAE

Name

" E

Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen BZ&EIREE
Mr. Chan Kwan =

Mr. Ng Man Kung RX#trEE
Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda BBzt
Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy REELZ T

NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) which aims to:

- set out the criteria and process in the nomination and
appointment of Directors;

= ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company;
and

- ensure the Board’s continuity and appropriate leadership
at Board level.
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CRITERIA

The Nomination Committee shall consider the following criteria
in evaluating and selecting candidates for directorships:

- character, reputation and integrity;

- qualifications, experience and accomplishments,
including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and
experience that are relevant to the Company’s business
and corporate strategy;

- willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as
a Board member and other directorships and significant
commitments;

- requirement for the Board to have independent directors
in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidates would be considered independent by reference
to the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules;

- Board diversity policy and any measurable objectives
adopted by the Nomination Committee for achieving
diversity on the Board;

- any other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company’s business and succession plan and where
applicable, may be adopted and/or amended by the Board
and/or the Nomination Committee from time to time for
nomination of Directors and succession planning; and

- such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business.
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NOMINATION PROCEDURES

(A)

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

APPOINTMENT OF NEW DIRECTOR

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

The Nomination Committee shall, upon receipt of the
proposal on appointment of the new Director, the
biographical information (or relevant details) of such
candidate and evaluate such candidate based on the
criteria as set out in above paragraph of “Criteria”
to determine whether such candidate is qualified for
directorship.

The Nomination Committee may request candidates
to provide additional information and documents, if
considered necessary.

If the process yields one or more desirable
candidates, the Nomination Committee shall rank
them by order of preference based on the needs of
the Company (including but not limited to ensuring
that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives) and reference check of each
candidate (where applicable).

The Nomination Committee shall then recommend
appointment of the appropriate candidate for
directorship and the candidate shall provide his/
her written consent (i) to be appointed as a Director,
and (ii) to the public disclosure of his/her personal
data on any documents or the relevant websites for
the purpose of or in relation to his/her standing for
election as a Director.

For any person that is nominated by a Shareholder for
election as a Director at the general meeting of the
Company, the Nomination Committee shall evaluate
such candidate based on the above paragraph of
“Criteria” to determine whether such candidate is
qualified for directorship and where appropriate, the
Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall make
recommendation to the Shareholders in respect of the
proposed election of Director at the general meeting.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters

relating to its recommendation of candidates to stand
for election at any general meeting.
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(B) RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTOR AT GENERAL MEETING

()  Retiring Directors are eligible for nomination by the
Board to stand for re-election at a general meeting of
the Company.

(i)~ The Nomination Committee shall review the retiring
Director’s overall contribution and service to the
Company, including his/her attendance of Board
meetings and, where applicable, general meetings,
and his/her level of participation and performance on
the Board.

(i)  The Nomination Committee shall also review and
determine whether the retiring Director continues
to meet the criteria as set out in the above section
headed “CRITERIA”.

(iv) The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall
then make recommendation to the Shareholders in
respect of the proposed re-election of the Director at
the general meeting.

(v) The Board shall have the final decision on all matters
relating to its recommendation of candidates to stand
for re-election at any general meeting.

REGULAR REVIEW

The Nomination Committee will conduct regular review on (i)
the effectiveness of the Nomination Policy to ensure that it
remains relevant to the Company’s needs and reflects both
current regulatory requirements and good corporate governance
practice, and (ii) the structure, size and composition of the
Board and where appropriate, make recommendations on
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy and business needs.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Company has adopted the code provisions stated in the
CG Code and the Board has delegated its responsibilities to the
Audit Committee to perform the corporate governance functions
of the Company as set out in code provision D.3.1 (which has
been renumbered as code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code since
1 January 2022) of the CG Code. The Audit Committee has,
amongst other matters, reviewed this corporate governance
report in discharge of its corporate governance functions,
ensuring compliance with the Listing Rules.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the NEDs (including INEDs) has entered into an
appointment letter with the Company for the term of three years
in respect of their appointment as NED or INED (as the case
may be).

None of the Directors has or is proposed to have a service
contract or letter of appointment with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries other than contracts or letters of appointment
expiring or determinable by the employer within one year
without the payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

All the Directors, including the INEDs, are subject to retirement
by rotation and eligible for re-election in accordance with the
Articles of Association. At each AGM, one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or if their number is not three or a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third)
will retire from office by rotation provided that every Director will
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. A retiring Director shall retain office until the close of
the meeting at which he/she retires and shall be eligible for re-
election thereat.

According to the Articles of Association,

(@ the Board shall have power from time to time and at
any time to appoint any person as a Director either to
fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Any
Director so appointed shall hold office only until the next
following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election at
that meeting; and

(b) the Company may by ordinary resolution in general
meetings elect any person to be a Director either to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition to the existing Directors.
Any Director so appointed shall hold office only until
the next following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-
election.

However, any Director who fills a casual vacancy shall hold
office until the following general meeting of the Company.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the Year are
set out in note 10 to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements in this annual report.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 (which has been renumbered
as code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code since 1 January 2022)
of the CG Code, the remuneration of the members of the
Senior Management (other than the Directors) whose particulars
are contained in the section headed “Directors’ and Senior
Management’s Biographical Details” in this annual report for the
Year by band is set out below:
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Remuneration band (in HK$) of individuals
Fri4a Bl (78 T) AE
Nil to 1,000,000 Z£ 21,000,000 3 (Note fil i)

1,000,001 to 1,500,000

Note: Including a former member of the Senior Management
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The fees charged by Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited (“Baker
Tilly”) in respect of the auditing services for the Year amounted
to approximately HK$940,000 and in respect of the non-auditing
services for the Year amounted to approximately HK$150,000.
The non-auditing services rendered related to the performance
of agreed-upon procedures on interim financial report of the
Company for the six months ended 30 June 2021.

Both the Board and the Audit Committee have agreed to
recommend the re-appointment of Baker Tilly as the Company’s
independent auditor for the ensuing year at the 2022 AGM.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements for the Year,
which give a true and fair view of the Group’s state of affairs,
results and cash flows for the Year and are properly prepared
on a going concern basis in accordance with the applicable
statutory requirements as well as accounting and financial
reporting standards. The Directors were not aware of any
material uncertainties which may affect the Group’s business or
cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

In addition, Baker Tilly has stated in the independent auditor’s
report its reporting responsibility on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements for the Year.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective
risk management and internal control systems in order to
protect the interest of the Company and its Shareholders. The
risk management and internal control systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Our Group has established an enterprise risk management
(the “ERM”) framework in order to implement effective risk
management efforts. Our ERM framework comprises two
key elements, namely risk management structure and risk
management process. It defines a simple and clear risk
management structure as well as the responsibilities as below.

RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board has a duty to ensure the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group
(the “ERM system”). The Board oversees the ERM system,
assesses and evaluates the Group’s business strategies and
risk tolerance. The Board reviews, with the assistance of the
Audit Committee, at least annually the effectiveness of the ERM
system and monitors the ERM system in an on-going manner.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has the primary responsibility for risk
management and internal control after the Board. It assists
the Board in overseeing the Group’s ERM system by providing
support and advice, including on-going monitoring of the
execution of risk management processes, reviewing the Group’s
risk register as well as reviewing and approving the internal
control review plan and results.

MANAGEMENT

The management of the Group (the “Management”) is
responsible for identifying and monitoring the risks relevant
to the Group during daily operations, including strategic,
operational, financial, reporting and compliance risks. The
Management reports to the Board and the Audit Committee on
the risks identified and their changes. The Management is also
responsible for developing appropriate internal control measures
to mitigate the risks, and identify and resolve material internal
control defects.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group has established the internal audit function and the
scope of work includes reviewing the effectiveness of the ERM
system. The scope of the risk management and internal control
review is risk-based and is reviewed by the Audit Committee.
The internal audit function is able to communicate with the Audit
Committee directly regarding the results of its review.
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RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

Our ERM framework defines the procedures for identifying,
assessing, responding and monitoring risks and their changes.
Through regular discussions with each operating function, the
Group strengthens the understanding of risk management such
that all employees can understand and report various risks
they have identified in a timely manner. It enhances the Group’s
ability to identify and manage risks.

Assess risks
identified
B Al R

Define risks
universe
FERREE

Identify
risks
Gl

To identify and prioritise material risks throughout the Group,
the Management communicates with each operating function,
collects significant risk factors that affect the Group from bottom
to top, including strategic, operational, financial, reporting
and compliance risks. After identifying all relevant risks, the
Management assesses the potential impact and possibilities of
the risks and prioritises the risks. Appropriate internal control
measures are then developed to mitigate the risks identified and
the changes of risks are monitored in an on-going manner.
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MAIN FEATURES OF OUR RISK MANAGEMENT
AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

MAINTAIN AN EFFECTIVE INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM
(OPERATIONAL LEVEL)

° Establish clear internal control policies and procedures,
and clearly define the responsibilities, authorities and
accountabilities of each key position;

° Establish code of conduct and explain the Group’s
requirements on integrity and ethical value to all staff;

o Establish a whistle-blowing mechanism and encourage
employees to report incidents of misconduct or fraud;

° Establish appropriate level of information technology to
assess rights and avoid the leakage of price-sensitive
information; and

° Establish inside information disclosure policy, including
reporting channel and responsible person of disclosure,
unify response to external enquiries and obtain advice
from professional financial adviser or the Stock Exchange if
necessary.

During the Year, the Board had reviewed the effectiveness of
risk management and internal control policies and procedures,
including those related to financial reporting and Listing
Rules compliance. The Board has considered the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting functions during the review of the
effectiveness of the ERM system.

ON-GOING RISK MONITORING (RISK MANAGEMENT LEVEL)

Based on the ERM framework and risk management policies
established by the Board, the Management communicates with
each operating function, and collects significant risk factors
that affect the Group from bottom to top. The Group has
established a risk register to record the risks identified, and the
Management assesses the potential impact and possibilities of
the risks and develops appropriate internal control measures to
mitigate the risks identified.
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During the Year, the Management conducted an evaluation of
the Group’s risk management structure and procedures and
submitted a risk assessment report to the Board and the Audit
Committee, including a three-year internal control review plan,
to enable the Board and the Audit Committee to effectively
monitor the major risks of the Group and understand how the
Management responds to and mitigates the risks.

INTERNAL CONTROL DEPARTMENT

During the Year, the Group had not established an internal
control department internally. Instead, the Group engaged an
external internal control consulting company, Zewada Risk
Advisory Limited, to conduct an assessment and evaluation on
the effectiveness of internal control measures and systems of
the Group. Certain internal control enhancement suggestions
have been identified and the Management has established
action plans for improving the internal control effectiveness
accordingly. An internal control review report has been provided
to the Audit Committee which has also been reported to the
Board about the findings and improvement measures.

No material internal control deficiency has been identified during
the Year and the Board considers that the ERM system to be
adequate and effective.
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MAJOR RISKS OF THE GROUP FREZEERBE

BHPMREREERED &I ANEE ZIA
TXERARNMEZL-

Our risk management process has identified the following as
major risks of the Group and their changes.

Risk Description Key Risk Mitigations Changes
& B it TERBERER #1
New investments in ~ The Group has invested in the development of a Carry out thorough Decreased
Bangka, Indonesia new biomass power plant in Bangka, Indonesia feasibility studies on the

with a capacity of 10 megawatts (the “Bangka Bangka Power Plant project il >

HEAMEMH K E

Power Plant”) to generate electricity for sale to

PT PLN (Persero), an Indonesia government-owned
corporation. The construction of the Bangka Power
Plant may not be completed successfully or may not
meet the expected standard. The operation of the
Bangka Power Plant may not be successful due to
the potential insufficiency of biomass raw material,
incapability of the new staff in the Bangka Power
Plant or other unknown factors.

FEBRMEAMSRELZR—BEEERI0KR
MMENELER(AMBRER)) ULEES
ZHEEZ 2 APT PLN (Persero) 7815 % & B &)
BERVEARNTK IR VESBHRE - AR
ENERMBMEETE ANSZEERFELN
EATRFEMAAER  BNSEEHMEET
BEABKI o

UAMEXERERETS
AT %

Monitor closely the
construction progress by
industry experts

Hiring professional
consultant to monitor the
operation and conduct
training for new staff

EFEEXBEREREEM
R A3 8 TREE

Negotiate with local
suppliers to enter into long-
term purchase agreements
to ensure sufficiency of the
biomass raw material

BUEEHEGETIRSS
Bihdh - WREME B
xR

BREREREBRLQF

The new power
plant in Bangka,
Indonesia has
entered the final
preparatory stage.
It is making good
progress despite
the delay caused
by the pandemic.

ENfe F & R
M ERDEA
REBHEER  #
ARREBEER
R BEAEE
RIYF o

RO

4

91



®

92

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

Risk Description
[ & #t

Key Risk Mitigations
TERBERER

Changes
£

Biofuel business in

Jambi, Indonesia

The Group’s biomass power generation business

in Indonesia is temporarily suspended. The Group

is commencing the biofuel pellet/wood pellets
manufacturing business for export in Asian countries

M EMBE  such as Indonesia and Korea. Since the relevant
% business is in its initial stage, the relevant business
transformation may not be successful.
FEERHEREAENEREEREREREEMR
EoSEIRREMRHNRE KBEREEER -
NREE  BEZETMERED - AREBEBAR
Nk - AN ERERZDAEIEKY -
Credit Customers or counterparties of the Group are local
government authorities. Payment from them could
f5¢ be longer than the credit period granted to them

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

due to the complexity of their internal administrative
procedures. The Group might suffer from a financial
loss or liquidity difficulty in the case of delay in
payment.

SENEFPIHFIREBBARM - AREAR
TREAZERE  REINFTLERRT RS
ZEEH -AEERERNREREZMBERR
RPELRE -

2021 Annual Report

Control production cost
to increase product
competitiveness.

1. BREERK ZNEM

BEH -

2. Proactively promote
biofuel pellet/wood pellets
products to Indonesia and
other Asian countries.

2. RBEAMELRTMNSEE
BAEMRHIRE /RER

Em e

1. Frequently communicate
with customers to follow up
the outstanding balance

1. RBREXPE® NRE
AERHE

il R

g
2. Maintain sufficient cash flow
to avoid liquidity problem

2. HRREMATRENE
mBEERE

3. Regularly perform
impairment review to assess
the recovery of account
receivables and provide
sufficient impairment to
avoid over-statement of
balance

3. EHETHEER AT
M B SR 2 ) M B 4 3 4
R SR E B A R
2IBR&ER

Newly identified

# 38 5l

Unchanged
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Risk Description Key Risk Mitigations Changes
& K Ha TERBERER 21
Pricing and cost The Group operates the wastewater treatment 1. Negotiate the water tariffs Decreased

recovery

TERKAHE

facilities at a pre-determined tariff rate specified

at the time the Build, Operate and Transfer (BOT)
agreement is entered into. The circumstances of tariff
adjustment have also specified that the Group has
only limited ability to change/renegotiate the tariffs.
The increase in operating costs due to an increase in
utilisation of the wastewater treatment facilities might
not be fully compensated, and the Group could
suffer from loss or decrease in profitability.

SERTUER KERBRBONHHERELR
ENEXREL T KRERE - KEFBZERTK
REBRE BN HARENENER - REMER
RAKEERBER EEKANEMAEEETS
BHMAE AHEEREEXBRABMED -

S

with the local government to
compensate the increased
costs of operation

SE it B 165 7 KB DA 1
2EKAEM

On-going cost control
to avoid unnecessary
spending

BEETRAZEHARS
NGB BENFX

Negotiate with supplier to

minimise the increase in
costs

HEEFREEERDK
A

BREREREBRLQF

After negotiation
with the Bureau

of Housing and
Urban-Rural
Construction of
Haian County, all
parties agreed to
increase the water
tariffs of the Haian
Hengfa Facility in
December 2021

to compensate the
increased costs of
operation.
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DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the laws of
Hong Kong and the Listing Rules and the overriding principle
that inside information should be announced promptly when it is
the subject of a decision. The procedures and internal controls
for the handling and dissemination of inside information are as
follows:

° the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the
disclosure requirement under the Listing Rules as well
as the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information”
published by the Securities and Futures Commission of
Hong Kong in June 2012;

° the Group has implemented and disclosed its policy on fair
disclosure by pursuing broad, non-exclusive distribution
of information to the public through channels such as
financial reporting, public announcements/circulars and its
website;

° the Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of
confidential or inside information; and

o the Group has established and implemented procedures
for responding to external enquiries about the Group’s
affairs, so that only the EDs, the Company Secretary and
the financial controller of the Company (the “Financial
Controller”) are authorised to communicate with parties
outside the Group.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Tung Wing Yee Winnie (“Ms. Tung”) was appointed as the
Company Secretary with effect from 30 October 2021 in place
of Ms. Chui Lee Lee who resigned on the same date.

Ms. Tung was nominated by Boardroom Corporate Services
(HK) Limited (“Boardroom”) to act as the Company Secretary
and Boardroom has been providing certain corporate secretarial
services to the Company pursuant to an engagement letter
entered into between the Company and Boardroom. The
primary person at the Company with whom Ms. Tung has been
contacting in respect of company secretarial matters is Mr. Lam
Wai Kit Ricky, the Financial Controller.

Ms. Tung had complied with the relevant professional training
requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules during the
Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS
AT SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETINGS

There are no provisions allowing the Shareholders to make
proposals or move resolutions at the general meeting under
the memorandum of association of the Company and the
Articles of Association (the “M&A”). Shareholders who wish to
make proposals or move a resolution may, however, convene
an extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”) to do so in
accordance with the “Procedures for Shareholders to convene
an EGM” set out below.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN
EGM

Article 12.3 of the Articles of Association stipulates that:

General meetings shall be convened on the written requisition
of any two or more members of the Company deposited at
the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong specifying
the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists,
provided that such requisitionists hold as at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company, which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company.
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General meetings may also be convened on the written
requisition of any one member of the Company, which is a
recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s)) deposited at the
principal office of the Company in Hong Kong specifying the
objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided
that such requisitionist holds as at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company, which carries the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit
of the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be
held within a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) himself/herself/
themselves or any of them representing more than one-half of
the total voting rights of all of them, may convene the general
meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in
which meetings may be convened by the Board provided that
any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration
of three months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to him/her/
them by the Company.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO SEND
ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may, at any time, direct questions, request for
publicly available information and provide comments and
suggestions to the Directors or management of the Company.
Such questions, requests and comments can be addressed
to the Company by mail to its principal place of business in
Hong Kong, presently at Unit 5, 7th Floor, Westlands Centre, 20
Westlands Road, Hong Kong or by email to ell@anli.com.hk.

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings or change of correspondence address or dividend
instructions by mail to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited at Room
2103B, 21/F., 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong, which
has been appointed by the Company to deal with Shareholders
for share registration and related matters.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has adopted a Shareholders’ communication
policy with the objective of enhancing investor relations
and investors’ understanding of the Company’s business
performance and strategies.

Information about the Company will be communicated to
the Shareholders and the investment community mainly
through the Company’s financial reports (interim and annual
reports), announcements and circulars, the AGMs and the
EGMs that may be convened, as well as by all the published
disclosures submitted to the Stock Exchange and its corporate
communications made available by the Company on the
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were no changes in the constitutional documents of the
Company during the Year.

Pursuant to Rule 13.90 of the Listing Rules, the Company
has posted its M&A on the respective websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present their
report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2021 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of its principal subsidiaries are the provision of
wastewater treatment services in Jiangsu Province, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) and the generation of electricity
by biomass power plants in Jambi, the Republic of Indonesia
(“Indonesia”). The principal activities and other particulars of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in this annual report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year and the state of affairs of
the Group as at 31 December 2021 are set out on pages 132 to
275 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY
OBJECTIVES

The dividend policy of the Company (the “Dividend Policy”)
aims to set out the principles and guidelines that the Company
intends to apply in relation to the declaration, payment or
distribution of its net profits as dividends to the Shareholders.

PRINCIPLES AND GUIDELINES

1. The Board adopts the policy that, in recommending or
declaring dividends, the Company shall maintain adequate
and sufficient cash reserves for meeting its working capital
requirements and future growth as well as its shareholder
value.

2. The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
payout ratio.

3. The Board has the full discretion to declare and
distribute dividends to the Shareholders, subject to the
articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of
Association”), all applicable laws and regulations and the
factors set out below.
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4.  The Board shall also take into account the following 4.

factors of the Group when considering the declaration and
payment of dividends:

o financial results;

° cash flow situation;

° business conditions and strategies;

o expected future operations and earnings;

° capital requirements and expenditure plans;

° interests of Shareholders;

o any restrictions on payment of dividends; and

o any other factors that the Board may consider
relevant.

5. Depending on the financial conditions of the Company and 5.

the Group and the conditions and factors as set out above,
dividends may be proposed and/or declared by the Board
for a financial year or period as follows:

° interim dividend;

° final dividend;

o special dividend; and

o any distribution of net profits that the Board may
deem appropriate.

6. Any final dividend for a financial year will be subject to the 6.

Shareholders’ approval.

7. The Company may declare and pay dividends by way of 7.

cash or scrip or by other means that the Board considers
appropriate.

8. Any dividend unclaimed shall be forfeited and shall 8.

revert to the Company in accordance with the Articles of
Association, and all applicable laws and regulations.
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DIVIDENDS

An interim dividend of HKO.5 cent per share was paid for the six
months ended 30 June 2021 (2020: nil).

No special dividend was paid or declared for the Year (2020:
HKO.5 cent per share).

During its meeting held on 31 March 2022, the Board has
resolved not to recommend the payment of any final dividend
for the Year (2020: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Year and the
potential future development of the Group’s business is set
out in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 5 to 8 and in the
Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 9 to 18 of this
annual report.

No important event affecting the Group has occurred since the
end of the Year and up to the date of this report.

The performance analysis of the Group for the Year using
financial key performance indicators is set out in the
Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 9 to 18 of this
annual report.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS OF THE GROUP

A discussion on the principal risks and uncertainties faced by
the Group, together with the Group’s internal control, is set out
on pages 86 to 93 of this annual report. The financial risks are
covered in note 33 to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements in this annual report. A more comprehensive
analysis of the Group’s risk factors (excluding the operation
of the palm kernel oil mill and the ancillary biomass power
plants by a subsidiary of the Company in Indonesia, which the
Group acquired in late 2016) is set out on pages 29 to 46 of
the prospectus of the Company dated 12 September 2014 (the
“Prospectus”). The risk factors relating to the operation of
the palm kernel oil mill and the ancillary biomass power plants
in Indonesia are set out on pages 35 to 37 of the Company’s
circular dated 24 August 2016.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS THAT HAVE A SIGNIFICANT
IMPACT ON THE GROUP

The Group operates its business mainly in Hong Kong, the PRC
and Indonesia.

During the Year, save as disclosed in the rest of this annual
report, as far as the Company is aware, there was no breach
of or non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations of
Hong Kong, the PRC and Indonesia by the Group that has a
significant impact on the business and operations of the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

Details of the environmental, social and governance of the
Group are set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report on pages 19 to 57 of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

An account of the Group’s key relationships with its stakeholders
are set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
on pages 19 to 57 of this annual report.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities for the
past five financial years is set out on page 276 of this annual
report. This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements of the Group for the Year.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company will hold its annual general meeting on Thursday,
2 June 2022 (the “2022 AGM”), the notice of which will be
published and dispatched to the Shareholders in due course in
the manner as required by the Listing Rules.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the Shareholders’ entitlement to attend and
vote at the 2022 AGM, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Saturday, 28 May 2022 to Thursday, 2 June
2022 (both dates inclusive), during which period no transfer of
shares of the Company (the “Shares”) will be effected. In order
to qualify for attending and voting at the 2022 AGM, the non-
registered Shareholders must lodge all duly completed transfer
documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, with
the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Boardroom
Share Registrars (HK) Limited at Room 2103B, 21/F., 148
Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Friday 27 May, 2022.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing Shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the Group’s revenue was mainly attributable
to two customers which are local government authorities in
the PRC for the wastewater treatment business. They jointly
accounted for 77.5% of the Group’s revenue, where the two
local government authorities in the PRC accounted for 41.1%
and 36.4% of the Group’s revenue, respectively. The purchases
attributable to the largest supplier and the five largest suppliers
of the Group accounted for 10.2% and 37.1%, respectively of the
Group’s total purchase.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (who, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the number of the issued Shares) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year, together with the reasons therefor, are set out in
note 29 to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in this annual report.

Directors’ Report

EEERE

BEREE

REABEEANKHEEHE LN I
BEERABEEZIAT  BEARBEAR
Lo I 1R 3R A B R 3 S HT AR o

FEEFRRHUER

RAFE AEENEERAZTERA
MAEZEFRESKERRS  ZWH&
EEAETEM A RTHE - HE48EbAK
EEEEWANTIS%  Hb > METEH
5 BRAT #E B o Bl AN SR B A AR
411% K36.4% - AEBHAHER LR
HERAHEEELEBEGEAERER
BE AL DB A10.2%K%371% °

MESEHAEHTMETHERAXEMR
REESFHA BACHITHRMHBEES
RE)VBEEAEBREEZEAREPRHEER
ZIEMEmSmERS -

Bx &
ARBAMAFEZRAZHFELAR

FRRANERAFREAETERERMED
M 3E20R

BEBRERERAT B —EEH

4

103



®

104

Directors’ Report

EEERE

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, amounted to HK$237.2
million (31 December 2020: HK$251.9 million). This amount
included the Company’s share premium account of HK$391.8
million as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: HK$408.5
million), which may be distributed provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

DIRECTORS

The following are the Directors during the Year and up to the
date of this report:

The EDs

CHAU On Ta Yuen (“Mr. Chau”) (Chairman) N

CHAN Kwan (“Mr. Chan”) (Chief Executive Officer) N
Radius SUHENDRA

CHAU Chi Yan Benny (“Mr. Benny Chau”)

The NED
CHAN Pak Lam Brian (“Mr. Brian Chan”) ?

The INEDs

NG Chung Yan Linda (“Ms. Ng”) A/RN

NG Man Kung (“Mr. Ng”) A/"R\N

LEUNG Bo Yee Nancy (“Ms. Leung”) A/"N

A = member of the Audit Committee
R = member of the Remuneration Committee
N = member of the Nomination Committee

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Mr. Benny Chau,
Mr. Brian Chan and Ms. Leung shall retire at the 2022 AGM
and all of them, being eligible, have offered themselves for re-
election.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INEDS

The Company has received from each of the INEDs, namely Ms.
Ng, Mr. Ng and Ms. Leung, an annual written confirmation of
his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
As at the date of this report, the Company considers all of them
to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages
58 to 66 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming 2022 AGM has a service contract or an
appointment letter with the Company that is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 37 to the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements in this annual report, none of the Directors
or an entity connected with a Director had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to the business of the Group, to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, subsisted
during or at the end of the Year.

CHARITABLE DONATION

During the Year, the Group has not made any charitable
donation (2020: IDR69.1 million).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 5 September 2014, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) to enable the Company
to grant options to the eligible participants as incentives or
rewards for their contribution or potential contribution to the
Group.
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The Share Option Scheme took effect on 26 September
2014. During the Year, no options were granted, exercised or
cancelled, 500,000 options were lapsed and as at 31 December
2021, no options were outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme.

The maximum number of Shares in respect of the options
granted by the Company under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes must not in aggregate exceed
80,000,000 Shares (representing 10% of the Shares in issue
immediately upon completion of the Share Offer (as defined in
the Prospectus) and approximately 7.22% of the Shares in issue
as at the date of this report).

Details of the options outstanding during the Year under the
Share Option Scheme are set out as follows:

EhEFENR =T —TNFEALA=-+AH
AR RAFE BEBREERL -
EEITE KT - B500,00017 B I E B &
HRRZEZ—F+ZA=+—H" 'R
BT B T EE RITE R BARE -

ARARIMEBRETEREREMER
BAEFENBEREMPEHZARMD
H B A £ T 1518 3880,000,000 &M% (5
FIEERBEERNEE(EXLBRER)
TR BT E10% & R AR E B H
BETRMOEET7.22%)

74 2 18 IR T 818 R 47 0 B R 2
HEHIMT -

Number of underlying Shares comprised in options

BREMAENEEROHUE

Outstanding

Outstanding as at

as at Lapsed/ 31 December
1 January 2021 Granted Exercised cancelled 2021  Exercise price
M=ZZZ-% during the Year duringthe Year duringthe Year = R-Z=-# per Share
Option holder Date of grant -A-8 TEER TEER *EER +-A=t+-A SRR H
BREREA BRTEH AR TR BRI BT BAM/H# i RAT 6 TRE
HKS
AT
A former employee 14 April 2016 500,000 - - 500,000 - 0.52

—%FER ZE-REEATEA

The options granted to a former employee shall vest over a
period of three years commencing on the date of grant. The
closing price of the Shares immediately before the date of grant
was HK$0.50 per Share, as stated in the daily quotation sheet
issued by the Stock Exchange. Those options are exercisable
from 14 April 2017 to 13 April 2026. All 500,000 options of such
a former employee were lapsed on 31 October 2021 due to his
resignation on 30 September 2021.
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The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are set out as
follows:

PURPOSE

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Company to grant options to Eligible Participants (as
defined in paragraph 2 below) as incentives or rewards for
their contribution or potential contribution to the Group.

ELIGIBLE PARTICIPANTS

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option
to subscribe for such number of new Shares as the Board
may determine to any full-time or part-time employees,
potential employees, executives or officers (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-executive
directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and
any suppliers, customers, agents and advisers who, in
the sole opinion of the Board, will contribute or have
contributed to the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries
(the “Eligible Participants”).

MAXIMUM NUMBER OF SHARES AVAILABLE FOR
ISSUE

The maximum number of Shares in respect of the options
granted by the Company under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes must not in aggregate
exceed 80,000,000 Shares (representing 10% of the
Shares in issue immediately upon completion of the Share
Offer (as defined in the Prospectus) and approximately
7.22% of the Shares in issue as at the date of this report).

MAXIMUM ENTITLEMENT OF EACH PARTICIPANT
UNDER THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The maximum number of Shares comprising in the options
that may be granted under the Share Option Scheme to
any Eligible Participant shall not, when aggregated with

(@ any Shares issued upon exercise of options under
the Share Option Scheme or options under other
schemes which have been granted to that Eligible
Participant;
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(b) any Shares which would be issued upon the exercise
of outstanding options under the Share Option
Scheme or options under other schemes granted to
that Eligible Participant; and

() any cancelled Shares which were the subject of
options under the Share Option Scheme or options
under other schemes which had been granted to and
accepted by that Eligible Participant,

in any 12-month period up to the offer date, exceed 1%
of the number of Shares in issue on the offer date. Any
further grant of options in excess of this 1% limit shall be
subject to:

() the issue of a circular by the Company to the
Shareholders, which shall comply with the Listing
Rules; and

(i)  the approval of the Shareholders in a general meeting
at which that Eligible Participant and his/her/its
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) shall
abstain from voting.

Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder
(as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company or an
INED, or any of their respective associates, would result
in the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
all options already granted and to be granted (including
options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such
person in the 12-month period up to and including the
date of such grant (i) representing in aggregate over 0.1%
of the Shares in issue on the date of such grant; and (ii)
having an aggregate value, based on the official closing
price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, in
excess of HK$5.0 million, such further grant of the options
shall be subject to the approval of the Shareholders with
such person/entity and his/her/its core connected persons
(as defined in the Listing Rules) abstaining from voting in
favour at the general meeting.
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Any grant of options to any Director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of
the Company, or any of their respective associates under
the Share Option Scheme is subject to the prior approval
of the INEDs (excluding the INED who is the grantee of an
option).

PERIOD WITHIN WHICH THE SECURITIES
MUST BE EXERCISED UNDER AN OPTION

Unless otherwise provided in the respective grantee’s
offer document, each of the grantees to whom an option
has been granted under the Share Option Scheme shall
be entitled to exercise his/her/its option in the following
manner:

(@) up to 33% of the Shares that are subject to the
option so granted to him/her/it (rounded down to the
nearest whole number) at any time during the period
commencing on the first anniversary of the date on
which such option is granted (the “Commencement
Date”) and ending on the expiry of the period
to be notified by the Board to each grantee (the
“Option Period”), within which the option may be
exercisable provided that the Option Period shall not
exceed a period of ten years commencing on the
Commencement Date;

(b) up to 66% of the Shares that are subject to the
option so granted to him/her/it (rounded down to
the nearest whole number) at any time during the
period commencing on the second anniversary of the
Commencement Date and ending on the expiry of the
Option Period; and

(c) up to 100% of the Shares that are subject to the
option so granted to him/her/it (rounded down to
the nearest whole number) at any time during the
period commencing on the third anniversary of the
Commencement Date and ending on the expiry of the
Option Period.

5.
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MINIMUM PERIOD, IF ANY, FOR WHICH AN
OPTION MUST BE HELD BEFORE IT CAN BE
EXERCISED

There is no minimum period for which an option granted
must be held before it can be exercised unless otherwise
imposed by the Directors.

PERIOD FOR AND CONSIDERATION PAYABLE ON
ACCEPTANCE OF AN OPTION

An offer for the grant of option must be accepted within
the time period specified in the relevant offer document.
A sum of HK$1.00 is payable as consideration upon
acceptance of the offer.

BASIS OF DETERMINING THE EXERCISE PRICE

The exercise price in relation to each option offered to an
Eligible Participant shall be determined by the Board (or its
committee) in its sole discretion, save that such price shall
not be less than the highest of:

(@) the official closing price of the Shares as stated in
the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange on
the date of grant, which must be a day on which the
Stock Exchange is open for business of dealing in
securities (the “Business Day”);

(b) the average of the official closing prices of the Shares
as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five Business Days immediately

preceding the date of grant; and

(c) the nominal value of a Share.
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9. REMAINING LIFE OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period
of 10 years commencing on 26 September 2014,

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option granted with details set out under
the section headed “Share Option Scheme” in this report, the
Company has not entered into any equity-linked agreements
that (i) will or may result in the Company issuing Shares; or (ii)
require the Company to enter into any agreement that will or
may result in the Company issuing Shares during the Year and
no such agreement subsisted at the end of the Year.

ARRANGEMENTS FOR DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES

Save as disclosed above in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme”, at no time during the Year or at the end of the Year
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable a Director to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of the Shares or any shares in or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts (except for the executive Directors’ service
contracts) concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company or
its subsidiaries were entered into or existed during the Year.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five
individuals with the highest emoluments for the Year are set out
in notes 10 and 11, respectively to the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements in this annual report.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES OF THE
COMPANY IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2021, the interests or short positions of
the Directors or chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the laws of
Hong Kong (the “SFO”)), which were required: (i) to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (i) pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code, were as follows:

Interest in the Company’s ordinary Shares of HK$0.0001 each

Name of Directors/Chief Executive Capacity/Nature of Interest

Number of Shares Held

FLAFESRERBITHRARRETLF
RE#HBEZENEG - HRRBRER
fHEPHESIRKE

R-EBE-_—F+-_A=+—H ' ARQRA#E
EdmETHRABRARRE K EEME
BEE(EERBBEOENEZTLHK
HEKRM((HERBEFM ] EXVI B
Rfn -  HERNDMEEZIFRES: ()BE
BEREEBEHEXVERETRSS 2 /A &N
FARRIRBRAAOESZI AR (BER
EREBEZTSFLHERINZSZBRXHE
ES R ABEAENERIOXE) K (i) R IE
BEKHEIE G F3521% BB R ZIF
T 45 & &0 1 &9 48 25 50K 2 ¢ 3K (i) AR R 12
ESFAIAME ARG KB FTA R & X
KRBT

AN A7 I E {E0.000178 7T 79 & 38 A 17
Z RS

Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding Interest
in the Company

EEXZ/BETBRAEHA B/ EntE FERGEE REAARBRESAEIL
Mr. Chau Interest in a controlled corporation 225,000,000M 20.32%
A% RErBEER
Mr. Chan Interest in controlled corporations 353,200,000@ 31.90%
BREE XELERER

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2021 Annual Report



Notes:

(1) Wealthy Sea which held 225,000,000 Shares is owned as to 90% and
10% by Mr. Chau, an executive Director and the Chairman and Ms.
Wong Mei Ling, the wife of Mr. Chau, respectively.

2) Everbest Environmental which held 337,500,000 Shares was owned
as to 50%, 30% and 20% by Ms. Wong Shu Ying (“Ms. Wong”),
Ms. Judy Chan and Mr. Chan, an executive Director and the CEOQO,
respectively. Mr. Chan is the sole director of Everbest Environmental.
Ms. Wong is the mother of all of Ms. Judy Chan, Mr. Chan and Mr.
Brian Chan, the NED. Mr. Chan also owns 20% of the issued shares
in Kingdrive Limited which in turn owns 100% of the issued shares in
Carlton Asia Limited (“Carlton Asia”). Carlton Asia held 15,700,000
Shares and is accustomed to act in accordance with the directions of
Mr. Chan.

(3)  All the above Shares were held in long position.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of
the Directors or chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares,
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which
had been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange or
entered in the register referred to in the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, to the best of the Directors’
knowledge, the following entities or persons (other than the
Directors and chief executives of the Company) had or were
deemed or taken to have an interest and/or a short position
in the Shares or the underlying Shares, which would fall to be
disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO or which was recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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Interest in the Company’s ordinary Shares of HK$0.0001 each

AR A 7 A E {E0.000178 JT /) % 38 A 17

2w
Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding
Number of Interest in the
Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares Held Total Company
EARLNT R E
REMZ /28 BB/ ERkE FrEROEE @t #aEstt
Everbest Environmental Beneficial interest 337,500,000(1 337,500,000 30.48%
Enftn
Ms. Wong Beneficial interest 18,915,000 7
Tat Enftn ~ 371,080,000 33.51%
Interest in controlled corporations 352,165,000 _|
RELBER
Mr. Chan Chun Keung Interest in a controlled corporation 14,665,0002 ]
PRE® L4 XEEEER ~ 371,080,000 33.51%
Interest held by spouse 356,415,000 _]
Be 48 A s 2
Wealthy Sea Beneficial interest 225,000,0000! 225,000,000 20.32%
B Enftn
Ms. Wong Mei Ling Interest held by spouse 225,000,0000! 225,000,000 20.32%
IERTT Be 48 A s 2
Morgan Top Trading Co., Ltd. Beneficial interest 143,300,000 143,300,000 12.94%
Enftn
Notes: B 5 -

(1)

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Each of Everbest Environmental and Hightop Investment Limited
(“Hightop”) is owned as to 50% by Ms. Wong and therefore, Ms.
Wong is deemed to be interested in the 337,500,000 Shares and
14,665,000 Shares held by Everbest Environmental and Hightop
respectively pursuant to the SFO. Also, Ms. Wong is beneficially
interested in 18,915,000 Shares.

Hightop is also owned as to 50% by Mr. Chan Chun Keung,
the husband of Ms. Wong. Therefore, Mr. Chan Chun Keung is
deemed to be interested in the 14,665,000 Shares held by Hightop,
337,500,000 Shares deemed to be held by Ms. Wong through
Everbest Environmental and 18,915,000 Shares beneficially owned by
Ms. Wong pursuant to the SFO.

2021 Annual Report
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(3)  Wealthy Sea is owned as to 90% and 10% by Mr. Chau, an executive
Director and the Chairman, and Ms. Wong Mei Ling, the wife of Mr.
Chau, respectively. Ms. Wong Mei Ling is, therefore, deemed to be
interested in the 225,000,000 Shares held by Wealthy Sea controlled
by Mr. Chau pursuant to the SFO.

(4)  All the above Shares were held in long position.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the
Directors were not aware of any entities which or persons (other
than a Director or the chief executive of the Company) who had,
or were deemed or taken to have interests or short positions in
the Shares or the underlying Shares, which had been disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO or were entered in the register kept by the
Company under the SFO.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES/PENSION
SCHEME

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong
Kong under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(Chapter 485 of the laws of Hong Kong) for employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s operations in the PRC are
required to participate in the central pension schemes operated
by the local municipal governments, the assets of which are
held separately from those of the Group. Contributions are
made by the Group based on a percentage of the participating
employees’ salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension schemes. The employer contributions vest fully with the
employees once made.
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Under the Indonesia Labour Law, companies are required to
pay separation, appreciation and compensation benefits to
their employees if the conditions specified in the Indonesia
Labour Law are met. The Company’s subsidiaries in Indonesia
estimate their liability for employee service entitlement benefits
in order to meet and cover the minimum benefits requirement
to be paid to employees under the Indonesia Labour Law. For
further information, please refer to note 35 to the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in this annual report.

No forfeited contributions were incurred during the Year. For
further information, please refer to note 35 to the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company maintained
adequate public float (i.e. at least 25% of the issued Shares
being held by the public) during the Year and up to the date of
this report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in the
ordinary course of business by the Group during the Year are
set out in note 37 to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements in this annual report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Group had not conducted any “one-off
connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction”
(as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) which is
subject to reporting and annual review requirements under the
Listing Rules. Save for disclosed in note 37(a) and (b) to the
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this annual
report, the transactions disclosed in note 37 to the Notes to
the Consolidated Financial Statements in this annual report as
related party transactions did not fall under the definition of
“‘connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction”
(as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) or are fully
exempt continuing connected transactions under Rule 14A.73 of
the Listing Rules.
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of Ms. Judy Chan, Mr. Chan (an ED and the CEQ), Ms.
Wong, Everbest Environmental (a company owned by Ms.
Wong, Ms. Judy Chan and Mr. Chan as to 50%, 30% and
20%, respectively), Mr. Chau (an ED and the Chairman) and
Wealthy Sea (@ company owned as to 90% and 10% by Mr.
Chau and his wife, respectively) (collectively, the “Controlling
Shareholders”) executed a deed of non-competition (the
“Deed of Non-Competition”) in favour of the Company on 5
September 2014. Pursuant to the Deed of Non-Competition,
each of the Controlling Shareholders has unconditionally and
irrevocably agreed, undertaken to and covenanted with the
Company (for itself and for the benefits of other members of the
Group) that it/he/she would not, and would procure its/his/her
associates (other than members of the Group) not to, directly
or indirectly, either on its/his/her own account or in conjunction
with or on behalf of any person, firm or company, among other
things, carry on, participate or be interested or engaged in or
acquire or hold (in each case whether as a shareholder, director,
partner, agent, employee or otherwise, and whether for profit,
reward or otherwise) any activity or business which competes
or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with the business
of operating wastewater treatment facilities in the PRC by the
Group as described in the Prospectus and any other business
from time to time conducted, carried on or contemplated to be
carried on by any member of the Group or in which any member
of the Group is engaged or has invested or which any member
of the Group has otherwise publicly announced its intention
to enter into, engage in or invest in (whether as principal or
agent and whether undertaken directly or through any body
corporate, partnership, joint venture, or other contractual or
other arrangement).

The Company has received from each of the Controlling
Shareholders an annual written declaration as to the compliance
with the terms of the Deed of Non-Competition during the
Year. The INEDs had reviewed the compliance by each of the
Controlling Shareholders with the Deed of Non-Competition
and were not aware of the occurrence of any adverse event,
confirmed that the Controlling Shareholders had not been in
breach of the Deed of Non-Competition during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, none of the
Directors is considered to have interests in a business (apart
from the Group’s business) which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group and has any other conflicts of interest, as required to be
disclosed under the Listing Rules.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed above and in note 37 to the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in this annual report,
no controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance (whether for the provision of services to the Group
or not) to the business of the Group to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITIES

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him/
her as a Director in defending any proceedings, whether civil
or criminal, in which judgement is given in his/her favour, or
in which he/she is acquitted. In addition, proper insurance
coverage in respect of legal actions against the Directors’
liability has been arranged. The relevant provisions in the
Articles of Association and the Directors’ liability insurance were
in force during the Year and as at the date of this report.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holdings of the Shares. If
the Shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or exercising of
any rights in relation to the Shares, they are advised to consult
their professional advisers.
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EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 122 employees (31
December 2020: 114 employees). Employee costs, including
Directors’ emoluments, amounted to approximately HK$14.7
million for FY2021 (FY2020: HK$13.2 million). The remuneration
policy for our Directors, senior management members and
general staff is based on their experience, level of responsibility
and general market conditions. Any discretionary bonus and
other merit payments are linked to the profit performance of
our Group and the individual performance of our Directors,
senior management members and general staff. The Group
encourages the self-development of its employees and provides
on-the-job training where appropriate.

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 5
September 2014 for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible directors and employees of the Group.
Details of which are set out in the subsection headed “SHARE
OPTION SCHEME” in this report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the Year, the Company did not redeem its Shares listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, nor did the Company
or any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell any of such Shares.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the principal corporate governance policies and
practices adopted by the Company are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 67 to 97 of this annual report.

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and paragraph
C.3 of the Corporate Governance Code (which has been
renumbered as paragraph D.3 of the Corporate Governance
Code since 1 January 2022) contained in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules for the purpose of reviewing and providing
supervision over the Group’s financial reporting process, risk
management and internal controls. As at the date of this report,
the Audit Committee comprises three members, namely Ms.
Ng (who is also the chairlady of the Audit Committee), Mr. Ng
and Ms. Leung, all being the INEDs. The Audit Committee has
reviewed with the Company’s management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and the annual
audited consolidated results of the Group for the Year.

UPDATE ON THE DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, changes in
Directors’ information since the date of the 2021 interim report
of the Company are set out below:

Mr. Chau has been re-designated from an independent non-
executive director of Good Resources Holdings Limited (stock
code: 109) to its executive director and its chairman of board of
directors with effect from 23 September 2021.

Mr. Ng resigned as an independent non-executive director of
Renco Holdings Group Limited (stock code: 2323) with effect
from 21 March 2022.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) resigned as the
independent auditor of the Group with effect from 26 November
2019. Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited (“Baker Tilly”) was
appointed as the independent auditor of the Company with
effect from 12 December 2019 to fill the casual vacancy
following the resignation of Deloitte.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Year have been audited by Baker Tilly, which will retire and,
being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment at the forthcoming
2022 AGM. Having been approved by the Board upon the
Audit Committee’s recommendation, a resolution to re-appoint
Baker Tilly as the independent auditor of the Company and to
authorise the Directors to fix its remuneration will be proposed
at the forthcoming 2022 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Chau On Ta Yuen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022

Directors’ Report

EEERE

¥ 3L #% By B

e IEE R T (e )BT
CEBUKHN BT -AE+ A
S ABREN ABEBEHHEL
FERAT(RB)BEEEBAATS
ST 4% BB LA S A D B AT 1% o R B T L
TH o A-F-NE+-A+- BN

AEERAFREZGEEVBHRREEA
ABEZ RBBREANAERLRA
ERABBAZ_ZS__FRITAFK
CRXER -KEFERBEEXEZES
MEBEERLE BERFRBRAAT
BYUGBMAIREESITEREFTINZ
RERBRABRITZ_FT-_—_FRE
BFERERE -

KEXEFE

E
AzEIR

EE —E-_—_F#=A=+—H

BEBRERERAT B —EEH

4

121



A

122

Independent Auditor’s Report
BY R EENRE

@ pakertilly
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
ELL Environmental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 132 to 275, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBE RS

HERRRERARAIARR
(RASESEMKIHBRAA)
REEHER

FREFFTASRERMOFTRHE -
RBHAMEAMBERENEARA/E
BHNEH FELEHEERMEBTBE
REMBHRRMEAZRRRETRIEN -
BT EHELETHREHERNER -

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key audit matter
BREHEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BN BT OMEEARETSTRETER

Revenue and profit from construction services and imputed interest income on receivables

under service concession arrangements

KEZBRBRBYEFUARBFIURIBRBIFFRELHFERFR#EEFZRA

Refer to notes 4, 5 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements

EEHGEEBEHRAN T4 - 5816

We identified recognition of revenue and profit
from construction services and imputed interest
income on receivables under service concession
arrangements as a key audit matter due to the
significant estimation made by the Group’s
management.

mY EEEEEEBMEERMG  RMEKRER
BB ERWARGEN AR RS FFELHET
ERRENEENEWMARERERETEE -

Our procedures in relation to recognition of revenue
and profit from construction services and imputed
interest income on receivables under service
concession arrangements included:
BRI B ER RGNS WA KgAKk
PR 75 7 5T 22 HE T FE W R IE &Y 1 B R B U A ERER
WizFBeRE:

° Examining the related BOT agreements entered
into between the governments and the Group
to assess the appropriateness of the related
accounting treatment adopted by the Group;

s ELEHNHE BSHEEFYHMEBABOTHZE - N
i BEEEMRMERSTEENEES
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BY R EENRE

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont’d)

Key audit matter

HMREESER

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements, revenue from construction of
wastewater treatment and biomass power facilities
under the terms of build-operate-transfer (the
“BOT”) arrangement are estimated on a cost-plus
basis in which the construction margin is estimated
with reference to a prevailing market rate of gross
margins of market comparable at the time of
construction. Revenue from construction services
is recognised using the percentage-of-completion
method measured by reference to the proportion of
costs incurred to date to the estimated total cost of
the construction contract.
TEMBHMRMTIFARE  BREER — &%
— BR(BOTDZEHR R RBEERTKEEREY
ﬁ%a & B B0 & 3 A DA B R I AROE BT 0 T2
REMEDZ2ZRBEERATELBNRITMBE
ﬂTMJokﬁk SREHEXEWARKATIASD
LA ZERRBRAR RB2ZBLELSEEERKNGRE
BHREFT AR ARE LI E -

Imputed interest income from wastewater treatment
and biomass power facilities under the terms of
the BOT arrangement is recognised from time
to time on receivables under service concession
arrangements on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by discounting the
estimated future cash receipts over the service
concession period at the estimated effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition.
RBFAFELHF THRERBINESERERA
RERBFAEEERBOTEHGR T I5KEE R
EYEERBRBOBEENBRA - WIRBYIIAHER
5T & 8 (4 51 B BN =8 AR 7% 45 5T B &Y {4 5T R 2K
e W ARRR -
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HREBRERERLARR
(RHAEHBEMAINERAF)
REFEEHE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN ES NI EERETETRETER

° Understanding the Group’s estimation of the
construction margin, the available industry
and market data of market comparables at the
time of construction and the involvement of an
independent valuer appointed by the Group for
the revenue from construction services;

e HNKXEBERKMBEMEREA TH E£E
BERENXNMGET B2ERAIFUTELR
MHENTEETSEELE EEEZTENE
MG ERE 28R

° Evaluating the independent external valuer’s
competence, capabilities and objectives
of the exercise and assessing its valuation
methodology;

s HEBINBEEMNERE -
EEMERAGEEAET L

K HE %

o Assessing the reasonableness of the
percentage-of-completion measured by
reference to the proportion of costs incurred
to date to the estimated total cost of the
construction contract;

e HHEZ2EBLSDEELAMNALBESANMGTR
AN EN T IS LS EM:

o Verifying the construction costs incurred during
the year by examining the contracts, invoices,
completion reports and other supporting
documents on a sample basis;

. %ﬂmhﬁéAm BE -TIHERHEM

BRAXH  REFRELEHNERNA:
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont’d)

Key audit matter

HMREESER

The Group engages an independent qualified valuer
to access the prevailing market rate of gross margin
of market comparable and the effective interest rate
for service concession arrangements as mentioned
above.

EEERBEYAERMEMT G LM E LR
MHENRTHISENERRBETRLTHENER
M= o

As disclosed in notes 5 and 16 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group recognised
revenue and profit from construction services of
HK$22,955,000 and HK$3,158,000, respectively,
and imputed interest income on receivables
under services concession arrangements of
HK$15,725,000 during the year ended 31 December
2021.

MEGEMBREMISRIGHEE  BHEZT=Z—
FT_A=T—RLFE BESEEAKREBER
AR 7% 89 & 2 W A KOs F 9 Bl 522,955,000 T K&
3,158,000/ 7T * AR 7% R 5T #E & HF T FE W SR IE A9 H
B F B A B15,725,0007 7T ©
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B AR S

HREBRERERLARR
(RHAEHBEMAINERAF)
REFEEHE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN ES NI EERETETRETER

° Evaluating the estimated total cost of
construction contract by reference to the
signed contracts and approved budgets; and

e ZELERIAGARCHERETRRESH
B E AR AR

° Evaluating the reasonableness of estimated
effective interest rate for the imputed
interest income on receivables under service
concession arrangements by benchmarking
against market data.

e UMBEBEREETMEREFIFELEETE
WRIENHEENEBERANKGERNENE
B
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BY R EENRE

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont’d)

Key audit matter

HMREESER

HREBRERERLARR
(RHAEHBEMAINERAF)
REFEEHE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN ES NI EERETETRETER

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment

WH - BE R R LB E TS

Refer to notes 4 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements

FEHEEN B HEN E4R15

We identified impairment assessment of property,
plant and equipment as a key audit matter
due to the significant judgements made by the
management in assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (“CGU”), which are
derived from value in use calculations using
discounted cash flow model.

mY EEEEEREAETARSELABEM(REE
AEBEMDHA KRB BE(RBRBAESRBELFTER
REEEL)RSIFHERAE  RASYE K
ERJRERENGETEABBETSFE-

Management’s impairment assessment of property,
plant and equipment is highly judgemental and is
dependent on certain key assumptions including
the discount rate, growth rates, budgeted sales and
gross margin, which are affected by expected future
market or economic conditions, particularly those in
the Republic of Indonesia (“Indonesia”).

EEEBHDE BMEARBOMENGEBERE YR
BERHE MEAERRRETERRRER B
MEXR EREXNBEHELRENE  JIREIEDG
XEBMAKRTEXQHBEBAMTE  LHEHE
JEFa s KAME(TENfE ) MR K T35 s &R B AR -

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Our procedures in relation to impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment
included:

B WE - BMELRBOREFHERRNNERF
B

° Understanding the Group’s impairment
assessment process, including the impairment
model, preparation of the cash flow projections
and involvement of an independent valuer
appointed by the Group;

TR EEBERENGENERRE(BERERDE
Rene8BANGREE EEEZRENET
HERMA2E) ;

° Evaluating the independent external valuer’s
competence, capability and objectivity and
assessing its valuation methodology;
AEBLINBEEMONERE e W REH U
Nt EMEER
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont’d)

Key audit matter

HMREESER

Independent Auditor’s Report

B BT R

HBRERRERERIAARR
(RASBEESEMARIZHNARRE)

HEEERE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN ES NI EERETETRETER

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment

WH - BE R R LB E TS

Refer to notes 4 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements

FEHMEENBHEN T4 B15

An independent qualified professional valuer is
engaged to assess the recoverable amount of the
CGU.

EEERF RBEYAEREXMAEMIAMRSE
HEMHRKEERE -

During the year ended 31 December 2021, no
impairment loss was recognised in respect of
property, plant and equipment after assessing the
recoverable amount of CGU which is principally
engaged in the biomass power generation and sales
of biofuel business in Indonesia.
BHE-T-_—F+-A=1+—HIEFE RFHH
CEABUAWEESERERYE KEKIRZEHE
RIEBBFEEE MASELELUFEEHNER
EEMERBREEEMMREER -

Evaluating the appropriateness of impairment
model applied by the management;
AEEEBERRERLNREIL:

Comparing the budgeted sales and gross
margin against historical performance and the
management’s business plan in respect of the
CGU;
REEHERENETEBAEREREEER
ReEFBEMIEHNERTEETHE:

Evaluating the accuracy of the management’s
cash flow forecasts by comparing the actual
results of the CGU to the previously forecasted
results;
FRBReELEMNE RS R E LA TE A
BRETHE UTHEEBENRESRER
A EREE

Assessing the reasonableness of growth rates
and discount rate applied in the forecast based
on historical experiences and trends; and
BEBEALKRBRLELBEFHEANZEANFH
MERRBRENSEY R

Evaluating the sensitivity analysis performed by
management on the key assumptions as stated
above and assessed the potential impacts of a
range of possible outcomes.
AEEEER L AARBRRETHNBERRED
MERF A ERBENEELE -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BY R EENRE

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

— ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

— Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BY R EENRE

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont’d)

— Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

— Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

— Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

— Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.
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HBRERRERERIAARR
(RASBEESEMARIZHNARRE)

BB F M B RRRIENR
(%)

— FEESFRAeISHANRYEE
RAEH G G ARBREN S 2
p

- HEZRAFELESHERNR
EUHELER - RIZAERNE
R MEEAFERERLER
BERAMNEATHEEN tmAlgE
HY EEENKELERNESE
ERRE -WREMBR/FEEKX
THEEN  MEABEEZBERS
PIRFEEAEIBRRAMBERTP
MR E - REAHENKETE -
AIRPMEEERIFERERR - &
ey m R E R R BA & B 1A
RMENERE - A KRKER
HERAEER EEETHERE

_%
o

— WESAHBHRRNEREINA
BBEBANAT BREBEE UAEREKEA
MBERERRETERRZIZHMEE -

- 3 BEEEAERIAXKIHHH
BIESERTE BEMERIRE
MR BHRRERER - &M
AEREEZESNTM  EEMHAT -
BMAEFERAELRER -

FREMEIRSN  BAEREERBT A
ENEFHE HHEHTH EAFSH
RE - BREBMESE B &GS RERE
i B (E /1 & R BRFE o



TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont’d)

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Wan Wing Ping.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 31 March 2022

Wan Wing Ping
Practicing certificate number P07471
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
mEeEEK

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bt 2 —F ——F+ - A=+ —HI FE&E

NOTES 2021 2020
Bt 3% —E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Revenue BEWA (9 103,136 59,017
Cost of sales RN (49,498) (29,399)
Gross profit EH 53,638 29,618
Other income and net gains E AU A R F W = 7 4,456 5,329
Impairment losses under expected credit FEHi{Z EEEE X TH
loss model BB & 1B (3,250) =
Administrative expenses ITHHAX (27,536) (27,867)
Finance costs Bl & B AR 8 (4,408) (1,984)
Profit before tax B 3 A A 9 22,900 5,096
Income tax expense FEHAX 12 (11,394) (6,581)
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF,(E8) 11,506 (1,485)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: A~ & 757 &R FERFF|
(E18) -
Owners of the Company ZIN/NETEZ =N 6,145 (4,956)
Non-controlling interests FE 1 A HE & 5,361 3,471
11,506 (1,485)
HK cent HK cent
&l Al
Earnings/(loss) per share BRAF(EE) 14
— Basic — AR 0.55 (0.45)
— Diluted — B8 0.55 (0.45)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
meBRsEkEMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & £ —E - —F+ - A=+ —HI F&ZF

2021 2020
=B _T_TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Profit/(loss) for the year FRmF(E8) 11,506 (1,485)
Other comprehensive income/ Hth2mh A (BxX)
(expense)
Item that will not be reclassified to profit T &8E#H P E 28 AIIEH -
or loss:

Actuarial gain/(loss) of defined benefit
retirement plan
ltems that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:

RERAEK B ZBE RS
(& 1#8) 754 )
BER A RE ERT A 2B as AR A

Exchange differences arising on MEBIEREECELZR
translation of foreign operations 8,813 17,245
Net fair value loss on debt instruments FEBHEME2E K S AL EET
at fair value through other ENEBIEANAAEEE
comprehensive income F R (1,303) =
Release on disposal of debt TEZRAEMEEREZEAN
instruments at fair value through B EWEBTAREMD
other comprehensive income - 84
Release on redemption of debt BEOZERAEMEABSEAR
instruments at fair value through B EMEFSIARKRED
other comprehensive income 5 —
Other comprehensive income for the year & N EH 4th 2 E M A 8,269 17,325
Total comprehensive income FREEKAAEE
for the year 19,775 15,840
Total comprehensive income for the year JA N & EEFER 2 EU A E5E
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZiN/NSIET =N 13,265 10,385
Non-controlling interests I ¥ {7 6,510 5,455
19,775 15,840
BRBRIZERERAA ——FFER
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e MBRREK

As at 31 December 2021 R=—F-——F+=-A=+—H

NOTES 2021 2020
Bt 5 —F=-- —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FE T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BENREE 15 71,490 73,470
Deposits paid for acquisition of property,  EEW % - MELRE 2
plant and equipment BEffike - 897
Receivables under service concession MR FEZH TH
arrangements ] 16 313,194 292,899
Goodwill GRS 17 - =
Debt instruments at fair value through % i@ H b & | W 25 1%
other comprehensive income AARBEFENER
TA 18 2,012 3,380
Other financial assets at amortised cost & ## 84 5k K 51 & 89
HEmermEE 19 14 2,038
Prepayments and other receivables T8 538 M H A FE 4R
IE 20 341 —
Restricted bank deposits BRI 3R 17 17 53X 21 2,960 6,015
390,011 378,699
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 1,973 964
Trade receivables H 5 Wk 1E 20 73 =
Receivables under service concession MR HFEZH TH
arrangements FEHSZ A 16 25,559 21,883
Prepayments and other receivables i} H I8 % H A fE UK
A 20 30,867 10,175
Income tax recoverable A Ug B FiT 15 F4 - 771
Debt instruments at fair value through  #BHME2EW R A
other comprehensive income AEFENEFLIA 18 - 1,592
Other financial assets at amortised cost 1% # &5k N5t S B9 H b
TRLEE 19 5 6,215
Restricted bank deposits BRI R 1715 3N 21 2,960 6,015
Time deposits 7E HB 17 3k 21 12,269 .
Bank balances and cash RITEH IR S 21 65,054 51,067
138,760 98,682
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables 2 5 RIA 22 3,301 2,764
Other payables and accruals H i & < 5018 & FE &
E=ss! 23 5,984 6,491
Amounts due to related parties JIE 1< BB BSE 5 3K IR 24 35,207 13,406
Borrowings & 25 35,107 20,240
Lease liabilities HEAE 26 472 547
Income tax payable FETATIS 4,972 2,213
85,043 45,661
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 53,717 53,021
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERRBAEE
LIABILITIES 443,728 431,720

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2021 Annual Report



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI ER

As at 31 December 2021 R = ZFE-—F+=-HA=+—H

NOTES 2021 2020
Bt 5 =B —-F _ZT_ZTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRf#E
Share capital fi& 72 29 111 111
Reserves G 30 352,754 345,025
Equity attributable to owners of the ARAREBANEGER
Company 352,865 345,136
Non-controlling interests FE 1R IR #E 2 30,200 30,028
TOTAL EQUITY B 383,065 375,164
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBAE
Amounts due to related parties JFE 1< B8 B U5 SR IB 24 4,000 =
Borrowings &3 25 - 2,240
Lease liabilities HEAE 26 - 472
Deferred tax liabilities BELEHIBEEE 27 36,620 35,774
Provision for major overhauls BERBREEE 28 18,978 16,656
Retirement benefit obligations RKEHNEE 35 1,065 1,414
60,663 56,556
443,728 431,720

The consolidated financial statements on pages 132 to 275 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
31 March 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

Chau On Ta Yuen

BAZER
Chairman
FE

RoT-——&E=A=+— Bk RE

FIRE E2ICEMGRENBREREES

Chan Kwan
BR &
Executive director

HITEZF

BRABRERERAT —B-—FFH
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERSEX

At 31 December 2021 R—E—-—#+_-_H=+—H

Attributable to owners of the Gompany

FAAEEAEL
Share Investment Non-
Share Share option Other  Exchange General  revaluation  Accumulated controllng
capital premium Tesere reserve reserve eSere Tesere losses ~ Sub-total Interests Total
Rx  ROEE RRESE  AbER  ENRE  -REE REERBE  ZiER Nt BRER i
HKGO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKBOOD  HKSO00  HKS0OO  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
T Tin TR Thn Thn TR TiEn Thn Thn TR TR
(note 30(A) (note 30B)
(FE30) (H3E308)
At 1 Januery 2020 R-2-%%
-A-A 111 408,460 121 (31,476) (11,644) 2,128 62 @988 3584 3892 e
(Losg)iproft for the year ~ ER(EE)/ & - - - - - - - {¢.956) (£,956) 3471 [1,485)
Actuarilloss of defined ~ RERFEM3FEZ
benefi efirement plan~~ REEE - - - - - - - @ @ S 0
Exchange diferences arisng £ 535 $5& £ 7
ontranglafon of foreign X EE
operations - - - - 15,261 - - - 15,261 1,984 17,245
Releass ondisposel of ~ WEEBEMZEN
debt instruments at BRLAEHEN
fairvalie through other BRI AKERD
comprehensive income - - - - - - 8 - 84 - 8
Tota comprehensive ncome/ ER2 B % /
brpense) ortheyear (R348 - - - - 1521 - 8 (960 10385 545 15840
Transfer to generalreserve. BEZ-REE - - - - - 2480 - (2.480) = S S
Dividends recognisedas ~ EBREAE 2
dlstrbuton [note 13) EER) - - - - - - - Moy o) -1
Diidends padtonon-  EAERRER
controling interests S - - - - - - - - - (7319 (7319
- - - - - 2480 - (13553) (11,073 (7,319 (18,392
A3t December 2020 RZF-FF
+ZR=1-H 111 408,460 121 (31,476) 3617 24,608 146 [©041) 345,136 30028 375,164

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERREEX

At 31 December 2021 R—ZZE-_—F+_-H=+—H

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAREARE
Share Investment Non-
Share Share option Other  Exchange  General revaluation Accumulated controlling
capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses  Sub-total interests Total
R RGEE BRERE EtBE EXRE  -RERE REEGREE  EiFE Mt kERER i
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HKY000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEL TEn TEn TEL TEn TEn Tin TEn T Tin TEL
(note 30(A)) (note 30(B))
(H3E30(A) (B &E30(8))
At 1 January 2021 WoEo-&
-B-A 111 408,460 12 (31,476) 3617 24,608 146 (60,451) 345,136 30,028 375,164
Proft for the year Emgil - - - - - - - 6,145 6,145 5,361 11,506
Actuarial gan of defiied ~ RERHIRAGFE2
benefit retiement plan BN & - - - - - - - 754 754 - 754
Bxchange diferences ~ BEEHNEREL 2
aisng on translaion o~ B3 £
foreign operations - - - - 7,664 - - - 1,664 1,149 8,813
Netfarvalelosson ~ EEAB2ENER
debtinstumentsat AAEFENER
fairvalue though other -~ TEMAREBE
comprehengive income. 5 - - - - - - (1,303) - (1,309) - (1,303)
Release on redemption~ EEFBEB2E
of debtinstuments at -~ MERDAEF 2
fairvalue through other ~ H1EHTEE AR
comprengnsive income - - - - - - 5 - 5 - 5
Totd comprehensive. ER2ENE/
income/[expense) for the () 4
year - - - - 1,664 - (1,208) 6,899 13,265 6,510 19,775
Transfer £ - ([ - - - 3,044 - 8,029 - - -
Shareoptions lepsed ~ EXM 2 BRiE - - (121) - - - - 121 - - -
Divdends recognised as BB AR R
disrouton (rote 13 B8 (HE13) - (5,536) - - - - - - (5,536) - (5,536)
Didends paidtonon-  EfFRRER
controllng nterests &R S - - - - - - - - - (6,338) (6,338)
- e () - - - B0 (BR) 6R (118
At31 December 2021 HZF -
+-fZ+-8 o 381 - e M mER (M) (540 85 N0 306
BRBRIZERERAA TR -FFR 137
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # & — & ——

Fr-A=1—HILFE

2021 2020
B —F —ETTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
:F;Ei $/;§ JC
Operating activities feEEE
Profit before tax B B A& 22,900 5,096
Adjustments for: HUATRIBEDL SR
Bank interest income IRITH B A (513) (947)
Interest income from advance to a third A —&E = HEHB R F B
party WA (975) —
Interest income from debt instruments & i@ H b 2 WK =
at fair value through other BEARBEED
comprehensive income BEHETAENH KA (205) (817)
Depreciation of property, plant and M- - BELKZEINE
equipment 5,341 4,468
Provision for major overhauls BERBIEEE 757 1,771
Finance costs & AR 4,408 1,984
Impairment losses recognised on NI E= R R OD RN S
— other receivables — H fth jE Y 3K IE 1,008 —
— other financial assets at amortised cost —IREE R ANt ENH 2 &/l
BE 2,242 —
Write-down of inventories WoRTE & 1,058 =
Loss on disposal of debt instruments at HEFBHMEE K F XA ALE
fair value through other comprehensive st 28 {&E 7 T A& & 18
income - 84
Loss on redemption of debt BERERAEMEEKEZRANLE
instruments at fair value through other st E8EE T A E I8
comprehensive income 5 —
Loss/(gain) on disposal on property, HEWE BEMKED
plant and equipment &8 () 8 (44)
Contribution to defined benefit REBARKRE B R
retirement plans 466 399
Waiver of other payables A oo H b & < BB - (641)
Loss on modification of other financial — EERIR# Ak A F E M E b & &/l
assets measured at amortised cost BEELEZEE - 471
Operating cash flows before movements Kt & EE & EEFAIA K E
in working capital BeRE 36,500 11,824
Increase in inventories FEEM (2,062) (351)
Increase in trade receivables B 5 M W sk TE I N (72) =
(Increase)/decrease in receivables under AR 7% & %H%ETZHFTE’J
service concession arrangements FE Y 38 (3% hn) R > (13,488) 8,845
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments and T8 1 3R I8 J H ftb & U 58 IR
other receivables Ggm) m (20,579) 437
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 2 5 P ;IR g JJD/(/UZ 471 (239)
Decrease in retirement benefit obligations & Kk t8 & & (L )8 (36) 1)
Decrease in other payables and accruals b Bt 35 18 &
FEstE AR (28) (4,732)
Cash generated from operations REEEPNRE 706 15,783
Income tax paid =ENRIREE (9,728) (9,556)
Income tax refunded FriS #i R A 1,375 —
Net cash (used in)/from operating & EE(FrA) ELNBEL
activities FHE (7,647) 6,227

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
n _\éfﬁﬁ‘;ﬁ:%%
EoF-—FF A=+ HIFE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

2021 2020
B —F —ETTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHET
Investing activities REEH
Purchases of debt instruments at fair BEFBAMPERZE
value through other comprehensive EARBEENEREIA
income - (1,592)
Purchase of other financial assets at BEREBEKAGTENHMEH
amortised cost BE - (8,724)
Purchases of property, plant and BEYE BMERXE
equipment (3,665) (6,724)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BMELREHN
plant and equipment F 18 I8 97 57
Proceeds from disposal of debt TEFBEMEEK R
instruments at fair value through other & QAR {ET £
comprehensive income BT EMSRIA - 15,138
Proceeds from redemption of debt BRZEAHEMmzAKSEANLE
instruments at fair value through other st &/ &% T EMNFFEHIA
comprehensive income 1,657 —
Proceeds from redemption of other A [o] 1% 48 55 A AN ET 2 8
financial assets at amortised cost HthemEENSRE 6,027 =
Withdrawal of restricted bank deposits ~ #2 BX 52 R %l 48 1717 & 5,873 -
Placement of time deposit FAEBFRK (12,045) =
Interest received 24 F 2 650 1,764
Net cash used in investing activities REFEFANBE L FHE (1,406) (81)
Financing activities & T B
Repayments to related parties A B8 B 5 38 3 (28,549) =
Repayments of borrowings EEBITER (20,240) (20,240)
Repayments of lease liabilities BEEHEaE (547) (525)
Interest paid =R RS (3,295) (1,464)
New loan from related parties REBEHHRFTER 54,350 4,680
New borrowings raised FiEER 32,867 18,000
Dividends paid BRI’ E (6,333) (10,276)
Dividends paid to non-controlling ETIEE R R E R RS
interests (6,338) (7,319)
Net cash from/(used in) financing MmEFHELE (AN
activities HEeEFEH 21,915 (17,144)
Net increase/(decrease)incashand BEERRELZEEY
cash equivalents #wm, CRd) R 12,862 (10,998)
Cash and cash equivalents at R—B—BRERESEEY
1 January 51,067 64,074
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes #MEERE B H) & 1,125 (2,009)
Cash and cash equivalents at R+-—A=+—HEEK
31 December ReEEY 65,054 51,067
Represented by: 15
Bank balances and cash WITHHB LR ® 65,054 51,067
BRERIERERAA B —FER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR RME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bt 2 —F ——F+ - A=+ —HI FE&E

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

GENERAL INFORMATION

ELL Environmental Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office of the
Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and the principal
place of business of the Company is Unit 5, 7th Floor,
Westlands Centre, 20 Westlands Road, Hong Kong.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 39.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT
YEAR

In the current year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) has applied the
following amendments to HKFRSs issued by Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the
first time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2021, for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendment to HKFRS 16

FEREVHRELLF165% (BT A) =

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

EAVBMELEREIN - BB FLEAEI -
AU RMELERFETR FBMFREEL
FAR LB BB HREERF165 (BEFTA)

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance
for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures
set out in these consolidated financial statements.

2021 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 {2 = FE -—F+ =A==+ —HIFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

IMPACTS ON APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS

TO HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 AND
HKFRS 16 INTEREST RATE BENCHMARK REFORM
PHASE 2

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in
the current year. The amendments relate to changes in the
basis for determining the contractual cash flows of financial
assets, financial liabilities and lease liabilities as a result of
interest rate benchmark reform, specific hedge accounting
requirements and the related disclosure requirements
applying HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
(“HKFRS 77).

As at 1 January 2021, the Group had several borrowings,
the interest of which are indexed to benchmark rates
that are subjected to interest rate benchmark reform.
The following table shows the total amounts of these
outstanding contracts. The amounts of financial liabilities
are shown at their carrying amounts.

HK$ Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate (“HIBOR”)

2.

RRAEETEEMBEREEN(E
BMGWEER]E)

EREEMBREEAER - FE
S ERIFE39% - BRMBHEE

RISE7S - BRMBREEREIR

REBMBHELEAFE165E (BT E)
NEREERE — FRENRE

AEBERAFEEREAZEFE
Bl REBIISREAREEMBR
ERBETRERIA - BKE(ES
MBREENETRDERRBERON
REERE BEHREARTER
HERBERT HeREE TR
BELRHERBEZANRSANE
EEEERER -

R-ZFE_—F—A—H AEEBEHE
TER ENMFEIANREENRS
FEMAER KEH - TRBETZ
EFRERENNBRTE 2MEE
CRMEKREEIR °

US$ London Interbank
Offered Rate (“LIBOR”)

BTEBRTEAERFRE ExmBBTRAERE
(ERRITRAERE] ((MRBB/TEAEFRED
HK$ HK$
ST BT
Financial liabilities cRBaE
Borrowings & 2% 18,000,000 4,480,000

The amendments have had no impact on the consolidated
financial statements as none of the relevant contracts has
been transitioned to the relevant replacement rates during
the year. The Group will apply the practical expedient in
relation to the changes in contractual cash flows resulting
from the interest rate benchmark reform for borrowings
measured at amortised cost. Additional disclosures as
required by HKFRS 7 are set out in note 33.

BN EREORAFEDIL £8K
ERBEERMNE AUt FETY
FAMBBRRLEELETNRE -
AEBEKKBEZRENAFTER
) 3= L/ DA T 2 B M B K R A

7B W% s RIS TR T B R ER SN
BEER SN K FESS -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E -—F+ - A=+ —HI FF

2.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE

BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective:

HKFRS 17
BB B HEERBITH

Amendments to HKFRS 3
BB RS ER E 35 (7] &)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

FREMBHREERFE105 LEF B G5 ERIFE285
CHEN)

Amendments to HKFRS 16

FEREV B RELIF165% (BT A)

Amendments to HKAS 1

FE g ERIE15R (BETA)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

EESHENFIRLEENBRELENELEH
EPLACCHIR)

Amendments to HKAS 8
BB ERESHR(EETA)

Amendments to HKAS 12

FREGTERIFE125 (BFTA)
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Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture*
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Eoor &

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30
June 20211

—E-FRAZTHRBE_Z-AFHEBMN
mEMHBz2HEERER

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current and related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)3

BHEESERRBAERBUARET EREELR
ZHEBEIT(ZZE_EF)s

Disclosure of Accounting Policies®

BB BN B

Definition of Accounting Estimates®
ERREE: RS

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities

arising from a Single Transaction?®
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG

2. RRAEEERMEREER(E

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS BMBEREEN]E)

(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE EEGERRENCHITIEEMRE

BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Cont’d)

Amendments to HKAS 16

A

BB S ERFE165% (BT A)
Amendments to HKAS 37
EEGFEAEITHRUBET )

Amendments to HKFRSs
BB B HREER(BETA)

BEENRRETE )

Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use?

WE - BEMRE — BEREAZABRA

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract?

BEAH — BT —DEHIKA?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-20202
ERMBBRERN _ZE-—N\FE_Z_FTF2
F 5 o a2

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021. 1 RZZE-_—FWA—Hs2%BHHEZ

FEABEM -

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 RZE-_—F—A—Hkz2&ABKZ
2022. FEHMER -

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 3 RZEZ=F—A—Hzkz2&HABKZ
2023. FEHBEER -

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be 4 RIGEEHRBX 2 ERBENFE
determined. AR AER -

The directors of the Company anticipate that the RABEEBABAMRE T LE

application of all new and amendments to HKFRSs will BB AVBEHRELEARATRRK

have no material impact on the consolidated financial BAEHEEUBREREELAETERY

statements in the foreseeable future. g-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 = E-—F+=-HA =+ —HIFE

3.

3.1

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment, leasing transactions that are accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 16, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

U Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

3.

3.1

FEMBERRCBEEEREX
BT BR(AF)

REMBEBRZEEEEHF)

AN B BHREME - ANER
ERBANEBAEZHARMEBAR
ERERBABBHAREFEZ
EBRBE2UNBRE R F_H
HE=H AT

s E-RBAHEBRERNGE

HERAARENEREEXE
ST EETELTIEY T
%)

e FE_ABABREBRMNEESLR
BEERAEERBABER2EA
BRE-—QCABREORER
5N R

s FE=RBABEBREEFARE
MR SRR AR -

BRABRERERAT —B-—FFH

4

145



®

146

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRMEE
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3.

3.2

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

U has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Cont’d)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets of the relevant
subsidiaries upon liquidation.

GOODWILL

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(“CGUs”) (or groups of CGUs) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.
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3.

3.2

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
GOODWILL (Cont’d)

A CGU (or groups of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently whenever there is indication that the unit may
be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the CGU (or groups of CGUs) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or
groups of CGUs).

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of the CGU within
the group of CGUs, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the amount of profit or loss
on disposal. When the Group disposes of an operation
within the CGU (or a CGU within a group of CGUs), the
amount of goodwill disposed of is measured on the
basis of the relative values of the operation (or the CGU)
disposed of and the portion of the CGU (or the group of
CGUs) retained.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E ——F+ - A=+ —HIFEF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.
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3.

3.2

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
(Cont’d)

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”). In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a net
basis.

CONTRACTS WITH MULTIPLE PERFORMANCE
OBLIGATIONS (INCLUDING ALLOCATION OF
TRANSACTION PRICE)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations, the Group allocates the transaction price to
each performance obligation on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

CONTRACTS WITH MULTIPLE PERFORMANCE
OBLIGATIONS (INCLUDING ALLOCATION OF
TRANSACTION PRICE) (Cont’d)

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined at
contract inception. It represents the price at which the
Group would sell a promised good or service separately
to a customer. If a stand-alone selling price is not directly
observable, the Group estimates it using appropriate
techniques such that the transaction price ultimately
allocated to any performance obligation reflects the
amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring the promised goods or
services to the customer.

OVER TIME REVENUE RECOGNITION: MEASUREMENT
OF PROGRESS TOWARDS COMPLETE SATISFACTION
OF A PERFORMANCE OBLIGATION

INPUT METHOD

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on input
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis
of the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a
performance obligation relative to the total expected inputs
to the satisfaction of that performance obligation, that best
depict the Group’s performance in transferring control of
goods or services.
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3.

3.2

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

OVER TIME REVENUE RECOGNITION: MEASUREMENT
OF PROGRESS TOWARDS COMPLETE SATISFACTION
OF A PERFORMANCE OBLIGATION (Cont’d)

EXISTENCE OF SIGNIFICANT FINANCING COMPONENT

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the
promised amount of consideration for the effects of the
time value of money if the timing of payments agreed (either
explicitly or implicitly) provides the customer or the Group
with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods
or services to the customer. In those circumstances, the
contract contains a significant financing component. A
significant financing component may exist regardless of
whether the promise of financing is explicitly stated in the
contract or implied by the payment terms agreed to by the
parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and
transfer of the associated goods or services is less than
one year, the Group applies the practical expedient of not
adjusting the transaction price for any significant financing
component.

REVENUE FROM CONSTRUCTION SERVICE OF
WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITIES AND POWER
PLANT FACILITIES

Revenue from provision of construction services of
wastewater treatment facilities and power plant facilities
are derived from long-term contracts with customers. Such
contracts are entered into before the services begin. Under
the term of contracts, the Group is contractually required to
perform the services at the customers’ specified sites that
the Group’s performance creates and enhances an asset
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation
is measured based on input method, which is to recognise
revenue on the basis of the Group’s efforts or inputs to the
satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to the total
expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance
obligation, that best depict the Group’s performance in
transferring control of goods or services.
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3.2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E ——F+ - A=+ —HIFEF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
SALES OF BIOFUEL

Sales of biofuel is recognised at the point in time when the
control of the good is transferred to the customer which
generally coincides with delivery and acceptance of the
good sold.

LEASE
DEFINITION OF A LEASE

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application of HKFRS 16 or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is
or contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date,
as appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed
unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed. As a practical expedient, leases
with similar characteristics are accounted on a portfolio
basis when the Group reasonably expects that the effects
on the consolidated financial statements would not differ
materially from individual leases within the portfolio.

THE GROUP AS A LESSEE
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the recognition exemption
for lease of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised
as expense on a straight-line basis or another systematic
basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E -—F+ - A=+ —HI FF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
LEASE (Cont’d)
THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Cont’d)
Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

U any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

U an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in “property,
plant and equipment”, the same line item within which the
corresponding underlying assets would be presented if
they were owned.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2021 Annual Report

3. WAEMBBRZBEHEEREX
BB (AF)

3.2 EXEBEKE)

HE(E)
AEEERABAE)
EREEE
EREEENKAEE:

e MHEREMVIFFETH:

e NHKBBHKZATELEM
HEMNT REEFREWHEE
BE:

s AEEEAWNEMFANIEERK
ZANEN

¢+ AEBRFORBHEBEE
CEE R P
ABE TR E O IR R A A
B39 R 3R 5 46 28 2 B0 A A £
it o

ERBEEERERAFE  BEEM
REAMERBEERE YHBEER
BEHEAEHRFEFELAE -

AEBEEBESNEBERKE
B HEEEMERNEREER
E BFMAPEETERFHRS
REREFTE - EEMBBERT  £H
BEENERZEINEMBEAIERF
HEEBOAREERE)NITE -

AEBRIMME BERREIZD
EREEE M2 HEERBEEE
(AR —DFEEA -



3.2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E ——F+ - A=+ —HIFEF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
LEASE (Cont’d)

THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Cont’d)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of right-
of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease
is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & £ — & —

—FF_HA=1—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

LEASE (Cont’d)

THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Cont’d)

Lease liabilities (Cont’d)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use

assets) whenever:

° the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

° the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review/expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the

initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

2021 Annual Report

3. WAEMBBRZBEHEEREX

BB (AF)

EXEat R ME)
HE(E)
AEEERABAE)
HERE#E)

REBBEHE HERELEHNEE
MEEENRETHE -

fid R IATIE R - AR B A E 5t
EHERBE(LHERAERAEEE
EATHERE)

. ﬂ%m@ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁm
AR EEE LS
HEEERE LL@%E%%
HEHANKETRRRPEEL
{ﬁnTT i%ﬁ(lgﬁﬁi*ﬁu-l_i °

e MEMNREETTSEESES
rmEEeR REFNKEE
HTH R RES LR
BEUBRT HEEEAR
EFEBERAGRERERRL
I REREMETTE -

AEBRGAMBRRKRFEEE
BREZINAEBER -



3.2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E ——F+ - A=+ —HIFEF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
LEASE (Cont’d)

THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Cont’d)

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

° the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability,
less any lease incentives receivables, based on the lease
term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR RME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E -—F+ - A=+ —HI FF

3.

3.2

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are re-translated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the re-translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
exchange reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of
an interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that
includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest
becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss.
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3.2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E ——F+ - A=+ —HIFEF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
FOREIGN CURRENCIES (Cont’d)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable.
Such grants are presented under “other income and net
gains”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & 2 — & ——

3.

3.2

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

RETIREMENT BENEFITS COSTS AND TERMINATION
BENEFITS

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plan are recognised as expenses when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of
providing benefits is determined using the projected unit
credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at
the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement,
comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the
changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return
on plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected immediately
in the consolidated statement of financial position with
a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement
recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected
immediately in accumulated losses and will not be
reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised
in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net
interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the
beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or
asset.

Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

° service cost (including current service cost, past
service cost, as well as gains and losses on
curtailments and settlements);

o net interest expense or income; and

° remeasurement.

The Group presents the first two components of defined

benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item. Curtailment
gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.

2021 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E ——F+ - A=+ —HIFEF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

RETIREMENT BENEFITS COSTS AND TERMINATION
BENEFITS (Cont’d)

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position represents
the actual deficit or surplus in the Group’s defined benefit
plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited
to the present value of any economic benefits available in
the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future
contributions to the plans.

TERMINATION BENEFITS

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the
earlier of when the Group entity can no longer withdraw
the offer of the termination benefit and when it recognises
any related restructuring costs.

SHORT-TERM AND OTHER LONG-TERM EMPLOYEE
BENEFITS

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of
the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value of
the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made
by the Group in respect of services provided by employees
up to the reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities’
carrying amounts resulting from service cost, interest and
remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss except to
the extent that another HKFRS requires or permits their
inclusion in the cost of an asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E -—F+ - A=+ —HI FF

3.

3.2

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting condition is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based
on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity
(share option reserve). At the end of each reporting period,
the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest based on assessment of all
relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to accumulated losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £ — & ——

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit/loss before
tax” because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E -—F+ - A=+ —HI FF

3.

3.2

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
TAXATION (Cont’d)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences on initial
recognition of the relevant right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised due to application of the initial
recognition exemption. Temporary differences arising from
subsequent revision to the carrying amounts of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement
of lease liabilities and lease modifications, that are not
subject to initial recognition exemption are recognised on
the date of remeasurement or modification.
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3.2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £ — & ——

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
TAXATION (Cont’d)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the same
taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises
from the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment that are held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Land rights are not depreciated and are measured at cost
less subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the
same basis as other property assets, commences when
the assets are ready for their intended use.
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3.

3.2

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests
of properties which includes both leasehold land and
building elements, the entire consideration is allocated
between the leasehold land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values at initial recognition.
To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented
as ‘“right-of-use assets” in the consolidated statement
of financial position. When the consideration cannot be
allocated reliably between non-lease building element
and undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land,
the entire properties are classified as property, plant and
equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E ——F+ - A=+ —HIFEF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

IMPAIRMENT ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the CGU to which the asset belongs.

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate assets are
allocated to the relevant CGU when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be established, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be established. The recoverable amount is determined for
the CGU or group of CGUs to which the corporate asset
belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of the
relevant CGU or group of CGUs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a CGU) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E -—F+ - A=+ —HI FF

3.

3.2

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

IMPAIRMENT ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Cont’d)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion
of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a CGU, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of CGUs,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group
of CGUs, with the recoverable amount of the group of
CGUs. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit or the group of CGUs. The carrying amount of
an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit
or the group of CGUs. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU or a group
of CGUs) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a CGU or a group of CGUs) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E ——F+ - A=+ —HIFEF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS
CONSIDERATION GIVEN BY THE GRANTOR

A financial asset (receivable under service concession
arrangement) is recognised to the extent that (a) the
Group has an unconditional right to receive cash or
another financial asset from or at the direction of the
grantor for the construction services rendered and/or the
consideration paid and payable by the Group for the right
to charge users of the public service; and (b) the grantor
has little, if any, discretion to avoid payment, usually
because the agreement is enforceable by law. The Group
has an unconditional right to receive cash if the grantor
contractually guarantees to pay the Group (a) specified or
determinable amounts or (b) the shortfall, if any, between
amounts received from users of the public service and
specified or determinable amounts, even if the payment is
contingent on the Group ensuring that the infrastructure
meets specified quality of efficiency requirements. The
financial asset (receivable under service concession
arrangement) is accounted for in accordance with the
policy set out for “Financial instruments” below.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. RAMBBRCHEUNBEREX

170

3.2

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)
OPERATING SERVICES

Revenue and costs relating to operating services are
accounted for in accordance with the policy for “Revenue
from contracts with customers”. Costs for operating
services are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS TO RESTORE THE
INFRASTRUCTURE TO A SPECIFIED LEVEL OF
SERVICEABILITY

The Group has contractual obligations which it must fulfill
as a condition of its licence, that is (a) to maintain the
wastewater treatment and biomass power plant facilities
it operates to a specified level of serviceability and/or (b)
to restore the plants to a specified condition before they
are handed over to the grantor at the end of the service
concession arrangement. These contractual obligations to
maintain or restore the wastewater treatment and biomass
power plant facilities are recognised and measured in
accordance with the policy set out for “Provisions” below.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of inventories are determined on a
first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and cost necessary to make the sale.
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3.2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £ — & ——

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the
effect of the time value of money is material).

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables arising
from contracts with customers which are initially measured
in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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e M RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & 2 — & ——

3.

3.2

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to

cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E ——F+ - A=+ —HIFEF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Cont'd)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL’), except that at initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive income if that
equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations
applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

U it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised
cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E -—F+ - A=+ —HI FF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. RAMBBRCHEUNBEREX

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT BB %)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3.2 EXErIBR(#H)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) SR ITA(E)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d) M EE(E)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial TRMEEDEREEHE(E)

assets (Contd)

) B R AR R F B A

() Amortised cost and interest income

—

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and debt instruments
subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest income
is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset
from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on
the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so
that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting
period following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & £ —E - —F+ - A=+ —HI F&ZF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. FAMEREZHENEERELX
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT EETBR(#E)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3.2 EXErIBR (M)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) SRIAE

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d) e EE (&)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial TREESERRBRENE(E)

assets (Cont’d)

(i)  Debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI iy "EAREREAMEERFZEA
/L@JEZL?&IE

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for NEREFRAEMEEKREZR
debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI as a result NEFEZEBIAR  ERE
of interest income calculated using the effective BzrBEZHENERTFER
interest method, and foreign exchange gains and EBEHIBHEBRMNEEFE
losses are recognised in profit or loss. All other ZHBWARINE W = R BB
changes in the carrying amount of these debt P 2FBEBIARBEZ
instruments are recognised in other comprehensive Fﬁﬁﬁi\ﬁﬂ “@Ji’] RE b 2 K
income and accumulated under the heading PR YRR EEHRERB
of investment revaluation reserve. Impairment HTEF REZFERZHE
allowances are recognised in profit or loss with EREBEREMEZE WS 28
corresponding adjustment to other comprehensive ﬁ’éﬁﬁ%i’iﬁﬂ?m—rﬁi‘klﬂ
income without reducing the carrying amounts of ZHREE WZEEHIAR
these debt instruments. When these debt instruments LIE®E R - RIS AT E’\\Efﬂiﬁﬂﬁl
are derecognised, the cumulative gains or losses nERZ R R EHNEEBEE
previously recognised in other comprehensive income o ERR -

are reclassified to profit or loss.

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL (iy BBREZEBEALBETENESH
BE

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being ERMEENIFTEEHEHENKN A

measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated HEBEMEERSEANE

as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. FFEREERAEREMEEI

¥?E’D\/LDTEE+§E’M%1¢ - AlE
BEREAAETE -

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value REREHR BEBREZER

at the end of each reporting period, with any fair value REFENEREEERAAE
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net B Fﬁﬂf fal & fo B 4R %5 3k 8
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any BERERER REZERN
dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and KWk BEFETEERS R
is included in the “other income and net gains” line & B PR A R T AR B sk I 8.
item. A EFATE M A ROF s I8

B -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & £ — & —

3.

3.2

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL’) model on financial assets
(including trade receivables, other receivables, receivables
under service concession arrangements, debt instruments
at FVTOCI, other financial assets at amortised cost,
restricted bank deposits, time deposits and bank balances
and cash) which are subject to impairment under HKFRS
9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessments
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as well
as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

%Aﬂﬁ BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & £ —E - —F+ - A=+ —HI F&ZF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3.2
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Cont’d)

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of
a default occurring since initial recognition.

() Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E -—F+ - A=+ —HI FF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Cont’d)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Cont'd)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has

increased significantly:

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations.
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3.2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £ — & ——

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Cont’d)

Significant increase in credit risk (Cont'd)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at
the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of default,
i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term
and iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfill its contractual cash flow obligations. The Group
considers a debt instrument to have low credit risk
when it has an internal or external credit rating
of “investment grade” as per globally understood
definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bt 2 —F ——F+ - A=+ —HI FE&E

3.

3.2

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Cont’d)

(if)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking
into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E ——F+ - A=+ —HIFEF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3.2
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Cont’d)

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

(@ significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(o) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E -—F+ - A=+ —HI FF

3.

3.2

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Cont’d)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever
occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data and adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & £ — & —

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Cont’d)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Cont'd)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

° Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

° External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised cost
of the financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & 2 — & ——

3.

3.2

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Cont’d)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Cont’d)

Except for investments in debt instruments that
are measured at FVTOCI, the Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying amount,
with the exception of other receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through
a loss allowance account. For investments in debt
instruments that are measured at FVTOCI, the loss
allowance is recognised in OCl and accumulated in
the investment revaluation reserve without reducing
the carrying amount of these debt instruments.

Derecognition/modification of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E ——F+ - A=+ —HIFEF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)
Derecognition/modification of financial assets (Cont’d)

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument
classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investment revaluation
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

A modification of a financial asset occurs if the contractual
cash flows are renegotiated or otherwise modified.

When the contractual terms of a financial asset are
modified, the Group assesses whether the revised terms
result in a substantial modification from original terms
taking into account all relevant facts and circumstances
including qualitative factors. If qualitative assessment is not
conclusive, the Group considers the terms are substantially
different if the discounted present value of the cash flows
under the new terms, including any fees paid net of any
fees received, and discounted using the original effective
interest rate, is at least 10 per cent different from the
discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of
the original financial asset, after reducing gross carrying
amount that has been written off.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E -—F+ - A=+ —HI FF

3.

3.2

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)
Derecognition/modification of financial assets (Cont’d)

For non-substantial modifications of financial assets that
do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the
relevant financial assets will be calculated at the present
value of the modified contractual cash flows discounted
at the financial assets’ original effective interest rate.
Transaction costs or fees incurred are adjusted to the
carrying amount of the modified financial assets and are
amortised over the remaining term. Any adjustment to the
carrying amount of the financial asset is recognised in
profit or loss at the date of modification.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
CLASSIFICATION AS DEBT OR EQUITY

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

EQUITY INSTRUMENT

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instrument issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.
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3.2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & £ — & —

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT AMORTISED COST

Financial liabilities including trade payables, other payables,
amounts due to related parties, borrowings and lease
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & £ — & —

4

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)

CRITICAL JUDGEMENT IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of
the Company have made in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

DEPRECIATION OF LAND RIGHTS

The Group classified the land rights held by a subsidiary,
PT Rimba Palma Sejahtera Lestri (‘RPSL”), in Indonesia as
right-of-use assets because the management considered
that substantially all risks and rewards are transferred
to RPSL, even if at the end of the lease term, titles do
not pass to RPSL. Indonesian land rights are granted for
a stated period of time, with an extension option at an
immaterial cost. Land rights are also renewable after the
extended period term expires. Given the fact that land
rights can be extended at RPSLs option, the management
considered that the term of land rights is sufficiently
long to indicate the transfer of risks and rewards from
the government to RPSL and the government’s interest
in the residual value of the underlying land is considered
as insignificant. Also, the management considered that
RPSL has the ability and intent to renew the land leases in
perpetuity, the useful life of the land rights is in perpetuity
and hence are not depreciated.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period that may have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & £ — & —

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

ESTIMATED IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT RELATING TO BUSINESS OPERATION IN
INDONESIA

Determining whether property, plant and equipment
is impaired requires an estimation of the recoverable
amount of the CGU to which the property, plant and
equipment has been allocated, which is the higher of
the value in use or fair value less costs of disposal. The
value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, or change in facts and circumstances which
results in downward revision of future cash flows, further
impairment loss may arise. During the year ended 31
December 2021, no impairment loss was recognised (2020:
Nil) after assessing the recoverable amount of CGU which
is principally engaged in the biomass power generation
business in Indonesia.

The management’s assessment of property, plant and
equipment impairment is highly judgemental and is
dependent on certain key assumptions including the
discount rate, growth rates and budgeted sales, and gross
margin, which are affected by expected future market or
economic conditions, particularly those in Indonesia. An
independent qualified professional valuer is engaged to
assess the recoverable amount of the CGU.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &t 2 —E ——F+ - A=+ —HIL F&F

4

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS

The Group entered into the build-operate-transfer (the
“BOT”) arrangements in wastewater treatment and
biomass power facilities. The Group concluded that the
BOT arrangements are service concession arrangements
under HK (IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements,
because the local government controls and regulates
the services that the Group must provide with the
infrastructure at a pre-determined service charge. In
addition, upon expiry of concession right agreement, the
infrastructure has to be transferred to the local government
at nil consideration.

Revenue from the construction of wastewater treatment
and biomass power facilities under the terms of a BOT
contract is estimated on a cost-plus basis in which
the construction margin is determined with reference
to a prevailing market rate of gross margins of market
comparable at the time of construction, and is recognised
using the percentage-of-completion method, measured
by reference to the proportion of costs incurred to date to
the estimated total cost of the relevant contract. During
the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recognised
the revenue of approximately HK$22,955,000 (2020:
HK$4,646,000) from the construction of wastewater
treatment and biomass power facilities.

Imputed interest income is recognised from time to time
on receivables under service concession arrangements
on an accrual basis using the effective interest method by
discounting the estimated future cash receipts over the
service concession period at the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition.

The relevant effective interest rate is determined with
reference to the yield of corporate bonds of comparable
infrastructure companies in The People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) and Indonesia.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E ——F+ - A=+ —HIFEF

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

PROVISION FOR MAJOR OVERHAULS OF
WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITIES TO A SPECIFIED
LEVEL OF SERVICEABILITY

The Group has contractual obligations (a) to maintain the
wastewater treatment facilities it operates to a specified
level of serviceability and (b) to restore the facilities to a
specified condition before they are handed over to the
grantor at the end of the service concession arrangement.
These contractual obligations to maintain or restore
infrastructure, except for any upgrade element, are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets,
i.e., at the best estimate of the expenditure that would be
required to settle the present obligation at the end of each
reporting period. The estimation of the expenditure requires
the Group to estimate the expected future cash outlays
on major overhauls of the wastewater treatment facilities
over the service concession periods and also to choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. The amount of the provision for
major overhauls carried as a liability in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021
was approximately HK$18,978,000 (2020: HK$16,656,000).
Further details of the provision for major overhauls are set
out in note 28.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E -—F+ - A=+ —HI FF

4

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

PROVISION OF ECL AND IMPAIRMENT OF
RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICES CONCESSION
ARRANGEMENTS

The Group individually calculates ECL for the receivables
under services concession arrangements. Such
assessments are based on internal credit rating,
customers’ ageing and historical default rates and are
adjusted for forward-looking information that is available
with undue costs or effort. At every reporting date, the
internal credit rating and historical observed default rates
are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered. The provision of ECL is
sensitive to changes in estimates. The information about
the ECL is set out in note 33.

CURRENT TAX AND DEFERRED TAX

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong,
the PRC and Indonesia. The Group carefully evaluates
tax implications of its transactions in accordance with
prevailing tax regulations and makes tax provision
accordingly. However, a judgement is required in
determining the Group’s provision for income taxes as
there are many transactions and calculations of which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, the differences will impact on the income tax
and deferred tax provision in the periods in which the
determination is made. Details of the deferred tax liabilities
are set out in note 27.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & £ —E - —F+ - A=+ —HI F&ZF

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(Cont’d)

CURRENT TAX AND DEFERRED TAX (Cont’d)

Deferred tax liabilities have been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on certain portion
of the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding
taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC
since it is probable that these subsidiaries will distribute
such earnings in the foreseeable future. Where the final
distribution portion of earnings is larger than the amount
that initially recorded, the differences will impact on the
income tax in the periods in which the distribution is made.
Further details of the temporary difference associated with

investment in subsidiaries are set out in note 27.

REVENUE
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Types of goods and services & m & RS E 5

Wastewater treatment operation 757K B IR R e i AR TS

services
Wastewater treatment construction ;57K i 12 3%
services

Biomass power construction EYEEBERER

services

Sales of biofuel & £ YRR

Revenue from goods and services & M IR & A
Pl 75 5 57 HE 2 BE T IR UK

Imputed interest income on
receivables under service B A
concession arrangements

BEERBA
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER FHET
64,384 39,821
420 1,481
22,535 3,165
72 —
87,411 44,467
15,725 14,550
103,136 59,017
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &t 2 —E ——F+ - A=+ —HIL F&F

5. REVENUE (Cont’d)

5. ERWA(HE)

2021 2020
—E-——F —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FET FAT

Timing of revenue recognition W ATEFEEE
A point in time RE— AR 64,456 39,821
Over time W& B i 22,955 4,646
Revenue from goods and services & M IR & WA 87,411 44,467

The contracts for wastewater treatment facility operation
services and sales of biofuel are for periods of one year or
less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price
allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

As at 31 December 2021, the aggregated amount of the
transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations under the Group’s existing contracts is
approximately HK$146,993,000 (2020: HK$153,535,000).
This amount represents revenue expected to be
recognised in the future from partially-completed long
term construction contracts. The Group will recognise
the expected revenue in future when or as the work is
completed, which is expected to occur in the next 12
months (2020: 12 to 21 months).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHmRME
For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E ——F+ - A=+ —HIFEF
REVENUE (Cont’d) 5. BRIWKA(HE)

Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from
contracts with customers with the amounts disclosed in
the segment information.

UTRRETEFANMERI AR
DEEMAHE S AN R

2021
—E-—F
PRC Indonesia Total
H g Mt
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TET TET FTHERT
Wastewater treatment VEIKBEIE R M E &
operation and construction &R AR 7%
services 64,804 — 64,804
Biomass power construction 4 %) & %% & R 12 2% IR 7%
services — 22,535 22,535
Sales of biofuel & £ IR E - 72 72
Revenue from contracts with KE&EF AR & % A
customers 64,804 22,607 87,411
Imputed interest income on AR 7S 45 7 i T BE T E K
receivables under service HIBHEE N B WA
concession arrangements 14,939 786 15,725
Total revenue E L ONE 79,743 23,393 103,136
BRBRIZERERAA —EC-FEFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bt 2 —F ——F+ - A=+ —HI FE&E

REVENUE (Cont’d)

5. ERWA(HE)

2020
—TEEF
PRC Indonesia Total
H Hie et
HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAET FAET
Wastewater treatment EKEEREEERE
operation and construction % AR 1%
services 41,302 — 41,302
Biomass power construction 4 %) & %% E B iE 5% R 1%
services — 3,165 3,165
Sales of biofuel $HE £ R R - — —
Revenue from contracts with REBEF A 4R & ZE I A
customers 41,302 3,165 44,467
Imputed interest income on MR EFRE T HE T E U
receivables under service RIEHERN S KA
concession arrangements 14,550 = 14,550
Total revenue EEWALRE 55,852 3,165 59,017
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e MR RME
For the year ended 31 December 2021 & £ —E - —F+ - A=+ —HI F&ZF
SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 6. HBEH
The Group is engaged in the construction and operation REEREEREREETKEER
of wastewater treatment facilities, construction of biomass B BEEMEERERUARIEESE
power plant and sales of biofuel business. Information MRELER - EFRTFTAEERETEE
reported to the Group’s chief operating decision maker BERRANERITES) UERE
(i.e. the executive directors) for the purposes of resource BAORERBIHM2ANEREF
allocation and assessment of performance is focused on FEANEBEREEFPHHEAMNLE -
geographical locations of its manpower and customers, BEEE  FEKHE -
including Hong Kong, PRC and Indonesia.
SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS 7 EB YR A B 4R
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and AEETEHMRLE D I AR
results by reportable and operating segments: XELHMT:
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-_Z-_—+-A=+—HL
FE
Hong Kong PRC Indonesia Total
58 T e ast
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TERT TR THER FTHERx
Results *E
Segment revenue 2 E U A - 79,743 23,393 103,136
Segment (loss)/profit HE(ER),/ & F (12,353) 45,213 (9,960) 22,900
Unallocated expenses RABMEX
Administrative expenses THRAX -
Profit before tax BR 75 AT & A 22,900

BRABRERERAT —B-—FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E -—F+ - A=+ —HI FF

6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d) 6. DEBEE(H)
SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS (Cont’d) SRR A B R AR (#F)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-_Z-_FEF+=ZA=+—HL
FE
Hong Kong PRC Indonesia Total
BE i gre mEt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Results *E
Segment revenue 2 EBKA - 55,852 3,165 59,017
Segment (loss)/profit DE(ER), & F (9,928) 26,641 (11,575) 5,138
Unallocated expenses RAOBMEX
Administrative expenses THAX (42)
Profit before tax B 15 Bl 4 A 5,096
There are no inter-segment sales for both years. WMEFEHEDEHEIEE -
All of the segment revenue reported above is from external T E®RNFAES H K AHTKEIH
customers. HEP -
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%Aﬂﬂﬁiﬁ% B &

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & £ —E - —F+ - A=+ —HI F&ZF

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d) 6. DEBEE(H)
SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES SHEERAR
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and AEBIZRAEREKEESHE D2
liabilities by reportable and operating segments: EERBESTWET:
As at 31 December 2021 R=-B=-—-F+=A=+—H
Hong Kong PRC Indonesia Total
o H e st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT THERT THER FTERT
Assets &E
Segment and total DEELEEERKE
consolidated assets EEHBE 9,120 367,885 151,766 528,771
Liabilities &fE
Segment and total DMEERERES
consolidated liabilities BERE 77,061 65,454 3,191 145,706
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZE-_ZFEF+=-HA=+—H
Hong Kong PRC Indonesia Total
B H e mEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FAET FAET FAET
Assets BE
Segment and total DHEEEERES
consolidated assets BELE 21,487 355,153 100,741 477,381
Liabilities &
Segment and total DEGEEBBEREA
consolidated liabilities BEgE 40,874 58,061 3,282 102,217
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e I HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E -—F+ - A=+ —HI FF

6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d) 6. PETEEE)
OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION Hth 9583 H
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss AR E MK BEIDHEE 2
or segment assets: E-l
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-_Z-_—F+=-HA=+—HLt
FE
Hong Kong PRC Indonesia Total
5B H B gt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TAERT TERT THER THER

Loss on modification of other  {& B 3% # #4 B A 5t
financial assets measured at EWMHMEFHE

amortised cost EELZESR - - - -
Additions to non-current assets A& IR EE E

(note) GES - 91 4,449 4,540
Depreciation of property, plant %% « BE ;X%

and equipment e 543 464 4,334 5,341
Impairment losses under BHEEBRBEEN

expected credit loss model THR(EE R - 1,008 2,242 3,250
Write-down of inventories WO & - - 1,058 1,058
Interest income from advance [AI—& % =H{EH

to a third party B A E A - 975 - 975
Bank interest income |ITHEBA 3 245 265 513
Finance costs BE A AR 3,438 970 = 4,408
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e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E ——F+ - A=+ —HIFEF

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)
OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION

For the year ended 31 December 2020

6.

SHWEHEHE)
Htn s EBRH

BE-_FE-_2F+-A=+—HL
FE

Hong Kong PRC Indonesia Total
5% H 0E mEt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAET FAET FET
Loss on modification of other & Bt 4% # $4 i < 51
financial assets measured at &R HME R E
amortised cost EEXZEE - = 471 471
Additions to non-current assets K& EREE E
(note) (Bt &) - 58 7,049 7,107
Depreciation of property, plant 1% - BMEK & &
and equipment nE 544 446 3,478 4,468
Impairment losses under HHEEBBEREN
expected credit loss model THREEBE - - = -
Write-down of inventories WREFE - - - —
Interest income from advance [AI—&ZE=AH1EH
to a third party A E A - - - -
Bank interest income RITH B A 2 370 575 947
Finance costs LI 1,204 780 - 1,084

BRERERERAF —E-—FER
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e I HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E -—F+ - A=+ —HI FF

6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

The Group’s non-current assets by geographical locations
of the assets are detailed below:

SHWEHEHE)
ith 18 5

AREHREEZIHWELSZHRD
AERIIMT

2021 2020
—E=--&F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#E T FETT
Hong Kong &5 453 995
PRC h 1,494 1,823
Indonesia e 69,543 71,549
71,490 74,367
Note: Non-current assets excluded receivables under service M 5E FRBEETEERGFTER
concession arrangements, debt instruments at FVTOCI, other BTZRIKFE ERHEMEE
financial assets at amortised cost, prepayments and other WREAAEFENEBEIA
receivables and restricted bank deposits. R#EEN AT ENEMSREE -
FERHIE R EAMERRIERZR
HIERITIF R ©
INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS BREEEFRMNEH

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the Group’s revenue are as

A FE £F FZ {h AN 52 B Uk A10% A £ B
ZEPWAWMT:

follows:
2021 2020
—E - B -FF
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#E T FAET
Customer A from the PRC segment HE D #EFA 37,329 25,580
Customer B from the PRC segment R E % ZEFB 42,414 30,272
Customer C from the Indonesia EESEERFC N/A*
segment 23,321 T E A

The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the
total revenue of the Group.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2021 Annual Report
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #

2-FC

e M RRME

—FF_H=1—HIFE

OTHER INCOME AND NET GAINS Hthg A BBl 2
2021 2020
—E2-—F —EETF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Bank interest income RITH B A 513 947
Interest income from advancetoa M—&ZE=ZFEHBFHH
third party B WA 975 =
Interest income from debt FEREMEEBREANE
instruments at FVTOCI FEMNEBETANFERA 205 817
Foreign exchange gain/(loss), net HNEE W % (5 18) F HE 1,479 (484)
Government grants (note) IR 8 B (B &%) 16 266
Refund of value-added tax HERRM 1,243 2,711
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEME BMEKLZEN
plant and equipment (F518), Mz (8) 44
Waiver of other payables R E b JE 1 RKIB - 641
Others Eh 33 387
4,456 5,329
Note: For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recognised MsE: RBE-_T=_TF+=-A=+—H
government grants HK$266,000 in respect of Covid-19-related EFE AEBERE_T—-NFH
subsidies, which relates to Employment Support Scheme AERFSHBERD BRI
provided by the Hong Kong Government. There were no # 80266,000%8 7T - W R BB K
unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these grants HREZRUETE  -R2T=F
as at 31 December 2020. F+-_A=+-—"BEEFEZSEH
BB R TERIR R IR EH -
FINANCE COSTS ME/RE
2021 2020
—EZ—F —EETF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Interest on borrowings B F B 1,362 569
Interest on loans from related parties & & B B 77 89 & 2 5] B 2,048 585
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEME 28 50
Increase in discounted amounts £h 74 e [ 7 0 R AR A
of provision for major overhauls ERABREBRFENURESE
arising from the passage of time 1 10 (M 5228)
(note 28) 970 780
4,408 1,984
BRBRIZERERAA —EC-FEFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & 2 — & ——

Fr-A=1—HILFE

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 9. BRRAIAER
Profit before tax has been arrived at after charging: B B B0 A 2 0B
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Staff cost (including directors’ BIRABREEEH:) :
remuneration):
Salaries, allowances and benefits in e R EYMET
kind 12,634 11,745
Discretionary bonus ) 15 7€ 41 382 308
Pension scheme contributions (note) RAEFTEIHE (W?) 2,067 1,159
Less: Amount capitalised in BT ,\éfZMKEI’]
inventories (336) —
Less: Amount recognised in cost of B BRI E AR
sales (37) —
14,710 13,212
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BMERKETE
equipment 5,341 4,468
Less: Amount capitalised in inventories 3 : R 17 & E AL B K (650) —
Less: Amount recognised in cost of BB wZ%%E}Z$
sales (72) —
4,619 4,468
Impairment losses recognised on: T R IR R EE S
— Other receivables — H b & W 1,008 —
— Other financial assets at amortised  — iﬂfiﬁﬁﬁﬁk$§+%ﬁ’\jﬁﬁﬂ
cost S REE 2,242 —
Loss on modification of other financial (SR EK AT E N EH A
assets measured at amortised cost SREEELEZEIE = 471
Auditors’ remuneration 1% 1 B & B 1,090 1,024
Cost of construction services =5 AR 7% 5k 2 19,797 4,305
Cost of wastewater treatment facilities 12 {55 7K g 1E 8 5 & 38
operation services rendered BR 7% &9 5% 2 28,393 25,094
Cost of biofuel operation (including H Y BRE 8B B (B 38 R
write-down of inventories of “’41 058,000 7T
HK$1,058,000 (2020: Nil) (—E—= ) 1,308 _
Provision for major overhauls BEARIEEE 757 1,771
Defined benefit retirement plans RERMERTZ 466 399

ME: RZTE_—F+=ZA=+—H =&
5 1B R 4 4 08 WU AR SROAT R A ok 2R
FEMRASHEHER(CZE=ZZ

) o

Note: As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the
pension scheme in future years (2020: Nil).
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & £ — & —

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ﬁAMﬁﬁ%W%

—FF_H=1—HIFE

10. EERESTHRARTH

EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, BE#EBA TR REEQREH
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and the ERBECFRNESE&RSTBAER
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows: HENT
2021 2020
—EB-—-F T -TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Directors’ fees EEHe 860 960
Other emoluments: Hin & -
Salaries, allowances and benefits Fe EUMNEVER
in kKind 420 715
Discretionary bonus FIEAL 20 =
Pension scheme contributions E'<17I<\A£u+ ERE - 4
440 719
1,300 1,679
(A) INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (A) BIERTES
2021 2020
—EB-—-F T -THF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda mERBELZL 120 120
Mr. Ng Man Kung RXHEE 120 120
Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy RPEFEILT 100 100
340 340

The independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were for their services as

directors of the Company.

FABIIFATESZME T
AWEESARAEFAIEHR

AR5 2 Fr BN o

BREREREBRLQF
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E -—F+ - A=+ —HI FF

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

10. EERESTHRARTHHM(#)

(B) MITEERFHITES

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits Discretionary scheme
Fees in kind bonus contributions Total
¢ ZHK Bike
He ENEAN BERA HELES am
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TR FER FET TER FER
Year ended 31 December 2021 HZ-F--%
+ZA=+-8
LFEE
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen AzERLE 120 72 - - 192
Mr. Chan Kwan (Chief Executive) 18 & % 4 (1T B £ 5) 100 239 20 - 359
Mr. Radius Suhendra BEARE 100 - - - 100
Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny FEON 100 - - - 100
420 311 20 - 751
Non-executive directors FYTEES
Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian BEMEE 100 109 - = 209
520 420 2 - 960
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E ——F+ - A=+ —HIFEF

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 10. EEREBITHRARTM (&)
EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND NON- (B) MITEERFHITEE(H)
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits  Discretionary scheme
Fees in kind bonus  contributions Total
e RER g e
ik ENEF B A ek

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TEL TEL TET TAT

Year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-B_Ff

+=A=t-H
LEE

Executive directors HITES
Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen AzERLE 220 67 = = 287
Mr. Chan Kwan (Chief Executive) 8 & 5% 4 (1T B £ 5) 100 377 = 2 479
Mr. Radius Suhendra BEALE 100 - - - 100
Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny FEON 100 50 - 2 152

520 494 - 4 1,018
Non-executive directors FYTEES
Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian BEMEE 100 221 = = 301

620 715 - 4 1,339
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above FRATESHE IR FEER
were for their services in connection with the HEEBARNAEAEBER
management of the affairs of the Company and the EBRZRBZEHH -
Group.
The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown LTRIFERTESMES IRES
above were for their services as directors of the EABARRRISHEWNBRAR 2 E
Company or its subsidiaries. ERRHERBZEHBN -
There was no arrangement under which a director FAVEEFTIAHZERTHEAER
or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any MESRERNEZEAMGTMN 2 Z
remuneration during the year. B
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E -—F+ - A=+ —HI FF

1.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the
year included one (2020: one) director, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 10 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining four (2020: four)
highest paid employees who are neither a director nor
chief executive of the Company are as follows:

1.

LIEREHHMES

FRAEEREESFMNEERRE
—H(ZEZEF:—R)EFT HF
B 2 B SR E XK 10 - £
BTG (ZE-_TF OB IEX
RAIEENFERTBRABZER
FMEE ZHFMAEBERIMT

2021 2020
g —TTHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Salaries, allowances and benefits ¥4 - 2B R B WiE
in kind 2,614 3,313
Discretionary bonus ) 15 7€ 41 204 156
Pension scheme contributions RIRE T B R 73 90
2,891 3,559

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within
the following bands is as follows:

FHERANTREEAANEED
SEHHESHBAMT

Number of employees

EE"E
2021 2020
- —EETF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = 21,000,000 7T 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7t £1,500,000/% 7T 1 2
4 4

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any directors or
the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as a compensation for loss of
office.

2021 Annual Report
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E ——F+ - A=+ —HIFEF

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

e M RRME

12. FhBRAX

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FE T FAET
Current tax: B ER#% 18 -

Hong Kong BB 5 6
PRC A [ 11,656 6,215
11,661 6,221

Under provision in prior years: BEFERBETR:
PRC H 83 =
Deferred tax (note 27): i RE I8 (B 5227) - (350) 360
11,394 6,581

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the Group is
not subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and
the BVI.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the provision for
Hong Kong Profits Tax was calculated at 16.5% (2020:
16.5%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year.

The provision for the PRC income tax is based on the
respective corporate income tax rates applicable to
the subsidiaries of the Company located in the PRC as
determined in accordance with the relevant income tax
rules and regulations of the PRC.

No provision for Indonesian income tax had been made as
the Group did not generate any assessable profits arising
in Indonesia during the year (2020: Nil).

REASHEREBR LS (R
BEZBEBDAANZER  A&H
BEARHSEERRBRELEEH
MEMAEH -

HEZT-_—F+HA=1+—HLtF
B BEENNSHREBEBREAFEZ
BT AT AF B8 M M16.5% (Z 2 =&
F:16.5%) 5T & °

FEMBREGBERELR T BN
RAE M8 AR P E A% B AR
MAERARMERIMEENS D
EMBHREMESL -

HRAEBERFALEREEEE
ERAFREN T _FF &)
MO B ETHIRENE PR IS T B 485 o

BRABRERERAT —B-—FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &t 2 —E ——F+ - A=+ —HIL F&F

2. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont’d) 12. PRGN ()

= ARQE M B A A &Mk S BT E A
ERERETERETENRBANR
FERMNMERYBEASEEER
HEGFENHIERIOBEENT:

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rates for jurisdictions in which
the Company’s subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax
expense at the Group’s effective tax rate is as follows:

210

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Profit before tax B A5 A A 22,900 5,096
Tax at the domestic income tax rate 1% B R AT 15 5 R25% &+ & #) i 18
of 25% 5,725 1,274
Tax effect of expenses not TAMBRAI G E
deductible for tax purpose 2,672 1,780
Tax effect of income not taxable for HEREFW A Z G T &
tax purpose (1,283) (1,054)
Under provision in respect of prior @1 FE B E T2
years 83 _
Tax effect of tax losses not RERBEBB BB E
recognised 4,454 4,448
Utilisation of tax losses previously BRI AR ER TR IEE B
not recognised (26) =
The effect of deductible temporary KERANKRERMEEZB 222
difference not recognised (789) (1,040)
Income tax at concessionary rate BEEMETE E’] s (1,007) (577)
Effect of different tax rates of REMRZEEREE 2B AT
subsidiaries operating in other MEARzEE
jurisdictions (108) 3)
Effect of withholding tax on the MR E RN EEBHE MTJE NG
distributable profits of the Group’s 7] fif % fic & | &9 52 £
subsidiaries in the PRC 1,673 1,753
Income tax expense for the year AFEEMBHAX 11,394 6,581
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

%Aﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁ
For the year ended 31 December 2021 & £ —E - —F+ - A=+ —HI F&ZF
DIVIDENDS 13. KB
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FE T FAET
Dividends recognised as distribution RAFE R A7 IR B
during the year:
2021 interim dividend — HK0.5 cent —ZT - —FHhEIIK B — FM;K0.5
per share il 5,536 —
2020 special dividend — HK0.5 cent —E T FHFIRE — BR0.5
per share AL - 5,536
2019 final dividend — HK0.5 cent ~—ZFT—hFRKHBKE — FRO0.5
per share Bl - 5,537
5,536 11,073

No final dividend was proposed in respect of the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 14.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per

TEERBE T -_—FR-_ZT=
ZEF+A=+—BHIEFEIRMNRK
HAR B o

skEH (BR)

ARmBEAAREERERAR#E

share attributable to the owners of the Company is based B,/ (BE)WTEERTHIEE
on the following data:
2021 2020
—_E_—_— —EEF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET
Earnings/(loss) for the purposes of FEREARREERF/ (EE)
basic and diluted earnings/(loss) mMEz&F,(E#E) AR
per share, being profit/(loss) for BB AEBIEFRNREF, (B
the year attributable to owners of #B)
the Company 6,145 (4,956)
BRBRIZERERAA ——FFER
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

14. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER

Financial Statements

2FoEFE

Fr-A=1—HILFE

SHARE (Cont’d)

14. BIREF (58 (#F)

Number of shares

gvig §E|
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
’000 000
T T &
Weighted average number of HEREARRF (BEBR)MEZ
ordinary shares for the purpose of & 3@ A% hn#E F 19 &
basic earnings/(loss) per share 1,107,300 1,107,300

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the computation
of diluted loss per share does not assume the exercise

of the Company’s outstandi

ng share options because

the exercise price of those options was higher than the

average market price for share

No diluted earnings per share
there were no potential ordinar

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

s for 2020.

for 2021 were presented as
y share in issue for 2021.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E ——F+ - A=+ —HIFEF

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. UM% - BEREE
Equipment
Construction Land Leased  Land and and Office Motor
in progress rights  properties  buildings  machines  equipment vehicles Total

ERIE 1R RENE  LHRRT RERAE ROERR nE it
HKS000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKFOOD  HKS000
TAR TAT TAR TAT TAR TAT TAR TEL

COST A
At 1 January 2020 R-Z-ZF-4-f 18,340 5722 1,629 10,383 138,989 1,672 1,327 178,062
Exchange adjusiments EiAE 150 (1) - 94) (1,278) 97 % (1,151)
Additions RE 7,032 - - - 17 58 - 7,107
Disposals e - - - - - - (248) (248)
Transfer £3 (238) - - - 238 - - -
At 31 December 2020 i3

+-A=+-H 25,284 5,671 1,629 10,289 137,966 1,821 1,104 183,770
Exchange adjustments ELAE (553) (90) - (155) (1,869) 56 7 (2,604)
Additions AE - - - 1,198 3,208 131 3 4,540
Disposals i3 - (96) - - (40) (73) - (209)
Transfer gz (19,109) - - - 19,109 - - -
At 31 December 2021 RZB=-%

+ZA=t+-H 5,622 5,485 1,629 11,332 158,374 1,94 1,114 185,497
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ~EitifBR A

AND IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January 2020 RZE-ZE-f-H 5,765 3,004 91 4,850 91,015 951 963 106,639
Exchange adjusiments EiAE (52) (25) - (24) (557) 60 2% (572)
Provided for the year EnEE - - 544 47 3216 162 75 4,468
Eliminated on disposals LERHE - - - > 5 = (235) (239)
At 31 December 2020 i 33

+-A=t+-H 5713 2,979 635 5,297 93,674 1,173 829 110,300
Exchange adjusiments EiAE (91) (55) - (72) (1,358) 36 10 (1,530)
Provided for the year EREE - - 543 513 4,033 203 49 5,341
Eliminated on disposals MERHR - - - - (36) 68) - (104)
At 31 December 2021 RZB=-%

+-B=+-H 5,622 2,924 1,178 5,138 96,313 1,344 888 114,007
CARRYING VALUES FEE
At 31 December 2021 R-B--%

+-A=t+-H - 2,561 451 5,594 62,061 597 226 71,490
At 31 December 2020 it - 3:2

+-A=+-H 19,571 2,692 994 4,992 44,092 654 275 73,470
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 = E-—F+=-HA =+ —HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d) 15. ¥ - BER® ik (#)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except KEBEFREEBR  ElWE - K
for construction in progress after taking into account the EREZBEBERIERINET
residual values, are depreciated on a straight-line basis at FIFERNEFEFTIRITE

the following rates per annum:

Land rights 0% + i A 0%
Leased properties Over the term of lease HEWE NHEEBFHE
Land and buildings 5%-10% T RETF 5%-10%
Equipment and machines 10%-20% x2S 10%-20%
Office equipment 18%—-20% WRERME 18%-20%
Motor vehicles 12.5%-20% E 12.5%-20%
Analysis of right-of-use assets included in the property, FREEENST(EFTALE K
plant and equipment: BREE) :
Land Leased
rights properties Total
+ ith HEYE et

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
THETT THETT FTAETT

As at 31 December 2021 R-ZE-—F
+=HA=+—H
Carrying amount REE 2,561 451 3,012
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZB_-2F
+=HA=+—8H
Carrying amount A 2,692 994 3,686
For the year ended BE-Z-—F
31 December 2021 +TZA=+—HBLEFE
Depreciation charge EER - 543 543
For the year ended BE-Z_2F%
31 December 2020 TZA=ET+—HLEE
Depreciation charge WEER - 544 544

214 ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2021 Annual Report
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e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E ——F+ - A=+ —HIFEF

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)

15. W% - BERR R (F)

Year ended Year ended
2021 2020
BZ HE
—EZ—F —ETF
LttFE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#& T FET
Expense relating to short-term EAREHHEE R
leases 373 353
Total cash outflow for leases HMERS MR 948 928

For both years, the Group leases various offices for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed
term of 1 to 3 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain different terms and conditions.
In determining the lease term and assessing the length of
the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition
of a contract and determines the period for which the
contract is enforceable.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for
various offices. At 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the portfolio of
short-term leases to which the short-term lease expense
disclosed above.

EMER AEEREZERES
BERAE - HEAKNDIZEE HHH
EIFFIL o BT EE B EHE L1
ERR AR EC /O ECS eiN
BEEEHEFGETAMESEN R
Bl AEEREBAONEELE
EBAFRBIRITHIME -

AEEBETFTHRSERREE] LK
HE R_E-_—FR_ZE_FTF
+-A=+—HB EHHEEHLHSA
FXBEENEHEERTNEHA
EHEMEE -

BRABRERERAT —B-—FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bt 2 —F ——F+ - A=+ —HI FE&E

16. RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

ARRANGEMENTS

The Group has entered into a number of service
concession arrangements with certain governmental
authorities in the PRC and government-owned
corporation in Indonesia on a BOT basis in respect
of its wastewater treatment services and biomass
power services respectively. These service concession
arrangements generally involve the Group as an operator
in (i) designing and constructing wastewater treatment
facility and biomass power plant (the “Facilities”); and
(i) operating and maintaining the Facilities at a specified
level of serviceability for periods ranging from 20 to 34
years (the “Service Concession Periods”), and the
Group has been guaranteed to receive minimum annual
payments in connection with the arrangements or receive
a top up fee depending on the utilised capacity of the
Facilities. The Group is generally entitled to use all the
property, plant and equipment of the Facilities, however,
the relevant governmental authorities or government-
owned corporation as grantors will control and regulate
the scope of services that the Group must provide with
the Facilities, and retain the beneficial entitlement to any
residual interest in the Facilities at the end of the terms of
the Services Concession Periods. Each of those service
concession arrangements is governed by a contract and,
where applicable, supplementary agreements entered
into between the Group, specific obligations imposed
on the Group to restore the Facilities to a specified level
of serviceability at the end of the Service Concession
Periods, and arrangements for arbitrating disputes. The
service concession arrangements do not contain renewal
options or any termination rights to any of the contracting
parties.

As at 31 December 2021, the biomass power plant is under

construction. In the opinion of directors, it is expected to
be completed in the second-half of 2022.

2021 Annual Report

16. RFFIFERFTHOREBRET

AEED DR EE T R IKAT KRS
MENERE RAF5KEERB &
EYEERERBIZBOTE £ L%
ERGEHTEZYE -  ZERGEFT
BT —MIERAEEIEREER)
R R ERSKERRBREME
HEMIZERED K (i)R202
4FRHEA(RESFBH)) UIE
EWAIRBKFEERGEZSR
M MASECEREERBEBRL
B REFEMRIKIEZSHR
HREFEAAERREEER A&
ERsAREAZSERENTEY
¥ BEAZE AMm BEBRF
BEXBRERFIEAR FABIEG
METREHE  AEE XN ARR
BEAREERBEIREEZSRE
WRBENZE R 2 E A F erbE
mZEREN - ZEREFTESR
XAEB 2HEI Y 2648k (E
B rRwE AR AEBAEER
BT RERBEEZSREIRED
BMERBKEMEAE ZEFETET
RS ETHRZ L - R
BHEZHETRSEHRERENT
EHEPPAIEE-JIX: 3

N_E-_—F+_A=+—H8 49
LBRERNEREFR EERE
BERBHBEAR_E - —F T EF

—
T Lo



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #

2-FC

—FF_H=1—HIFE

*

translation is for identification purposes only.

The official name of the operator is in Chinese. The English

16. RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION 16. RS F R TR I =HIA
ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d) (#)
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had 5 RZEBEZ—FR_ZE-_ZFTF+=A
service concession arrangements and a summary of major =+ —B AKBEBERBETE
terms of these arrangements is as follows: ZH ZELRHENITERRBMEN
T
Type of service Designed
Name of company as concession processing Service concession
operator Name of facility Location Name of grantor equipment capacity period
EREERN RBATE Fit
ARER FAEEREEE RTALR REER RE#N BRmTE
Haian Hengfa Wastewater Haian Hengfa Municipal - Haian Country, Haian Country BOT on wastewater 20,000 tonnes 28 years from 2002 to
Treatment Company Wastewater Treatment  Nantong City, Construction Bureau ~ treatment 2030 and extended to
Limited (‘Haian Facility (Phase ) the PRC 2036 in 2013
Hengfa')
BREESKERAR BREETHSKEE TEERTERE SRERES EBSKEREMBOT 20,0004 BE F-FT_ER
AR(8ZER)) & () HEZSZIFL
TR-E-ZFER
EIEIAE
Haian Hengfa" Haian Hengfa Municipal - Haian Country, Haian Country BOT on wastewater 20,000 tonnes 225 years from 2013 to
Wastewater Treatment ~ Nantong City, Construction Bureau ~ treatment 2036
Facllity (Phase I} the PRC
BREY BREFTHIKRE THERATAZE BRERRR EBSKREMBOT 20,0004 N5F HZF-F
Ri(ZH) BHEZZ=AEL
Rugao Hengfa Water Rugao Hengfa Municipal Rugao Country,  Rugao Economic BOT on wastewater 20,000 tonnes 25 years from 2007 to
Treatment Company and Industrial Nantong City, and Technological treatment 2032 and extended to
Limited (‘Rugao Wastewater Treatment  the PRC Development Zone 2035 in 2009
Hengfa') Facility (Phase ) Administrative
Committee
MEERKREARLA MRERTHRIZS TRAEATNRE NREERGFRER  AEIKEREMBOT 200004 BF H_ETELER
(meER) KEBRiEH) E%% HECEB-fL
TR-FENFER
5-ECRF
Rugao Hengfa* Rugao Hengfa Municipal Rugao Country, ~ Rugao Economic BOT on wastewater 20,000 tonnes 20 years from 2015 to
and Industrial Nantong City, and Technological treatment 2035
Wastewater Treatment  the PRC Development Zone
Facllity (Phase I} Administrative
Committee
meE MREETHRIXS PEEBTNRE WNREERWREE  ABTKREMBOT 20,0002 W 0% f#-F-1F
KeBRiE(—H) BZe BHtE-E-REL
PT Sentosa Jaya Pumama  Sadai 10MW Biomass ~ Bangka, Indonesia  PT PLN (Persero) BOT on biomass 12.5 Megawatts 25 years from 2023 to
Power power plant 2048
DRIMWENE HEANS DREFENRT FEENELZEN 125%R BF f-F-=F
i BOT BHEZMNFL

- EERNETEBATXEHE - R
NEBBEEHZ2ZE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bt 2 —F ——F+ - A=+ —HI FE&E

16. RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

Pursuant to the service concession agreements, the
Group is granted the rights to use the property, plant
and equipment of the Facilities and certain related land
during the Service Concession Periods. The Group is
required to surrender these assets to the grantors at a
specified level of serviceability at the end of the respective
service concession periods. As at 31 December 2021 and
2020, while some of the related land has been registered
under the names of the relevant group companies, the
title certificates with respect to certain land use rights
of the Facilities to which the Group’s service concession
arrangements relate have not been registered under the
names of the relevant group companies. The directors
of the Company are of the opinion that the Group is
entitled to the lawful and valid occupation or use of these
buildings and land to which the above-mentioned land
use rights during the respective concession periods
for nil consideration for providing wastewater treatment
and biomass power services under the relevant BOT
agreements.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue and profit
were recognised for exchanging construction services
for a financial asset amounting to HK$22,955,000 (2020:
HK$4,646,000) and HK$3,158,000 (2020: HK$341,000).
Considerations for revenue related to the construction
and operation services under BOT arrangements were
recognised as “receivables under service concession
arrangements” in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

2021 Annual Report
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ARRMEERA  BIEMEBEBOT
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FTFE BUELIRBI B H®
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e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E ——F+ - A=+ —HIFEF

16. RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION
ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

The Group’s receivables under service concession

(%)

7N £ B AR 75 45 BT AR K HE T B0 B MK

16. RFEFIFERFTHOEBRET

arrangements are as follows: HIT
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHE T FE T
Receivables under service R L BE T A W 3k 1B
concession arrangements 338,753 314,782
Portion classified as current assets D AR E ER LD (25,559) (21,883)
Portion classified as non-current D3 AETREBEEN LD
assets 313,194 292,899

The following is an aged analysis of receivables under
service concession arrangements, presented based on the

REZZEHZINEHRBFHFEL

e T M OB 0 BE B AT S T

invoice date:
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FET
Billed within 3 months SEARNERAEE 12,248 9,558
Unbilled (note) EENGE A EED) 326,505 305,224
338,753 314,782

Note: The balance represented contract assets as the rights to
considerations have not yet to be unconditional.

Details of the impairment assessment are set out in note
33.

HEE: A BheE A MR B (2 AR B 98
B ZARAE -

BB BY {4 FF 1B DI MY FES3 e
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FEMBRRMET
For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bt 2 —F ——F+ - A=+ —HI FE&E
17. GOODWILL 17. B8
HK$’'000
FET
COST R
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020, R-ZE-_ZEF—H—H
1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 —ETF+HA=+—H"
T_—F—A—HK
:—;:—¢+_H_+ H 81,407
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT 2R E
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020, RZTE_EF—H—H-
1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 —E2-TF+=ZA=+—8"
—TE-—F—A—HEZE-—F
+=—A=+—~H 81,407
CARRYING VALUE REE
At 31 December 2021 R-E-_—F+=-HA=+—H —
At 31 December 2020 R-E-_FTF+_-_A=+—H =

The amount represents goodwill arising on the acquisition
of Weal Union Limited and its subsidiary on 21 October
2016, and is allocated to the Group’s CGU in the biomass
power generation business. The goodwill was fully impaired
during the year ended 31 December 2018, as the carrying
amount of the CGU was determined to be higher than its
recoverable amount.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2021 Annual Report
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e MR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E ——F+ - A=+ —HIFEF

18. DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE 18. EBBRMBEEBRFLARENE

THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME MRHEIR
2021 2020
—E-—F —EETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T T T
Listed investments, fair value EH®E 2R
— Debt securities listed in Hong — RB B ETHEBE 5
Kong 2,012 4,972
Fixed
interest rate Maturity date 2021 2020
B E Fl % ZHA —E-—F —ETF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE T T T
Listed bond 5.60% 28 February 2021 - 1,692
LEHESH —E-FZA=Z+)\H
Listed bond 6.13% 21 February 2024 2,012 3,380
EWESH —E-NF-A=+—H
2,012 4,972
Analysed as: Pk i
Non-current IR B 2,012 3,380
Current Vi) - 1,592
2,012 4,972

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 33.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E -—F+ - A=+ —HI FF

19. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED
COST

19. BB FHENEMENEE

2021 2020

—B=Z-F _—T_THF

HK$°000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Money market fund (note (a)) BEEmisE S (WiEa@) - 5,934
Bank deposits (note (b)) #1715 3k (Bt & (b)) 2,278 2,319
2,278 8,253
Less: Allowance for credit losses & : 12 & & 18 B & (2,259) .
19 8,253

Analysed as: RV
Non-current FERE 14 2,038
Current k2l 5 6,215
19 8,253

Note: (a) The fund bore fixed interest rate of 3.65% per annum,
had a maturity period of 87 days and was non-
cancellable before maturity. Interest and the principal
amount were repayable at the maturity date.

(b) These represent deposits of approximately HK$1,814,000
and HK$464,000 (2020: HK$1,845,000 and HK$474,000)
placed with Koperasi Simpan Pinjam Indosurya Cipta
(“KSPIC”), which is in the process of debt restructuring.
Based on the Jakarta District court order, KSPIC is
required to return the deposits to the Group, by 60-month
instalments and 48-month instalments starting from June
2021 and January 2021, respectively. The bank deposits
are interest-free.

(c) Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 33.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2021 Annual Report
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5&464,0008 T(Z T ZF F:
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%F?Aﬂﬁi%ﬁ% B &

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & £ —E - —F+ - A=+ —HI F&ZF

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND 20. RHEEERE - RARTREM

OTHER RECEIVABLES & IR
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHE T FET
Trade receivables B 5 I W kIR 73 =
Less: Allowance for credit losses %l : 5 B BB E - -
73 —
Other receivables H b e R 3,827 1,333
Advance to a third party (note) mM—%%E= E{’Eﬂj B =0 3R (B 5T 4,049 3,916
Prepayments for BOT construction BOT & 5% T8 1~ & 19,785 648
Prepaid expenses TR 1,774 1,674
VAT recoverable A] Y [a] 18 {5 75 2,800 2,604
32,235 10,175
Less: Allowance for credit losses Bl B — BB = SEHBE K 2
on advance to a third party EEEERE (1,027) —
31,208 10,175
31,281 10,175
Analysed as: DA
Non-current é‘F Vil 341 =
Current Vin 30,940 10,175
31,281 10,175
Note: The advance bears interest of 10% per annum, is repayable Wik BRIEFREI0%FE - REKE
on demand and secured by pledge of 40% equity interest in a E o WLA— R R B 5 M A a2 A9 FL

private company incorporated in the PRC. ANRAEH40% PG REVEIR IR -

B RKFBREZEHIR 2K
waofm(INREEEEREFE MT:

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables (net
of allowance for credit losses) presented based on the

invoice date:
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHE T F& T
0-60 days 0Z60H 73 —

The Group had a policy of allowing a credit period of 30
days.

AREEBNBRSHEBEED -
BB AT il B 5 15 BB E33 o

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 33.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E -—F+ - A=+ —HI FF

21.

22,

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS, TIME
DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES AND CASH

The restricted deposits are in relation to a service
agreement signed by PT Sentosa Jaya Purnama (“SJP”)
with an independent third party during the year ended 31
December 2020 for building and operating a power plant
in Indonesia. As at 31 December 2021, the restricted bank
deposits carried interests of 4% (2020: 4% to 4.5%) per
annum with maturity of 9 months to 16 months (2020: 11
months to 36 months) from the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2021, time deposits with original
maturity over three months carried interest at prevailing
market rates of 2.1% (2020: Nil) per annum.

As at 31 December 2021, bank balances carried interest at
prevailing market rates of 0.001% to 1% (2020: 0.001% to
1%) per annum.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 33.
TRADE PAYABLES

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables
presented based on the invoice date:

21.

22,

ZRFABTER ERERRR
THRERRRS

% R #l 77 5% B PT Sentosa Jaya
Purnama ([SIP)REEZE=-_TE_FF
+-A=+—BHLEFEHR—FBEL
FZTRRENEEEREEEEMR
ZiWRBmEER RT=—
F+-A=+—H IRHETE
RIBAN M FEREFB(ZE T F -
4% F4.5%) - W 7| EERZME A
Z16EARBCZE-_ZF :11@EAA
Z36fE A) -

R-_EBE-_—F+-_fA=+—8 EF
B R BiB =AM EBFRIEZ21%
(ZE2E-Z2F B)MNRITMIGFERNE
B o

R-_T_—F+-A=+—H " RTT
& EBRIR0.001I% BN (ZE T F:
0.001% £1%) B IR 17 ™ &5 F F K 5F
é\ o

BB R R R IB KT 5ES3 o
BOREMRIA

EHOREMNRBBREZAHIRTZE
RN :

2021 2020

—BZ—-f —T-THF

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#E T FET

0-60 days 0z260H 667 649
61-90 days 61£290H 3 3
Over 90 days 90H M E 2,631 2,112
3,301 2,764
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E ——F+ - A=+ —HIFEF

23. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

24,

23. HttFEfRIAREEA

2021 2020
—E2-—F —EETF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
Other payables H b B 5K 1B 3,964 3,219
Accruals e E B 2,020 3,272
5,984 6,491
AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES 24, EFIRBEARIE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Non-trading in nature: FEHME:
Related company 4 Bt 2 =] 11,579 8,628
Beneficial owner BEmEA A 11,698 4,778
A close family member of —REEN—RIOR
a director 15,930 —
39,207 13,406
Less: Amount that is expected to  J&t : T8 HipM21E B 18 &5 &30 71| 1
settle after 12 months shown FERBBEZNIE
under non-current liabilities (4,000) —
Amount that is expected to settle  FEHi 121 B R 45 E I 51| &
within 12 months shown under BB E 2B
current liabilities 35,207 13,406

The amount due to a related company, which is wholly
owned by a substantial shareholder of the Company,
is unsecured, interest-bearing at 6% per annum and

repayable within 1 year.

N —REE AR (RARE —HE
EMRE2EREBZRAR)NREARE
W mFN K% B MEAENMEF

NEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & £ — & —

24. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES

(Cont’d)

The amount due to a bene

Financial Statements

= —F —

Fr-A=1—HILFE

ficial owner is unsecured,

interest-bearing at 6% per annum and repayable within 1

year.

The amount due to a close family member of a director

is unsecured,

interest-bearing at 8% per annum, of

which HK$11,930,000 is repayable within 1 year and the
remaining balance of HK$4,000,000 is repayable after 1

year but within 2 years.

24,

FE RS 75 ®R IR (4%)

JEN—R2EZEAEAZREAEEIR
IR FEMRE%TE - RARIER
BE o

R —REEN—ROEBRNE
EIEE - BFR KSR E - Ea
11,930,000/ 8 T ZE M1 FE RN E 8 © #%
X4,000,000/%8 7T 7B A1F 18 H2F N
EiE -

Q=1

25. BORROWINGS 25. f&®™
2021 2020
—EC--F —EF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FAT
Unsecured bank borrowings (note) & # 3 48 17 (& X (M 5%) 20,240 22,480
Unsecured other borrowings R R 3R H M £E R 14,867 =
35,107 22,480

Bank borrowings

Other borrowings

2021 2020 2021 2020
—B--f C"T-TF ZBZ-H —T-TH
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
THERT FTAT TR FTAT
The carrying amounts FEATBRTEI A -
repayable:
On demand or within one BER
year —FR 20,240 20,240 14,867 -
Within a period of more HiBR—FE
than one year but not THBBME
exceeding two years B EIRE A - 2,240 - -
20,240 22,480 14,867 —
Less: Amounts due within one  J& : — 4 1A &/
year shown under current I 51 4k 7% &)
liabilities BEZHIEA (20,240) (20,240) (14,867) =
Amounts shown under SIEERBBE
non-current liabilities Z A - 2,240 - -

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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25. BORROWINGS (Cont’d) 25. B (#E)
The exposure of the Group’s borrowings are as follows: AEBEEROMARAT
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER FHET
Fixed-rate borrowings A EE K 14,867 —
Variable-rate borrowings TR EER 20,240 22,480
35,107 22,480
The Group’s variable-rate borrowings carrying interest at AEBNEIBNEXERDANILEE

RITAXRFKELBBRITEERE
g E AR e

HIBOR and LIBOR respectively, plus a premium.

RS BB R B FR R & (84 7 A

The ranges of effective interests (which are also equal to

contractual interest rates) on the Group’s borrowings are RSB T
as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAET
Effective interest rate: BERAx:
Fixed-rate borrowings [E] 7 F1) = & 3K 8% —

Variable-rate borrowings FENF EEK 1.52%-1.53% 1.68% -2.07%

R —F+=-_A=+—8"

A (& RDE B F KD
52,240,000 T(Z & = & F:
4,480,000/ 7T) * SARELABILETE ©

As at 31 December 2021, borrowings of approximately
HK$2,240,000 (2020: HK$4,480,000) were dominated in
United States dollars (“US$”), while the remaining balance
was dominated in HK$.

BIERABRTEERELE
FEEMEAERESESEA
38,000,000 7T) K A2 &) fE H Y
ERBARERAER -

Note: The bank borrowings are guaranteed by personal guarantee B 5
given by an executive director, Mr. Chan Kwan, in maximum
amount of HK$38,000,000 and unlimited corporate guarantee
given by the Company.
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e I HRRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 &t 2 —E ——F+ - A=+ —HIL F&F
26. LEASE LIABILITIES 26. HEAR
2021 2020
—E-—F —EETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#& T T T
Lease liabilities payable: ERHEEAE:
Within one year —F R 472 547
Within a period of more than one HBE-FETBAMEZHER
year but not exceeding two years - 472
472 1,019
Less: Amount due for settlement B R12E BRI E
with 12 months shown under WHERBEBEZ
current liabilities A (472) (547)
Amount due for settlement after 12 #M2{H B2 BB &
months shown under non-current WHEIERB BEZ
liabilities IE — 472

27.

The weighted average incremental
to lease liabilities is 3.93% (2020: 3

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

borrowing rates applied
.93%).

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated

statement of financial position,

certain deferred tax

assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is the
analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting

27.

ERREEaENMETHIES
B RF K A393% (= FE = & &
3.93%) °

EEREAAR

REEMBRARAKREIME BT
EEMBAEERBEETEE - U
TREVBE2RBEZETER AR
RO

purposes:
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiE T FAT
Net deferred tax liabilities EIERIBEEFRE 36,620 35,774

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & £ —E - —F+ - A=+ —HI F&ZF

27. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Cont’d)

The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities)/assets
recognised and movements thereon during the current and

27. BERAARHE)

AT BRA B R R R A
TEREBA(AR), BERES

prior years: g
Temporary
difference
related to ECL
Provision service Retirement provision
formajor ~ concession  Withholding benefit of other
overhauls  arrangements taxes obligation receivables Total
HRBNTE B W AN
ZHEEN RERE
EXREEE  ERMEE BNk EARAER EaRG it
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
T T i T ThExL T
t 1 January 2020 \ZEZEE-A-H 3,287 (33,287) (3,331) - - (33,331)
Credted/(charged) to profit 5t A/ (11%)
or loss & 638 2,345) 1,347 - - (360)
Exchange adjustments ELHE 239 2,19 (130) - - (2,083)
At 31 December 2020 RIEZZE
TZR=1-H 4,164 (37,824) (2,114) - - (35,774)
Credited/(charged) to profit 3t A/ (1)
or loss Ba 432 (1,423) 1,081 8 252 350
Exchange adjustments B AR 149 (1,208) (52) - 5 (1,196)
At 31 December 2021 RZB=-%
tZA=t-H 4,745 (40,545) (1,085) 8 257 (36,620)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$73,901,000 (2020:
HK$64,107,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
the unused tax losses due to the unpredictability of the
future profit streams. The tax losses could be carried
forward for a maximum of five years.

RBEHR AEBERSHAMRE
B8 4973,901,000/8 T (ZE T4 :
64,107,000/ 7o) A] BB 1E K 85 R K &
Bl oo AR EETER ARRFBER - &
jﬁ#ﬁﬁiﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁlﬁ)&ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ%EHL
ERBEBEE PMEEBERZAULE
HEF o

BRABRERERAT —B-—FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E -—F+ - A=+ —HI FF

27.

28.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Cont’d)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$9,454,000 (2020: HK$11,112,000). No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary differences as it is not probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate of 5% may be applied if
there is a tax treaty between the PRC and the jurisdiction
of the foreign investors. The Group is therefore liable
for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in the PRC in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

27. BERAARHE)

RBEBR AEBBEATHNHEY R
M 2= %8 499,454,000 T(ZE T
F 11,112,000 70) - AR E £ B3R
i % A T AT B DA HK 65 AT 0 B R
EBZAKEERIKR M ERZSE
ANBERNEEZEERELEHEE
E °

BEFPEPEMSHE  EPEK
VHHNEDRERIIEREEST KD
f% B A M10% M FEMB - Z BT
BE-EZENF—A—H®BES @A
R-ZTEZT+F+_RA=+—H2Z%
BSHAEAH o W EHEZEINE IR
BEMERERRBBRTBHBIKL
B AT SRR B R5% MM BN - A
g AREBARZER P B KD
MBARBE TN \F—A B
SR IRA RS EMHTENT -

PROVISION FOR MAJOR OVERHAULS 28. EXBE N

2021 2020

—E-—F —EEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHE T

At 1 January »—A—AH 16,656 13,147

Additional provision in the year F 8 B 757 1,771
Increase in discounted amounts FR 7 B [ 07 48 1 BE AR A
arising from the passage of time B4 37 & %8 1% 0 (Mf 5£8)

(note 8) 970 780

Exchange adjustments ME W, 38 & 595 958

At 31 December BN+=-—A=+—8H 18,978 16,656

2021 Annual Report
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E ——F+ - A=+ —HIFEF

PROVISION FOR MAJOR OVERHAULS (Cont’d)

Pursuant to the service concession agreements entered
into by the Group, the Group has contractual obligations
to maintain the wastewater treatment facilities it operates
to a specified level of serviceability and/or to restore the
facilities to a specified condition before they are handed
over to the grantors at the end of the Service Concession
Periods. These contractual obligations to maintain or
restore the facilities, except for any upgrade element, are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets,
i.e., at the best estimate of the expenditure that would
be required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period. The future expenditure on these
maintenance and restoration costs are collectively referred
to as “major overhauls”. The estimation basis is reviewed
on an ongoing basis, and revised where appropriate.

At the end of the reporting period, no provision is provided
for biomass power facilities as it is under construction.
Details of service concession agreements are set out in
note 16.

28. EX®E RN 4)

R IR 7N & B P 5T 3L 80 BR 75 %5 7T 15
& CAKRBAREASNELE  UR
BHRLEMSKREERE  BRE
Fa—EARMHRBKFER R
RETFRERE  EHREEZE
TRTAR - BEEBEHREMRNR -
REHEERBHNEHETRRIT
MBEDIN IR E B G 5T ERIE 375 &
B ZARABERIAREETUER
Nit& B2 BRBEESHRET
REEEMBERXNRELAEHE
Pk - FRARSEREREEERN
ARRFAZHBEAIERRE] - A5
HEEFERBRT LN BEZERET -

RBERR BERDERRZPH
EMEREREAIRETAES - R
B AT i B0 S B BN MY 516 -

SHARE CAPITAL 29. &&¥
Number Share
of shares capital
% & B [N
‘000 HK$’'000
T i FAET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.0001 each & % M {20.00017%8 JT & & i@ A%
Authorised ERE
At 1 January 2020, 31 December A\—E-_ZEF—HF—H -
2020, 1 January 2021 and —EEF+-_A=+—8"
31 December 2021 —ET_—F—-HA—HBK
S H+=-A=+—H 3,800,000 380
Issued and fully paid BERITEER
At 1 January 2020, 31 December R-ZZE-FTF—H—H-
2020, 1 January 2021 and —E-EFE+ZA=+—8"
31 December 2021 2 —F—HA—HK
—T_—F+-A=+—H 1,107,300 111
BRBRIZERERAA —EC-FEFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E -—F+ - A=+ —HI FF

30. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(A) OTHER RESERVE

Other reserve comprises HK$113,780,000 debit
reserve resulting from the share swap pursuant to
the Group reorganisation and HK$82,304,000 credit
reserve resulting from capitalisation of shareholders’
loans during the year ended 31 December 2014.

(B) GENERAL RESERVE

The transfers from retained earnings to the general
reserve were made in accordance with the relevant
PRC rules and regulations and the articles of
association of the Company’s subsidiaries established
in the PRC.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2021 Annual Report

30. f#fl

RAFENBEFE XEERHB
BENMEBEHI2INGEAEDRED
% o

(A) Hft G

EMFEREREEBREZEAN
B% 17 B 3% E 4 #9113,780,000/%8
THhRH#EREE-_ZT—NOF
+—A=Z+—HLFERREE
KB AL E 4 #982,304,000/%8
TIEEME -

(B) —hxfiEfi
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E ——F+ - A=+ —HIFEF

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing
activities.

e M RRME

3. MEEHELEZARYIR

TERHFIBMEETHELEZAKEE
EEY BERASMFRSED -
MELTHELCBEDRERAESR
EIARARBERENAKEERER
TREXRTOIERRELTDHELN
HeRE-

Amounts
due to
related Lease Interest
parties Borrowings liabilities  payables Total
JE 1% A4
B¥ARE R HESE FE ‘st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FTEL AT TET TET
At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-F
—A—H 8,986 24,720 1,544 - 35,250
Financing cash flows BREHERE 3,835 (2,240) (575) (569) 451
Interest expenses FIERY 585 = 50 569 1,204
At 31 December 2020 R-_ZE-TF
+-A=+—-H 13,406 22,480 1,019 - 36,905
Financing cash flows BEBREME 23,753 12,627 (575) (1,219) 34,586
Interest expenses FIBHEY 2,048 - 28 1,362 3,438
At 31 December 2021 R-T-—#F
+-R=+—-H 39,207 35,107 472 143 74,929
BRBRIZERERQE —EB-—FER
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32.

33.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes the amounts due to related parties,
borrowings and lease liabilities as disclosed in notes 24, 25
and 26 respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, accumulated losses and other
reserves.

The management reviews the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the management considers
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class
of capital. Based on recommendations of the management,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-
backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption
of existing debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(A) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

32. RxERER

33.

AREBEREERABRAEEE
TERSENEERFSERLERE
e ARKEEEBLEHBEREZ
FHERRNEDRIZT AL  NEE

AEBNEARBERIEERFRAE
HEah e iED B K 724 - 25K 268
EMEMEB I ZE  BERMEE
aE - MKRESEBESEEEER
ARAREBARGERS(BREET
AR BB BEREMEE -

EEEERRANERARE - AR
M —HD BEEEZRELAKA
FEZHERXEHENER - REE
BEMKERERZ AKXEKEAK
MRS STk kEBRG -
ARBETHEBXBELBAESF
BHEBBERRE -

&#MIR
(A) &RTAMA

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FE T
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at amortised IRE#HEK AT EN TR E E
cost 428,937 391,381
Debt instruments at FVTOCI FREMEENZRANETE
mE BT A 2,012 4,972
430,949 396,353
Financial liabilities tEEE
Financial liabilities at amortised R K AT EN LR BE
cost 82,051 42,888

234 ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include
receivables under service concession arrangements,
debt instruments at FVTOCI, other financial assets
at amortised cost, other receivables, restricted
bank deposits, time deposits, bank balances and
cash, trade payables, other payables, amounts due
to related parties, borrowings and lease liabilities.
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency
risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management of
the Group manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented in a
timely and effective manner.

MARKET RISK

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the
financial risks of changes in currency risk, interest rate
risk and other price risk. There has been no change
to the Group’s exposure to market risk or the manner
in which it manages and measures the risk.

BREREREBRLQF

33. &M T A (#E)
(B) &M EAMETEEERKE

AEBTIZcRIABERE
FrafEZ B RO BRI -~ &
B M2 WU s R A S E AT
ENGBEBITA  REHEKAG
ENHEMBEREE  HibEW
RE - XRHRITER - EH
R -ROTEHRERE  EBEH
FERTRRIR - E B 5RIR - JE
NEBTRE ERXREER
E-BFHemMIAZHBEER
EMERE HZFeMIA
HENRREEMSARE
B R B R R E R N A E A
R  FERBRERDES
BB o N BB BRK % F
RBRHOBER AEEEEEE
BRERZERBRIAEREER
REEREREERE -

™ % E B
AEBEHCHTIZ@MEINE
BE 2~ ) KA B N H (B AR R

i E B A R B o R SR T S EY
mERRIERLFEZSFE

RO
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & 2 — & ——

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

MARKET RISK (Cont’d)

()

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the holding of
foreign currency assets and liabilities will affect
the Group’s position as a result of a change in
foreign currency exchange rates.

Individual companies in the PRC and Indonesia
within the Group have limited foreign currency
risk as most of the transactions are denominated
in the functional currency of the operations in
which they relate. However, as the principal
subsidiaries mainly carried out transactions in
RMB and IDR, therefore any appreciation or
depreciation of HK$ against RMB and IDR will
affect the Group’s consolidated financial position
and be reflected in the exchange reserve.

As at 31 December 2021, individual companies
in the Cayman Islands and Hong Kong within the
Group have foreign currency exposure because
certain debt instruments of approximately
HK$2,012,000 (2020: HK$4,972,000),
bank balances and cash of approximately
HK$898,000 (2020: HK$3,367,000), amounts
due to related parties of approximately
HK$3,900,000 (2020: Nil) and borrowings
of approximately HK$2,240,000 (2020:
HK$4,480,000) were denominated in US$. The
Group considers that the currency exposures
in related to the US$ are insignificant as HK$ is
pegged to the US$. Therefore, this balance is
excluded from the sensitivity analysis.

2021 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

MARKET RISK (Cont’d)

()

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to amounts due to related parties
(see note 24), fixed-rate borrowings (see note
25) and lease liabilities (see note 26). The Group
is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to the variable-rate bank balances
(see note 21) and variable-rate borrowings (see
note 25). The Group cash flow interest rate risk
is mainly concentrated on fluctuation of interest
rates on borrowings. The Group manages
its interest rate exposures by assessing the
potential impact arising from any interest rate
movements based on interest rate level and
outlook. The management will review the
proportion of borrowings in fixed and variable
rates and ensure they are within reasonable
range.

A fundamental reform of major interest rate
benchmarks is being undertaken globally,
including the replacement of some interbank
offered rates (“IBORs”) with alternative nearly
risk-free rates. Details of the impacts on the
Group’s risk management strategy arising from
the interest rate benchmark reform and the
progress towards implementation of alternative
benchmark interest rates are set out under
“interest rate benchmark reform” in this note.

2FoF

e M RRME

Ft_H=1—HILFE

33. @I A(HE)

(B) &Rk EEAMRER (M)

?ﬁi%ELF (//3)

(i)

BREREREBRLQF et S

ETN

NEE T HE B R T X
H (2 R Mt s24) - B E 7
KGR (2R W25 kA
EaE2R W26 EE
AFENERAR  AEHE
TR sh B ¥ By M R SR 17 48
(2R Mt 21 RF 8 A =X
BR (2R M 525 R
//ILE%'JTH fa o $$.
ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂTﬂ e TEE
PRERFERE - K&
& 1R 38 | R IKF K B = &
il £ fa] M) 2= %5 B T EE A 19

BEZE  LAEEARNE
R - &R AR A B E
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 33. @M THRHE)
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (B) &AM EEARRB R (&)
AND POLICIES (Cont’d)
MARKET RISK (Cont’d) ™5 B bk (&)
(i) Interest rate risk (Cont’d) (i) FIEE (&)
Total interest revenue/income from financial HEER AR B BEME
assets that are measured at amortised cost or at HRZEAALETENS
FVTOCI is as follows: MEEMFBWKA
WEENIT
2021 2020
—E-—F —EETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAET
Interest revenue B A
Financial assets at amortised cost  IREE K REF 21
S REE 17,213 15,497
Other income and net gains H b I A B S &=
Debt instruments at FVTOCI BHREMEEWFR
AAREFENED
TA 205 817
17,418 16,314
Interest expense on financial liabilities not WIEBRE=ZAAMBEE
measured at FVTPL: ENSREENFTIERY:
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT F& T

Financial liabilities at amortised cost 1R#E S AT 21 £ &
af& 3,438 1,984
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

MARKET RISK (Cont’d)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Cont’d)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole
year. A 50 basis points (2020: 50 basis points)
increase or decrease in variable-rate borrowings
is used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates. Bank balances
are excluded from sensitivity analysis as the
management considers that the exposure of
cash flow interest rate risk arising from variable-
rate bank balances is insignificant.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2020:
50 basis points) higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s pre-
tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2021
would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$101,000 (2020: HK$112,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest
rates on its variable-rate borrowings.

e M RRME
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E -—F+ - A=+ —HI FF

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

MARKET RISK (Cont’d)

(i) Other price risk

The Group is exposed to debt securities price
risk through its investments in debt instruments
at FVTOCI. The management of the Group
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio
of investments with different risks. The Group’s
other price risk is mainly concentrated on debt
instruments operating in infrastructure industry

sector quoted in the Stock Exchange.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to debt
securities price risks at the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective debt instruments
had been 5% (2020: 5%) higher/lower,
investment revaluation reserve would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$101,000 (2020:
HK$249,000) for the Group as a result of the
change in fair value of debt instruments at

FVTOCI.

CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s
counterparties’ default on their contractual obligations
resulting in financial losses to the Group. The Group’s
credit risk exposures are primarily attributable to
receivables under service concession arrangements,
other receivables, debt instrument at FVTOCI, other
financial assets at amortised cost, restricted bank
deposits, time deposits and bank balances.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E ——F+ - A=+ —HIFEF

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT
(Cont’d)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group has
established policies and systems for the monitoring
and control of credit risk. The management has
delegated different departments responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring processes to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts. The
Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s credit
policies and oversees the credit quality of the Group’s
asset portfolio. In this regard, management considers
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group performed impairment assessment for
financial assets under ECL model. Information about
the Group’s credit risk management, maximum
credit risk exposures and the related impairment
assessment are summarised as below:

Receivables under service concession arrangements

The Group has individually assessed allowance
for credit losses for its receivables under service
concession arrangements at the end of the reporting
period based on internal credit rating, their ageing,
historical observed default rates over the expected
life of receivables and adjusted for forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort. In the opinion of the directors, these customers
are local governmental authorities in the PRC
and government-owned corporation in Indonesia,
which are financially sound and accordingly no loss
allowance is recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & £ — & —

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT
(Cont’d)

Other receivables

Included in other receivables is mainly advance to a
third party. The Group has assessed the allowance
for credit losses with reference to the historical past
due information, default rate, the financial position of
the counterparty as well as the fair value of collateral
pledged by the counterparty. During the year ended
31 December 2021, loss allowances of HK$1,008,000
(2020: Nil) is recognised in the profit or loss.

For the remaining other receivables, the management
believes that there is no significant increase in credit
risk of these amounts since initial recognition and
thus no loss allowance is recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & £ —E - —F+ - A=+ —HI F&ZF

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT
(Cont’d)

Debt instrument at FVTOCI

The Group only invests in debt securities with low
credit risk. The Group’s debt instruments at FVTOCI
mainly comprise listed bonds which operating in the
property sector. The credit risk of debt instrument
is managed through an internal process. The credit
quality of each issuer is investigated before an
investment is made. The Group performed impairment
assessment on debt instruments at FVTOCI at 12m
ECL by reference to information published by external
credit rating agencies relating to average loss rates
of respective credit rating grades and concluded the
ECL on this balance is insignificant.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

The Group has assessed on the recoverability of
other financial assets at amortised cost by reference
to probability of default and loss given default of the
bank. During the year ended 31 December 2021, loss
allowance of HK$2,242,000 (2020: Nil) is recognised
in profit or loss.

Restricted bank deposits/time deposits/bank
balances

The credit risks on restricted bank deposits, time
deposits and bank balances are limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 22 —F ——F+ - =+—

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT FER

(Cont’d)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment

comprises the following categories:

Hi1FFE

33. &M T A (#E)

(B) &Rt EEERRBR (M)

KRB R {4 (&)

AREBERNIIEE R R R E
BREATER

Other financial assets/

Internal credit rating Description Trade receivables other items
A1 E TR #t g5 W HE Hitem&EE HiEA
Low risk The counterparty has a low Lifetime ECL 12m ECL
risk of default and does not — not credit-impaired
have any past-due amounts
EN XHBFHENERRE B 2HEREEEAR REAEREEER
3 8 AF ] 180 B R 0E - REEEERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after  Lifetime ECL 12m ECL
due dates but usually settle — not credit-impaired
in full
ER4E BEBALERIBAKER 2HEHREEEAE REAEREEER
BREEZHLEE - REEEERE
Doubtful There have been significant  Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
increases in credit risk since  — not credit-impaired — not credit-impaired
initial recognition through
information developed
internally or external
resources
2= FERBRETNRERARE ZHBRHREEER PHBHEREER
%ﬁm%ﬂmﬂiﬁﬁé - AEEEERE - AEEEERE
RAEZZER)
Loss There is evidence indicating  Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
the asset is credit-impaired — credit-impaired — credit-impaired
B ERRBETEBMEECRAR 2HEHEEHE 2HREHEERR
ERE - BEEEENE - BEAEEERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating ~ Amount is written off Amount is written off
that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and the
Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery
fi 34 ERBBRTEBABRARE WEFHH MEEHET R
MEBEREAASETR
RABAKEEBTE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E ——F+ - A=+ —HIFEF

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 33. &M I AE)
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (B) &AM EEARRB R (&)

AND POLICIES (Cont’d)
CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT EERENEHEFTMEE)
(Cont’d)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of AEESHEENE SRR
the Group’s financial assets, which are subject to ECL N(BETEREEBETM)
assessment: E3=RUNNE

2021 Gross 2020 Gross

External Internal 12m or carrying carrying
Notes credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL amount amount
12fip52HR —B=-F _ZT-%
M ABEEFER  ABEEFR  HEEER REAE RELR
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THETL
Debt instruments at FVTOCI
FRAMZEARERAAENED
BHIR
Investments in listed bonds 18 BBB- to BB N/A 12m ECL 2,012 4972
thEFRE BBB- £ BB TER 12AAEH
FEBR
Financial assets at amortised cost
REHAATENERMEER
Trade receivables N/A - NA Low risk (note 1) Lifetime ECL — 73 -
not credit-
impaired
EHRNTE TER TER Emp (W) 2HBRHEES
B - RBEE
R
Receivables under service concession 16 N/A Low risk 12m ECL 338,753 314,782
arrangements (individual
assessment)
S EE S3 AN} L6 e FER {& B PEARSEE
BEMBLT
fit)
Other financial assets at amortised 19 NA Low risk 12m ECL - 8,253
cost
REENATENEMEREE TER ERE PEAEHREE
BR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bt 2 —F ——F+ - A=+ —HI FE&E

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 33. &M I AE)
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (B) &AM EERARRB R (&)
AND POLICIES (Cont’d)
CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT FEERK KRBT E)
(Cont’d)
2021 Gross 2020 Gross
External Internal 12m or carrying carrying
Notes  credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL amount amount
12@A%2HE —E--F <—IT-%%
e ANEETSR  ANEETS HEEEBR REAE FHER
HK$’000 HK$'000
TEL TEL
Loss Lifetime ECL — 2,278 -
credit-impaired
BE PHEBEES
B-B®ER
BRE
Other receivables 20 N/A Low risk 12m ECL 3,827 5,249
At R IE T ER R 2EARHEE
E#
Doubtful Lifetime ECL — 4,049 -
not credit-
impaired
i HEBEER
B- RBER
ERE
Restricted bank deposits 21 BBB- to AA+ N/A 12m ECL 5,920 12,030
RBHBITER BBB-Z AA+ T PREAEHEE
BE#
Time deposits 21 A- N/A 12m ECL 12,269 -
T HER T REARHEE
B
Bank balances 21 BBB+1t0AA- N/A 12m ECL 65,054 51,067
RITEE BBB+ZAA- T PREAEHEE
E#
Note: B 5 -
1. For trade receivables, the Group has applied the 1. REZEBRREMST  A%E
simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss BEABESYEHREERF
allowance at lifetime ECL. WA A 22 HEHRE

EEENEERE -
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,?E:FAE!?J BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &t & —F ——#F+ - A=+ —HI F/F

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT
(Cont’d)

The following tables show reconciliation of loss
allowance that have been recognised for financial
assets at amortised cost and other receivables:

Other financial assets at amortised cost

33. @M IA(HE)
(B) &M R TEAERBE ()

1= & & ba ) R (B &F 1l ()

TRIRERIREBIHA NG E
Y HE i & B & A K H At IR
BB ZEBRBREZYHK:

BB ARG BRI A M B E

E
Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired
2HEHEES
B -CBR4EEE
1B
HK$’'000
FAT

At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 and HR_ZT_ZHF—H—H -

1 January 2021 —E-TF+ZH=+—H
N—_TZ—F—H—H —
Impairment losses recognised (note 1) BB BB R (M) 2,242
Exchange adjustments ME 5, 38 B 17
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+=ZH=+—H 2,259
Other receivables H il JE W 5 E

Lifetime ECL
— not credit-
impaired
2HEHGEER
B - RBEFE
A
HK$’000
FAT

At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 and R-ZZE-_TF—-—H—-H"

1 January 2021 —E2-TF+=-A=+—H

N—_T-_—F—H—H —
Impairment losses recognised (note 2) BB BB R (M E2) 1,008
Exchange adjustments ME 58 & 19
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+=ZH=+—H 1,027
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AT HRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E -—F+ - A=+ —HI FF

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT
(Cont’d)

The following tables show reconciliation of loss
allowance that have been recognised for financial
assets at amortised cost and other receivables:
(Cont’d)

Notes:

1. During the year, KSPIC did not repay the full scheduled
amount as required by the court, management assessed
that only a portion of deposits was expected to be
recovered. Consequently, loss allowance is recognised.

2. At the end of reporting period, the management assessed
that there is a change in the credit rating on advance to a
third party and accordingly loss allowance is recognised
during the year.

LIQUIDITY RISK

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
of the Group monitors the utilisation of amounts due
to related parties and bank and other borrowings and
ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on amounts due to related parties
and bank and other borrowings as a significance
source of liquidity. As at 31 December 2021,
the Group has available untilised facilities of
HK$18,257,000 (2020: HK$14,274,000). Details of
which are set out in notes 24 and 25.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E ——F+ - A=+ —HIFEF

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

33. &M T A (#E)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (B) &Ry BEEZEREBRK ()
AND POLICIES (Cont’d)
LIQUIDITY RISK (Cont’d) REESRE MR (E)
The following table details the Group’s remaining TERHAWAEEHENTESHE
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial BERFRBKRENE - TRIIBE
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on TRBEMNATRBESREM
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities Fol ZE2mBENRER
based on the earliest date on which the Group can EBETEEANTNEERSES
be required to pay. Specifically, bank loans with a ¥ oAEms EERKREXRE
repayment on demand clause are included in the HRERZBITERDIARE
earliest time band regardless of the probability of the FEHE MAmPBITRIEDT
banks choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity EEEMZAIEMEZ D o 3ET
dates for non-derivative financial liabilities are based EeMBBEZIHANERTE
on the agreed repayment dates. EXRHEBMET -
The tables include both interest and principal cash ZEREFANBEAESE &R
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating E-ANERERZFENENR
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest T R ReHWEREHARF
rate curves at the end of the reporting period. KEHEETHE o
Liquidity tables MEEZ XK
Weighted  On demand Total Carrying
average  or 3 months undiscounted ~ amount at
interest rate orless  3-6 months 6-12 months 1-3years  cashflows  31.12.2021
REX RZB=-F
mETH F3fE A AfB t-R=1-A
Gk AR 3%6fAR  6%12fR 123F REHEAE MEEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% Tin Tin Tin Tin Tin Tin
2021 e
Trade payables LSRN - 3,301 - - 3,301 3,301
Other payables R B8 - 3,064 - - 3,064 3,064
Borrowings &3 4.30% 33,082 2,248 - - 35,280 35,107
Lease liabilties HERfR 3.93% 144 144 192 - 480 412
Amounts due to related  JER RS 5 2B
parties 6.81% 8,639 506 21,784 4,096 41,025 39,207
49,080 2,898 27,976 4,096 84,050 82,051
BRBRIZERERAA —EC-FEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E -—F+ - A=+ —HI FF

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Cont’d)
LIQUIDITY RISK (Cont’d)
Liquidity tables (Cont’d)

Weighted ~ On demand
average  or 3 months

interest rate orless  3-6 months

BREX
mE¥s %3E A

HE WA 3E6EA
%  HKSO000  HK$000
% TETL TETL

33. &M T A (#E)
(B) &Rt EEEERBK ()

R E TR (E)
REBExF(E)

Total Carrying
undiscounted amount at

6-12 months 1-3 years cashflows  81.12.2020

S
8 +-A=1+-A
123 HeRE8E MEME

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR

2020 ut - §:
Trade payables BAENTE - 2,764
Other payables A EMATE - 3219
Borrowings ER 1.76% 44 20,380
Lease liabilties fEak 3.93% 144
Amounts due to related  JEfT BB 77 508
parties - -

14,007

S 2,764 2,764

S 3219 3219

18 2,257 22,699 22,480
287 478 1,003 1,019
S 14,007 13,406

6,171 20,524

14,312

2,135 43,742 42,388

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the “on demand or 3 months or
less” time band in the above maturity analysis. As
at 31 December 2021, the aggregate undiscounted
principal amounts of these bank loans amounted to
HK$18,000,000 (2020: Nil). Taking into account the
Group’s financial position, the management does not
believe that it is probable that the banks will exercise
their discretionary rights to demand immediate
repayment. The management believes that such bank
loans will be repaid within 3 months after the end of
the reporting period in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. At
that time, the aggregate principal and interest cash
outflows will amount to HK$18,070,000 (2020: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E ——F+ - A=+ —HIFEF

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Cont’d)
LIQUIDITY RISK (Cont’d)
Liquidity tables (Cont’d)

The amounts included above for variable interest
rate instruments are subject to change if changes in
variable interest rates differ from those estimates of
interest rates determined at the end of the reporting
period.

INTEREST RATE BENCHMARK REFORM

As listed in note 25, certain of the Group’s LIBOR/
HIBOR borrowings will or may be subject to the
interest rate benchmark reform. The Group is
closely monitoring the market and managing the
transition to new benchmark interest rates, including
announcements made by the relevant IBOR
regulators.

LIBOR

The Financial Conduct Authority has confirmed all
LIBOR settings will either cease to be provided by any
administrator or no longer be representative:

° immediately after 31 December 2021, in the case
of all sterling, euro, Swiss franc and Japanese
yen settings, and the 1-week and 2-month
United States dollar settings; and

° immediately after 30 June 2023, in the case of
the remaining United States dollar settings.

HIBOR

While the Hong Kong Dollar Overnight Index Average
(“HONIA”) has been identified as an alternative to
HIBOR, there is no plan to discontinue HIBOR. The
multi-rate approach has been adopted in Hong Kong,
whereby HIBOR and HONIA will co-exist.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &t 2 —E ——F+ - A=+ —HIL F&F

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Cont’d)
INTEREST RATE BENCHMARK REFORM (Cont’d)
HIBOR (Cont’d)

The following are the key risks for the Group arising
from the transition:

Interest rate related risks

For contracts which have not been transitioned to
the relevant alternative benchmark rates and without
detailed fallback clauses, if the bilateral negotiations
with the Group’s counterparties are not successfully
concluded before the cessation of LIBORs, there are
significant uncertainties with regard to the interest
rate that would apply. This gives rise to additional
interest rate risk that was not anticipated when the
contracts were entered into.

There are fundamental differences between IBORs
and the various alternative benchmark rates. IBORs
are forward looking term rates published for a
period (e.g. 3 months) at the beginning of that
period and include an inter-bank credit spread,
whereas alternative benchmark rates are typically
risk-free overnight rates published at the end of the
overnight period with no embedded credit spread.
These differences will result in additional uncertainty
regarding floating rate interest payments.

Liquidity risk

The additional uncertainty on various alternative rates
which are typically published on overnight basis will
require additional liquidity management. The Group’s
liquidity risk management policy has been updated
to ensure sufficient liquid resources to accommodate
unexpected increases in overnight rates.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2021 Annual Report
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E ——F+ - A=+ —HIFEF

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 33. @M I R(#H)

(C) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL (C) &MIAMAREHE

INSTRUMENTS

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are
measured at fair value for financial reporting
purposes. In estimating the fair value, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available.

(i)  Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are
measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair values of these
financial assets are determined (in particular, the
valuation technique and inputs used).

R BHREME  AEEHD
TRMITEEZRAREFE - AK
B BRI ARG Z 5 A BLR
BEHTARE-

() BMELEMHEERAAE
SEBEZAKEERMEEZ

D RE

RERESHR  AEHEE
DEMEERNEE -
TRIBHA WA E E %
FTMEEZIANEZE
£t O Bl 2 PR b 1B B
N ABIE) -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£-% ot ] E=8 @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TEL AT TET TET
At 31 December 2021 R=%2=-%
+=B=+-H
Debt instruments at FVTOCI FREMZERGERA
REFENEBIR
Investments in listed bonds THEFRE 2,012 - - 2,012
At 31 December 2020 R-2-2f
+=A=t-A
Debt instruments at FVTOCI BREMZEREEA
AEFENEKIA
Investments in listed bonds ITEHRE 4,972 - - 4,972
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E -—F+ - A=+ —HI FF

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(C) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(i)  Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

33. &M T A (#E)

(C) &M IAMARIEFEHE)

REKSEMHEERAAE
AEZAKEERMEEZ

(Cont’d) NR{E(E)
Fair value as at
31 December
R+ZHA=+—H
ZARE Fair value Valuation technique(s)
Debt instruments at FVTOCI 2021 2020 hierarchy and key input(s)
ERHM2ERRAR RER MR
AREFTENEBIA —E_-F —Z2-ZF DPREER HEnAZE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FET
Investments in listed bonds Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an
active market
FHESERE 2,012 4,972 F—H EERMISMWE AE

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and
3 fair value during both the current and prior
years.

(i)  Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not measured at fair
value on a recurring basis

The directors of the Company consider that
the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated statement of financial position
approximate their fair values.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 22 —F ——F + - A=+ —HIFFE

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (“Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 5 September
2014 for the primary purpose of providing incentives to
directors and eligible employees for their contribution or
potential contribution to our Group. Under the Scheme, the
board of directors of the Company may grant options to
eligible employees, including directors of the Company and
its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company.

At 31 December 2020, the number of shares in respect of
which options had been granted and remained outstanding
under the Scheme was 500,000, representing 0.045% of
the shares of the Company in issue at that date. During
the year, all options were expired due to the cessation of
employment.

The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. The number of shares issued and to be
issued in respect of which options granted and may be
granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders.

The limit on the total number of Company’s shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and
any other Schemes of our Company at any time shall not
exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time (the
“Maximum Limit”). The maximum number of Shares
in respect of which options under the Scheme and any
other Schemes of our Company may be granted is 10%
of the Shares in issue immediately upon completion of
the share offer, being 80,000,000 Shares (the “Scheme
Limit”), excluding for this purpose the number of shares
which would be issued on the exercise in full of the options
granted under the Scheme or any other schemes of our
Company but not cancelled, lapsed or exercised; the
number of Shares which have been allotted and issued
pursuant to the exercise of any options granted under the
Scheme or any other schemes of our Company; and the
number of cancelled Shares.

34. fRBx H#EsTE

ARRREBER-_FT-—NFEAARH
BEARFERRMNERET S (K
FED TEEEABYARKEE
HEREATEELERMNEZERA
EREER - REBEZFE  ARAE
FERAERERR L BAE
HABRARBAERAEMBRRMNE
E o UARBARRMBD -

RZE_ZEFE+_A=+—H" R
BZ:aoBREERRTENBR
1 KRR 1D 8B &500,0008%
HERARRRZBBAEETRG
0.045% - RAFE R ILIERE
B 2HERESTEE -

ERGARAIBREE LM AEZER
T REZFTEERL ZEBREMS
Z D EEE - BT A B R S 15 B
BARNAREETRMDGZ10% ° £ K
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEM

E (Cont’d)

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

No options shall be granted under any schemes of our
Company (including the Scheme) if this will result in the
Maximum Limit being exceeded.

Any grant of options to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of our Company or any of their
respective associates is required to be approved by
our independent non-executive directors (excluding any
independent non-executive director who is the grantee
of the options). If the Board determines to offer to grant
options to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non- executive director or any of their respective associates
which will result in the number of shares issued and to be
issued in excess of 0.1% of the issued shares or with an
aggregate value (based on the closing price of the shares
at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000 within any
12-month period is subject to approval by shareholders of
the Company in general meeting.

The subscription price for the Company’s shares on
the exercise of options under Scheme shall be at least
the highest of: (a) the closing price of the shares as
stated in Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of grant, which must be a business day; (b) the
average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the 5 business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the
nominal value of the share.

2021 Annual Report
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

The following table discloses movements of the Scheme
during the year:

34. MR EEtEI(#F)

TREBEZFENRFRAZES:

Outstanding Outstanding
at at
1 January Granted Exercised Forfeited Expired 31 December
2021 during year ~ duringyear ~ during year  during year 2021
R-Z_—F R-B--%
—A—-H tZA=t-H
MATE  RERRE REATE  RERRK  REAER i & A7 8
Former employee 500,000 - - - (600,000) -
MET
Weighted average exercise
price (HKS) 0.52 - - - 0.52 -
mEFHTEEGET
The estimated fair value of the options granted on 14 April
2016 is HK$0.25. RIEBE-ANFOATEHERLENE
Az et AR E /0258 T °

The exercise price of the options of HK$0.52 was equal
to the market price of the shares on the date of grant.
Options granted must be taken up within 30 days of the
date of grant — 14 April 2016, upon payment of HK$1.00
per option. Each of the grantees to whom an option
has been granted under the Scheme shall be entitled to
exercise their options up to 33%, 66% and 100% of the
shares that are subject to the option so granted to them
at any time during the period commencing from the first,
second and third anniversaries of the date. The options will
vest over a period of three years from the date of grant and
the grantee will still be employed on the date of vesting.
The validity period of the options is ten years from the date
of grant and the options shall lapse at the expiry of the
validity period. The grantee may exercise the option up to
his entitlement at the date of cessation of his employment
within a period of one month following the date of such
cessation. The fair value at grant date is estimated using
a binomial pricing model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted. The
contractual life of each option granted is ten years. There
is no cash settlement of the options.

BRETEEARLET  HER
REBHOKROME - EREER
AN L BHEI0B AR (Bl =
E-AFEOATITH) ARAEX
NEREREICBT - REBER

T%EEJr?‘J REHBREZEANE -
BFE F-BF F=-BFEHE
WEHH‘? EXRTERENSK

BRAERBRERTFEERE THERE
Fri# & g 5 5l 1~ 8 #833% * 66%
K100% - BERR M EN FER TH
HEAN=ZFHBERNEE  B&ARK
AREBEHBINXEREARR -
BERENESH AR L BB
+F A KRS TR KRR
K- ABRATER S EEBR
A EAHEARTEERKLERE
EOERTEMNERE - X HAH
MARENZE-_EANEEENGHE -
TR R ERTIKE 2 IR R K
- BERHZBHEBEREZANT
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

34.

The fair value was calculated using the Binomial model.

The inputs into the model were as follows:

Weighted average share price MmEFHKRE
Exercise price TEE

Expected volatility (%) T8 H7 % 1R (%)
Expected life (years) T8 BA F B (5F)

Risk-free rate (%)
Expected dividend yield (%)

& 2 B2 A & (%)
B HIR B (%)

35.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the comparable companies’ share prices
over the previous 7-10 years. The expected life used in
the model has been adjusted, based on director’'s best
estimate, for the effects of non- transferability, exercise
restrictions and behavioural considerations.

The Group recognised no expenses in relation to share
options granted by the Company for the year ended 31
December 2021 and 2020.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

(A) DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PLAN
OPERATING IN HONG KONG

The Group operates a defined contribution MPF
Scheme established under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance in Hong Kong for
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basis salaries and are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustee. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme. There are no forfeited contributions that may
be used by the Group to reduce the existing level of
contributions.

2021 Annual Report
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35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Cont’d)

(B)

(C)

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PLAN
OPERATING IN THE PRC

The employees of the Group’s operations in the PRC
are required to participate in central pension schemes
operated by the local municipal governments, the
assets of which are held separately from those of the
Group. Contributions are made by the Group based
on a percentage of the participating employees’
salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension schemes. The employer contributions
vest fully once made. There are no forfeited
contributions that may be used by the Group to
reduce the existing level of contributions.

DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLAN
OPERATING IN INDONESIA

Under the Indonesia Labour Law, companies
are required to pay separation, appreciation and
compensation benefits to their employees if the
conditions specified in the Indonesia Labour Law are
met. The Group’s subsidiaries in Indonesia, estimates
its liability for employee service entitlement benefits
in order to meet and cover the minimum benefits
requirement to be paid to employees under the
Indonesia Labour Law. The post-empolyment benefits
are unfunded.

The plan exposes the Group to actuarial risks such as
investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and
salary risk.

INVESTMENT RISK

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability
is calculated using a discount rate determined by
reference to Indonesian government bonds; if the
return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a
plan deficit.

INTEREST RATE RISK

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the
plan liability.

35. RhiEFIRE(H)

(B)

(C)
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35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Cont’d)

(C) DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLAN

OPERATING IN INDONESIA (Cont’d)
LONGEVITY RISK

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability
is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the
mortality of plan participants both during and after
their employment. An increase in the life expectancy
of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

SALARY RISK

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability
is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan
participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the
plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

The most recent actuarial valuations of the present
value of the defined benefit obligation were carried
out at 31 December 2021 by Kantor Konsultan
Aktuaria Steven & Mourits, an independent actual
consulting firm in Indonesia. The present value of the
defined benefit obligation, and the related current
service cost and past service cost, were measured
using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2021 Annual Report
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35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Cont’d)

(C) DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLAN
OPERATING IN INDONESIA (Cont’d)

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of
the actuarial valuations were as follows:

35. [BFIRFIRE(H)

(C) MEPREITZHERFIE ket
B(#)

BEBEMAIZERKRWT:

2021 2020

—EB-—F —ETHF

Discount rate Bh IR & 7.13% 710%
Expected rate of salary HEH € I8

increase 5% 10.00%

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination
of the defined obligation are discount rate and
expected rate of salary increase. The sensitivity
analysis below has been determined based on
reasonably possible changes of the respective
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting
period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

BEATETIZEARKERR
RUBRXNBHRFHF TR - A
THEHREIFTRER HREHR
ERREBAEBEAIGEE T M A
fBRREFTEMETE

BRABRERERAT —B-—FFH
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35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Cont’d) 35. ;BFiaFI&E (£ (#)

(C) DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLAN (C) RENREITZHIE & FIR st

OPERATING IN INDONESIA (Cont’d) Bl (&)

Increase/

(Decrease)/ (decrease)

increase in in net

net defined defined

Increase benefit Decrease benefit

inrate  obligations inrate  obligations

RERAER RERAE

BEED)/ EFEEN/

MELH 1 m FETR® (R %)

% HK$’000 % HK$'000

% FAT % TEL
At 31 December 2021 R-B=--%

+=ZA=+—-H

Discount rate BB X 1 (75) 1 84

Expected rate of salary increase T8 Hi%r & FHig 1 92 1 (83)
At 31 December 2020 R-ZBZEE

+ZA=1+-H
Discount rate B E 1 (131) 1 150
Expected rate of salary increase B H ¥ & 718 1 147 1 (130)

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be MR E D R&ZAIE BB E -
representative of the actual change in the defined BE-BURKZEH A E
benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in A EZ2ANERE DTS —
assumptions would occur in isolation of one another TEARXRATEBNEEZER

as some of the assumptions may be correlated. ga o

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity BEoN - R E2VIA EBERE 9T
analysis, the present value of the defined benefit - RAERMNETZHERN &
HHRATEF BN ER A E -

262

obligation has been calculated using the projected
unit credit method at the end of the reporting period,
which is the same as that applied in calculating the
defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2021 Annual Report
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35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Cont’d)

(C) DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLAN (C)
OPERATING IN INDONESIA (Cont’d)

Amounts recognised in comprehensive income in

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & £ — & —

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

%Aﬂﬁ BRI

35. RhiEFIRE(H)

B (%)

AR ER A EIR

—FF_H=1—HIFE

R EDEHE 172 R %E 78 FI58 k&t

e g

respect of the defined benefit plan are as follows: REOBREWT
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Service cost: AR 78 A 7S -
— Current service cost: — E A AR 7% B 7 401 326
— Past service cost and gain B RN AEE W =
from settlements (26) —
Net interest expense M ERZ FRE 91 73
Components of defined benefit 18 25 HE R ) R E 48 Fl 5K A K
costs recognised in profit or B R B
loss 466 399
Remeasurement on the net BYERATCREMNAEFE:
defined benefit liability:
— Actuarial gains and — A IZI BREEHAEE R
losses arising from Hi s M EE
changing demographic
assumptions - 4
— Actuarial gains and losses — UBBREEBAEE 2R
arising from changes in = kEBE
financial assumptions (600) 118
— Actuarial gains and losses — KRRAERMEA ZRBEW
arising from experience wm R EBE
adjustments (154) (118)
Components of defined benefit REMEEBAERN A ER
costs recognised in other FI B 2N B 48 X 38
comprehensive income (754) 4
Totall st (288) 403

The remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability
is included in other comprehensive income.

BREREREBRLQF

RERMNABBFEZENTE
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35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Cont’d) 35. ;BFiaFI&E (£ (#)

(C) DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLAN (C) MEPREITZREIEFIE K&t
OPERATING IN INDONESIA (Cont’d) Bl
The amount included in the consolidated statement of AEERERATEAMAENE
financial position arising from the Group’s obligation FEEMGAGE MBRAEK
in respect of its defined benefit plan is as follows: MERBEWOT:
2021 2020
—EZ—F —TTHF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FET FHET

Present value of funded defined B &R TERANETIRE
benefit obligations 1,065 1,414
Fair value of plan assets FEEEMNAAE - —

Net liability arising from defined A ERAEETEENEBEFE
benefit obligations 1,065 1,414
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & £ —E - —F+ - A=+ —HI F&ZF

35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Cont’d) 35. ;BFiaFI&E X (#)

(C) DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLAN (C) RENREITZHIE & FIR st

OPERATING IN INDONESIA (Cont’d)

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit
obligations in the current year are as follows:

B (%)

4R FIE 3 8 R A E E R
SEMT :

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Opening defined benefit FMRTRMEMR
obligations 1,414 1,004
Service cost: AR 745 BX 7
— Current service cost: — BRIARBE KA : 401 326
— Past service cost and gain — BERBEK AR EE W=
from settlements (26) —
Interest cost FIE B AR 91 73
Remeasurement losses/(gains): E#F T EEE, (W) :
— Actuarial gains and losses — AARBEBAELZ
arising from changing BERa REE
demographic assumptions - 4
— Actuarial gains and losses — WBREEHMELZ
arising from changes in BE KT REIE
financial assumptions (600) 118
— Actuarial gains and losses - KRB RABMEEZ
arising from experience BE W= kEE
adjustments (154) (118)
Benefits paid 2175 1& FI (36) 1)
Exchange differences on EINETEIE X E R
foreign plans (25) 8
Closing defined benefit FRATEMNEE
obligations 1,065 1,414

BRABRERERAT —B-—FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

—FF_HA=1—HILFE

36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 36. BEKIE
2021 2020
—EZ—F —EETF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FET FAET
Capital expenditure in respect of BOTEEIE NEBACFTANRE
service concession arrangement BTN EARARX
under BOT basis contracted for 93,600 —
37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. MEBARXSH
(@) Other than as disclosed elsewhere in these (@ BREZEEETBEHRERSER
consolidated financial statements, the Group has TN REBHEBAEB BT
following transactions and balances with related R5:
parties:
2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Nature of transactions and BB IR S MEE &%
balances with related
companies:
Rental expense* e~ 316 309
Administrative service THRBR™
expense** 2,252 2,617
Interest expenses on lease HEBEMNFERX
liabilities 28 50
Lease liabilities*** HEHE™ 472 1,019

* During the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
rental expense was paid to a related company over which
a director of the Company has significant influence to
operate, monitor and maintain the two power plants of

the Group.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E ——F+ - A=+ —HIFEF

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

Other than as disclosed elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements, the Group has
following transactions and balances with related
parties: (Cont’d)

> The Group entered an administrative service sharing
agreement with a related party, a company controlled by
certain executive directors and their family members, in
connection with the sharing of administrative services on
a cost basis.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
entered a sub-lease agreement with Dragonfield
Management Limited, a company controlled by
certain executive directors and their family members,
to sub-lease the office premise. The sub-lease has
a term of three years from 20 November 2019 to 19
November 2022 at a rent of HK$47,800 per month. At
the commencement date of the sub-lease, the Group
recognised a right-of-use asset and a lease liability of
HK$1,629,000.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of

37. BB RH ()

(a)

BRZEFGEEMBERESBH
BN AEBEBBTBENLT
X5 (%)

O AKBEERAFITRREE—
2B (BETHTESER
HEXBES W RR)FLITH
MRS 2 = 15 5 (G Bl AR £ U
g)-

= REBEZE-AFEFTZA=1—
BLEFE AEEERS AR
AREERETEARQA(H
ETHTESERERBEGNN
ARNEIZ S M - » A
AR=ZFE-_ZE-HNLF+—
ARZ+REZZTZ_=F+—
A+ 1 B)- A M &47,800%
T -ROMHKBE A&£E
HREAREELRBEERRE
1,629,00078 T °

(b) EEETERBARTM

RERNEENTEEEEHEM

key management during the year was as follows: ABHFHMBET
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TEx FHET
Short-term employee benefits 5 Hi{g & 18 7 3,908 2,984
Post-employment benefits BBEEF 122 68
4,030 3,052

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends. Further details of compensation of directors’
emoluments are included in note 10.

BREREREBRLQF

EERTBTBRABZHMA
FHZEEREREARE R
MEBEERET - EFMEN
- HBHERME -

RO
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E -—F+ - A=+ —HI FF

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 38. EAFMMBRKAR

COMPANY
2021 2020
—E-— B -RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB RRIMNZE 164,259 164,259
Debt instruments at FVTOCI FREMEEREEZEANERE
WEBIA 2,012 3,380
166,271 167,639
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepayments and other receivables 8 <t 5% I8 K £ i & Ug 5% 18 248 220
Amounts due from subsidiaries S NGIE 207,851 145,588
Debt instruments at FVTOCI FREMEENZEANETS
WEBIA - 1,592
Bank balances and cash RITHEBEIR S 1,415 8,770
209,514 156,170
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Other payables and accruals EMmENRBERESTER 1,129 1,791
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE Bt B A Bl 5k IE 83,241 56,640
Amounts due to related parties JE < B8 BEs 5 3R IR 35,207 13,406
Borrowings B 14,867 =
134,444 71,837
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFEE 75,070 84,333
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT #EERBAEBAE
LIABILITIES 241,341 251,972
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR#E
Share capital N 111 111
Reserves & 1 237,230 251,861
TOTAL EQUITY 4R 3 237,341 251,972
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY EFRBERE
Amounts due to related parties %A B8 B 5 3R IE 4,000 =
241,341 251,972

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 38. AAFMMB R AT (&)

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E ——F+ - A=+ —HIFEF

COMPANY (Cont’d)
MOVEMENT IN THE COMPANY’S RESERVES FOFTRGED
Share  Investment
Share Share option  revaluation Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses Total
g RHEE BRERE REERRE AitESR By
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAR TET TAT TER TET
At 1 January 2020 .
~A-H 111 408460 121 62 (13110 272644
Loss for the year ERER - - - - 9,689) (9,683)
Release on disposal of ~ HEFBEMEEN
debt instruments at BRDABHEN
fair value through other BB LABEE
comprehensive income - - - 84 - 84
Total comprehensive FREENE/
income/(expense) for the (B &%
year - - - 84 (9,683) (9,599)
Dividends recognised as  ERR AR 2K E
distribution (note 13) (Kt 7£13) - - - - (11,079) (11,073)
At 31 December 2020 A
+-A=+-8 111 408,460 121 146 (156,866) 251,072
Loss for the year ERER - - - - (7,797) (7,797)
Net fair value loss on FREMZENRS
debt instruments at BARBHENE
fair value through other BT ARRAER
comprehensive income ~ BFH@ - - - (1,303) - (1,303)
Release onredemption ~ ERFEBEMEH
of debt instruments at WRBRANEHE
fair value through other ~ B)EB T AB &
comprehensive income - - - 5 - 5
Total comprehensive FRNEZEHETAE
expense for the year - - - (1,298) (7,797) (9,095)
Transfer LB - (11,073) - - 11,073 -
Share options lapsed BAM ERE - - (121) - 121 -
Dividends recognised as  EBR AR EZ
distribution (note 13) i & (Kt % 13) - (5,536) - - - (5,536)
At 31 December 2021 R-ZB=--£
+=A=+-H 111 391,851 - (1,152)  (153469) 237,341
BRBRIZERERAA TR -FFR 269
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E -—F+ - A=+ —HI FF

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 39. FNFEEMB LTI
OF THE COMPANY

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 RZEZ—FRZTTF+A
December 2021 and 2020 are as follows: =t+—H ARAFTEMBRFHD
FFIBT
Place of

incorporation/  Issued and paid Proportion of ownership
registration/  up share capital/ interest held by the

Name of subsidiary operation registered capital Company Principal activities
R/ BRAR  XAIRANERE
WEATER EENY BERRE/HEMEL B&LA ITERED
2021 2020
Z®--% -“TCERE
% %
% %
Haian Hengfa (notes a & c) PRC RMB30,000,000 70 70 Wastewater treatment
BREE(WFake) i AR #30,000,0007 BKRR
Rugao Hengfa (notes b & ¢) PRC US$10,880,000 100 100 Wastewater treatment
R &% (WitbKo) f 10,880,000% T BKRE
Shanghai Taihuan Environmental Technology ~ PRC HK$400,000 100 100 Dormant
Limited (notes b & ¢)
PERRRREBABRAR (HiEbke) ik 400,000% ¢ TEXT
Rugao Taihuan Environmental Technology PRC US$1,000,000 100 100 Dormant
Limited (notes b & c)
NRFRRERBEERAF (K FbKe) E 1,000,000% 7T TEXH
ELL Environmental Limited BVI US$100 100 100 Investment holding
ABRUES 100% 7T RERR
Everbest Water Treatment Development Hong Kong HK$82,304,273 100 100 Investment holding
Company Limited
EEXBERBRLA BB 82,304,273 T REAR
Grand Target Holdings Limited BVI US$100 100 100 Investment holding
EBRUES 100% 7T RERR

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2021 Annual Report
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
OF THE COMPANY (Cont’d)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2021 and 2020 are as follows: (Cont’d)

38. FLFERMBATIRIEN (4F)

RZE——

FR-_EBE-_FEF+_A

=+—B AATNIEHBLATH
HEMT ()

Place of
incorporation/  Issued and paid Proportion of ownership
registration/  up share capital/ interest held by the
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital Company Principal activities
R/ i/ BRTR ARARBHNHEEE
MEARER EENBE BERRE/EMEL EELA TEEY
2021 2020
ZB--f _Z-%FE
% %
% %
Greatcorp International Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Investment holding
RERRERRA B 100 7T REER
Eternity Time Group Limited BVI US$100 100 100 Investment holding
ABRUES 100% 7T REAER
Weal Union Limited Hong Kong HK$250 100 100 Investment holding
BERRAT B 2507 T REER
Absolute Praise Limited Cayman Islands US$100 100 100 Dormant
REES 100% T TELH
Winwood Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Dormant
XEEEBRAT B 100 7T e
RPSL Indonesia IDR230,900 million 95 95 Manufacturing and sale of
glectricity and palm kemei
oil
ke 2309008 EENEE EERLESNRERLCH
SJP Indonesia IDR25,000 million 95 95 Dormant
fle 25,0006 BHEE TELH
PT ELL Environmental Limited Indonesia IDR2,500 million 99 99  Provision of administration
and management services
to group companies
e 25000 BHEE MEERFARHETH

BREREREBRLQF
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ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

OF THE COMPANY (Cont’d)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2021 and 2020 are as follows: (Cont’d)

Notes:

(@) This entity is registered as a Sino-foreign equity joint venture
under the laws of PRC.

(o) These entities are registered as wholly-owned foreign
enterprises under the laws of PRC.

(¢) The English names of these entities represent management’s
best effort at translating their Chinese names as these entities
did not register any official English names.

Except for ELL Environmental Limited, Absolute Praise
Limited and Eternity Time Group Limited, all subsidiaries
are indirectly held by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affect
the results of the year or constitute a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

2021 Annual Report

39. FLTFERMBLAFIRIEN (4F)

R-E-—ER-—T-—TF+— A
=+—H AATDFENBLAATH
FEWT : (F)

Bt 5 -

(@ “ERBREPBEERFIMATING
Bredhx-

b)) ZFEEBREBEPEAEEMAING
BEDLE -

© HENZEEBIRIMEFMEDE
XEWE ZEEENRXEEIH
EREENRRETINEHBER
& oo

BRELL Environmental Limited, Absolute
Praise Limited } Eternity Time Group
Limited 5N + PTE B R R R4 A &
BEEA -

ERINREERATEFEFTE
BRAENAESEEEFBEZETES
DZARNBMBRR - EERAE
REEGBHBARZABESRE
BRI °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E ——F+ - A=+ —HIFEF

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group that has material non-controlling

40. EREXFRRERMNIFEZTMH
B2T

BAERFEBREEZNAKE R
BB ARMFBEAINT:

interests:
Place of
incorporation
and principal Proportion of ownership
place of interests and voting rights Profit allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary business held by non-controlling interests ~ non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
AMAIBERE FERER pil
AIER REXHE RENRERRERRZRLD FERERNEN EiFERER
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
“8--% _—T-%F CZB--§ -T-TEF ZBZ-F _T-TF
% % HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% % TER ThEn TERL Tin
Haian Hengfa PRC 30 30 5,967 4,043 35,024 34,244
BREY e
Individually immaterial subsidiaries
with non-controlling interests (4,824) (4,216)
EEEBRRERY
EEEINGEING
30,200 30,028

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set
out below. The summarised financial information below
presents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

AEEERERIFERES OB
RANPBERBMBHENTX > R
THBEHNBEZ2 EEA QAR
HEHBIABURR -

BRABRERERAT —B-—FFH

4

273



®

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bl 2 —E -—F+ - A=+ —HI FF

274

40. PARTIAL-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH 40. A EXERRESMIERZM
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS BT (#)
(Cont’d)
HAIAN HENGFA BRIER
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Current assets mENE E 43,686 37,081
Non-current assets EMEBEE 101,678 101,348
Current liabilities mE AR (7,063) (4,363)
Non-current liabilities EmEBBE (21,553) (19,919
Equity attributable to owners RAGIHAANEILER
of the Company 81,724 79,903
Non-controlling interests of Haian /& % 18 3% & 3F 12 % 4% 25
Hengfa 35,024 34,244
Revenue EERA 37,329 25,580
Expenses = (17,437) (12,105)
Profit for the year F & A 19,892 13,475
Profit attributable to owners of the AR A #E A A FE(R & F
Company 13,925 9,432
Profit attributable to non-controlling /& % 1 3 3F 42 A% # 2§
interests of Haian Hengfa & 1R & 5,967 4,043
Profit for the year F Nk A 19,892 13,475
Other comprehensive income RAEIHEA ANEIGEA
attributable to owners of the 2HE K=
Company 2,686 4,701
Other comprehensive income BEEBIEERESEGEMS
attributable to non-controlling R
interests of Haian Hengfa 1,151 2,015
Other comprehensive income FREMEERE
for the year 3,837 6,716

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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40. PARTIAL-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH 40. HBEXRERRESMIERZEM
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS Bav (&)
(Cont’d)
HAIAN HENGFA (Cont’d) BRER(F)
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FE T FAT
Total comprehensive income ARAREBEAELZE
attributable to owners of the I == 4B 5
Company 16,611 14,133
Total comprehensive income BREEIETEREZELEE
attributable to non-controlling I = 48 RE
interests of Haian Hengfa 7,118 6,058
Total comprehensive income FAZEW =BT
for the year 23,729 20,191

Dividends paid to non-controlling NTBLEE

interests of Haian Hangfa EERERSE CRE (6,338) (7,319)
Net cash flows from/(used in) KEFEHES (EFR)M
operating activities BemEFHE 4,887 (10,199)

Net cash flows used in investing KEEHFEAN
activities REREFHE (5,777) (5,995)

Net cash outflow Wemt F58 (890) (16,194)
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Five-Year Financial Summary

hFERBHRE
RESULTS xis
Year ended 31 December
BEE+t-A=t-HLEE
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
—E-+§& ZE-N\§ ZE-NF ZTZTHE CZEBC--f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FTAET TAET TAET TET TERT
Revenue EELON 78,964 79,050 77,473 59,017 103,136
Profit (loss) before tax BREAR R (EE) (50,891) (141,105) 17,038 5,096 22,900
Income tax expenses FERAY (9,856) (3,562) (7,438) (6,581) (11,394)
Profit (loss) for the year FRHEF(EE) (60,747) (144,667) 9,600 (1,485) 11,506

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING HE AREFERER

INTERESTS
As at 31 December
R+=BA=+-8
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
—E-+t%& ZE-N\§ ZE-NF ZE-TE CZE--f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
TEL FET FET THET TART
Total assets BEE 628,928 475,888 479,926 477,381 528,771
Total liabilities BafE (107,106) (101,512) (102,210) (102,217) (145,706)
Non-controlling interests FERER (29,024) (23,873) (31,892) (30,028) (30,200)

492,798 350,503 345,824 345,136 352,865
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